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CORPORATE INFORMATION

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

Ground Floor to 3rd Floor Cosco Tower
Grand Millennium Plaza

183 Queen’s Road Central

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN
ISLANDS

Second Floor, Century Yard
Cricket Square

P.O. Box 902

Grand Cayman

KY1-1103

Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Chong Hing Bank Limited

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch
The Bank of East Asia, Limited

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Secretaries Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN
ISLANDS

Tricor Services (Cayman Islands) Limited
Second Floor, Century Yard

Cricket Square

P.O. Box 902

Grand Cayman

KY1-1103

Cayman Islands

STOCK CODE
1469

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.getnicefg.com.hk

(Information on the website does not form part of this annual report)
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ITEHREEREEBFMRRETT

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Get Nice
Financial Group Limited (the “Company”), I hereby present the
annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2022.

OVERVIEW

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group’s revenue
amounted to approximately HK$354.8 million, representing an
decrease of 6.9% as compared with approximately HK$381.3
million reported in the last corresponding financial year. The
slight decrease in revenue was mainly attributable to the decrease
in underwriting and placing commission and proof of funds
commission with lower turnover and decrease in interest income
from margin financing during the year. Operating expenses such
as commission expenses and settlement expenses were generally

in line with the revenue.

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately HK$466.9 million (2021: HK$213.2 million).
The increase in profit was mainly attributable to (i) gain on
disposal of subsidiaries and (ii) decrease in finance costs resulted
from reduction in bank borrowings, clients’ accounts and loan
from the immediate holding company. The Group recorded net
impairment losses on accounts receivable from margin clients of

HK$130.1 million (2021: HK$55.7 million) in current year.

Basic earnings per share for the year were HK19 cents (2021:

HKO9 cents) as a result of increase in profit during the year.
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ITEHREEREEEBRRETHT
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

Market Review

At the beginning of 2021, with the launch of vaccines and the
gradual relaxation of cross-border restrictions, global stock
markets extend the uptrend of the end of last year, Hang Seng
Index rose to a 52-week high of 31,183 points on 18 February
2021. Afterwards, the market worried about the recession of
easing policies in China, the rise in US 10-year Treasury bond
yields and the renewed tension between China and Europe and

the United States which affected the market sentiment.

In the second quarter of 2021, China’s export grew since the
epidemic drove the demand for goods. Also, consumer habits
have changed and they are more inclined to consume online,
which improve the consumption growth. However, China
began anti-monopoly investigations on some large Internet and
technology companies and strengthened the industry supervision,
which led to the decline and consolidation of those internet and
technology stocks. Hong Kong stock market was stable with

reduced volatility.

During the third quarter to forth quarter of 2021, the raging
Delta variant of COVID-19 frustrated the restart of the global
economy and delayed the economic recovery expected by the
market this year. China was not immune to the impact of the
epidemic and the pace of economic growth slowed down. The
stock market experienced a downward adjustment and the

decline began to stabilize in September.

In the first quarter of 2022, the Russo-Ukrainian War started,
introduced new uncertainty to global stock market. In US, the
Federal Reserve announced to raise interest rates by 25 basis
points, this is the first time the Federal Reserve has raised interest
rates since 2018. At the same time, the Federal Reserve also
revealed more aggressive measures, expected to raise interest
rates at six policy meetings this year, as it intensifies efforts to
slow down the inflation, which is at its highest level in 40 years.
In addition, the Federal Reserve announced that the process of
shrinking the balance sheet will be started in June. The Hang
Seng Index closed at 21,996 points at the end of March 2022
compared with 28,378 points at the end of March 2021. The
average daily turnover on the Main Board and GEM during the
year ended 31 March 2022 was approximately HK$147.0 billion,
a decrease of 5.2% as compared with approximately HK$155.1

billion for the prior financial period.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Business review
Broking and securities margin financing

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the broking business
posted a loss of approximately HK$0.7 million (2021: profit of
approximately HK$21.7 million). The operating result of the
broking business decreased by 103.2% as a result of the decrease
in our broking turnover and number of sizeable corporate
finance transactions during current year. The decrease in broking
turnover was affected by the silent local stock market and
negative global investment atmosphere. Revenue from broking
for the year decreased by 15.0% to approximately HK$62.7
million (2021: HK$73.8 million) as compared with last financial
year, of which approximately HK$6.0 million (2021: HK$17.0
million) was contributed by the underwriting, placing and proof
of funds business. The decrease in these fee incomes was due
to the decrease in number of deals as a result of the less active
capital market during the current year.

Securities margin financing remained to be the Group’s
major revenue contributor for the year. During the year, total
interest income from securities margin financing dropped by
6.4% to approximately HK$287.1 million (2021: HK$306.6
million) with the decrease in average level of securities margin
lending during the year. Total gross accounts receivable from
margin clients at 31 March 2022 amounted to approximately
HK$3,113.5 million (as at 31 March 2021: HK$3,811.3
million). Net impairment loss on margin clients receivable of
HK$130.1 million was charged during the current year (2021:
HK$55.7 million).

The provision of net impairment loss was provided for the whole
margin loan portfolio of the Group, no matter the client has
margin shortfall or not, to recognise the expected credit loss
of accounts receivable from margin clients. Depending on the
degree of margin shortfall of each client, which is calculated
by outstanding loan balance minus market value of pledged
securities, margin clients are categorised into different credit
ratings and the expected credit loss is recognised based on the
corresponding default rate and recovery rate from Moody’s. For
clients with significant margin shortfall, additional impairment
loss up to 100% of the margin shortfall amount will be
recognised. To recover overdue account receivables, the Group
has taken various actions, including issuing margin call, forced
selling of pledged securities, issuing demand letter and legal
action.

Included in the total provision of net impairment loss
on accounts receivable from margin clients amounted to
approximately HK$130,076,000 during the year ended 31
March 2022, net provision of approximately HK$1,002,000 was
provided for the Group’s ten largest margin clients, including
Mr. Hung Hon Man, a director of the Company and his
close family members, and net reversal of impairment loss of
approximately HK$488,319 was provided for the Company’s
directors and their close family members.

The Group will continue to maintain a balance on yield relative
to risk and cautious approach to the credit control of its margin
financing business.
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ITEHREEREEEBRRETHT
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Corporate finance

The Group’s corporate finance business focused on the provision
of financial advisory services to listed companies in Hong
Kong. During the year ended 31 March 2022, it completed 4
financial advisory transactions (2021: 4). The operation reported
a segment profit of approximately HK$2.4 million for the year
(2021: HK$0.6 million).

Assets Management

During the year ended 31 March 2022, this division reported
a profit of approximately HK$2.1 million (2021: HK$nil)
mainly attributable to the assets management related income of
approximately HK$2.4 million (2021: HK$nil) received during
the year.

Investments

The Group held an investment portfolio mainly consisted
of investment funds with total fair values of approximately
HK$55.9 million (2021: HK$nil). For the year under review,
this division reported a profit of approximately HK$0.9 million
(2021: HKS$nil), mainly attributable to the fair value gain on

investments.

Outlook

With the efforts of governments all over the world, the
COVID-19 vaccination plan has been successfully implemented.
The number of people vaccinated against COVID-19 is
increasing continuously and the epidemic seems to be under
control. Global economic activity has recovered in an orderly
manner during the period and people also expect that border
restrictions will be relaxed.

Since the emergence of COVID-19, people have become
accustomed to virtual and online consumption. In order to keep
pace with the times, the Group has upgraded its securities service
mobile application and added multiple functions such as remote
account opening and E-IPO application, aiming to enhance the
user experience of customers.

In May 2021, the Group has moved the headquarter to new
premises. The new headquarter are located in a prime financial
district with three-storey commercial units and an office unit
with total gross floor areas of 27,808 square feet. The low rise
commercial units with large outdoor LED display screen, which
would significantly enhance the Group’s corporate brand and
image which are important to increase customers’ perception in
the securities industry. In order to enhance our corporate image
and attract financial talents to join our Group, the Group has
invested in marketing and advertising, such as production of TV
advertising, which have been broadcast on TV and on the LED
display screen on the exterior wall of our headquarters.
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ITEHREEREEBFMRRETT

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Dealing with the future challenges, the management of the
Group would review and adjust business strategies on regular
basis with a prudent and balanced risk management approach.
The management of the Group remains cautiously optimistic
about the business development and overall performance of
the Group in the future. The Group is endeavoring to render
comprehensive services to our affluent and high-net-worth clients
in order to maintain our clients’ confidence and loyalty. The
Group will also continue to recruit and train financial talents
to provide high quality financial services to our clients. Given
our lean and efficient organization structure, stable clients base,
strong track record and solid business fundamentals, the Group
is poised to expand its horizons and scale new heights in the
years to come in order to continue maximizing returns and value

for all shareholders.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Financial Resources and Gearing Ratio

Equity attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$4,338.0 million as at 31 March 2022 (2021:
HK$4,021.0 million), representing an increase of approximately
HK$317.0 million or 7.9% over that of last financial year end.
The increase was mainly attributable to the profit for the year net

of dividend distributed.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s net current assets amounted
to HK$4,019.2 million (2021: HK$3,993.8 million), and its
liquidity as represented by current ratio (current assets/current
liabilities) was 8.56 times (2021: 6.29 times). The increase in
current ratio was mainly due to the increase in bank balances and

decrease of accounts payable.

Bank balances and cash on hand amounted to HK$1,226.6
million (2021: HK$328.2 million). The increase in bank
balances and cash on hand was mainly due to the cash inflows in
respect of the repayment from accounts receivable and disposal of

subsidiaries.

The Group had no bank borrowings as at 31 March 2022 (2021:
HKS$nil) and its unutilised banking facilities as at the end of
the year were approximately HK$530 million (2021: HK$740
million), which were mainly secured by charges over the Group’s
clients’ pledged securities. The Group’s gearing ratio (total
borrowing over equity attributable to owners of the Company) as
at 31 March 2022 was zero (2021: nil).
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ITEHREEREEEBRRETHT
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The number of issued shares of Company amounted to
2,500,000,000 shares as at 31 March 2022 (2021: 2,500,000,000
shares).

The business activities of the Group are not exposed to any
significant exchange risks.

The Group had no material contingent liabilities at the end of
the year.

Charges on Group Assets

As at 31 March 2022, there was no charges on group assets. As
at 31 March 2021, leaschold land and building of the Group
classified as assets held for sale with a carrying amount of
HK$100.7 million were pledged for a banking facility granted to
the Group.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries,
Associates and Jointly Controlled Entities

On 18 March 2021, the Group entered into a sales and purchase
agreement with Get Nice Development Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Get Nice Holdings Limited (“GN Holdings”), to
dispose of 100% of its equity interests in NobleNet Limited
(“NobleNet”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, and its
wholly-owned subsidiary, Grace Field Limited (“Grace Field”)
for a consideration of HK$454,575,000 (“The Disposal”).
Details of the disposal have been disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 18 March 2021 and circular dated 29 April
2021. The Disposal was approved by the Sharcholders of the
Company at an extraordinary general meeting held on 21 May
2021.

The Disposal has been completed on 24 May 2021. The Group
has recorded gain on disposal of approximately HK$338,817,000
as a result of the Disposal.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no other material
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates or jointly
controlled entity completed during the year ended 31 March
2022.

Employee Information

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had 76 (2021: 73) full time
employees. The Group’s employees were remunerated according
to their performance, working experience and market conditions.
The total amount of remuneration cost of employees of the
Group for the year was HK$24.5 million (2021: HK$22.0
million). The Group provides employee benefits including
mandatory provident fund, discretionary share options and
performance bonus to its staff.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors recommended a final dividend of HK3 cents per
share, together with the interim dividend paid during the year,
amounting to total dividends of HKG6 cents per share for this

financial year.

The final dividend will be payable on or about 8 September
2022 to sharcholders of the Company whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on 2 September 2022.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed on the
following time periods during which no transfer of shares of the

Company will be registered:

For attendance to 2022
Annual General

: 22 August 2022 — 25 August 2022,
both dates inclusive

Meeting

For entitlement to final
dividend

: 1 September 2022 — 2 September
2022, both dates inclusive (Record
date being 2 September 2022)

In order to qualify for attendance to the Company’s 2022
Annual General Meeting which is scheduled to be held on 25
August 2022, Thursday and/or entitlement to the final dividend,
all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s registrar, Tricor Secretaries
Limited of Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong (if the transfer will be lodged before 15 August
2022) or 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road,
Admiralty, Hong Kong (if the transfer will be lodged on or after
15 August 2022), for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on the

following dates:

Events Last date of lodgment of transfer

documents

For attendance to 2022

Annual General

: 19 August 2022, Friday

Meeting

For entitlement to final

dividend

: 31 August 2022, Wednesday
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, I wish to express my gratitude to our
customers and shareholders for their continued support. I would
also like to thank your all our directors, the management team

and staff members for their hard work and dedicated service.

By Order of the Board

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
Hung Hon Man

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2022
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Shum Kin Wai, Frankie, aged 76, was appointed as our
executive Director and managing director on 24 September
2015. He is primarily responsible for the securities broking and
securities margin financing business. Before completion of the
spin-off of the Company from GN Holdings, Mr. Shum was the
managing director and an executive director of GN Holdings
since its listing in June 2002 until his resignation on 7 April
2016. Mr. Shum has over 35 years of experience in the securities

business.

Mr. Hung Sui Kwan, aged 52, was appointed as our executive
Director on 24 September 2015. He is also our chief executive
officer. Mr. Hung is primarily in charge of our Group’s overall
corporate strategy and the daily operations of our Group,
including business development and overall management.
Mr. Hung Sui Kwan joined GN Holdings in August 2000.
Mr. Hung Sui Kwan is also a responsible officer under the SFO
for the regulated activity “advising on corporate finance”. He
was an independent non-executive director of Silver Base Group
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 886, the company was on 5
May 2022 ordered to be wound up by the Grand Court of the
Cayman Islands and joint official liquidators were appointed)
from 6 March 2008 to 31 March 2022, the issued shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Hung Sui Kwan holds a bachelor of science degree from
the University of Hong Kong and is a fellow member of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United
Kingdom and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Hung is a nephew of Mr. Hung Hon

Man, our non-executive Director and the chairman of our Board.

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Hung Hon Man, aged 68, was appointed as our Director
on 31 August 2015 and was re-designated as our non-executive
Director on 24 September 2015. He was appointed as the
chairman of our Board on 16 March 2016 and is a member of
both the remuneration and nomination committees. Mr. Hung
Hon Man is also the chairman and an executive director of GN
Holdings and the founder of GN Holdings. He is responsible
for the formulation of corporate strategy and the envisaging the
future direction of GN Holdings. He possesses over 27 years
of experience in the securities industry in Hong Kong. Being
the non-executive Director and chairman of the Company,
Mr. Hung Hon Man takes a consultative and supervisory role
in matters concerning the Group and is not involved in the

day-to-day management of the Group.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Ms. Ng Yau Kuen, Carmen, aged 46, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 16 March 2016. She is
also the chairman of the remuneration, nomination and audit
committees. Ms. Ng had worked at PricewaterhouseCoopers
Hong Kong for 14 years in the Financial Services Assurance
Department. Since leaving PricewaterhouseCoopers, she has
been a certified public accountant (Practising). Ms. Ng holds a
bachelor’s degree of business administration from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong; and a master’s degree of business
administration and a master’s degree of laws in corporate and
financial law from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology and the University of Hong Kong, respectively.
Ms. Ng is currently a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. She was an independent
non-executive director in each of Koala Financial Group Limited
(stock code 8226) from 12 April 2019 to 27 February 2021 and
Simplicity Holding Limited (stock code: 8367) from 29 January
2018 to 27 July 2021. Ms. Ng is currently an independent
non-executive director of Flat Glass Group Co., Ltd. (stock
code: 6865). All of the above companies are listed on the
Stock Exchange in Hong Kong; and she is also an independent
non-executive director of Medi Lifestyle Limited (formerly
known as IEV Holdings Limited) a company listed on the
Singapore Stock Exchange.

Mr. Cheung Chi Kong, Ronald, aged 48, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 16 March 2016. He has
been involved in the financial and securities industries for over
22 years and has extensive experience working in mutual funds,
securities brokerage and insurance brokerage financial services
business with financial institutions in Hong Kong. Mr. Cheung
is currently a responsible officer of PC Securities Limited. He
holds a bachelor’s degree in mathematics from the University of

Waterloo.

Mr. Chan Ka Kit, aged 52, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 16 March 2016. He has been involved
in the financial and insurance industries since 2001 and has
extensive operational and management experience in mutual
funds and insurance brokerage financial services business with
financial institutions in Hong Kong. Mr. Chan is currently a
director of a private insurance broker in Hong Kong. Mr. Chan
holds an executive master’s degree in business administration and

is a Certified Financial Planner.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Ng Hon Sau, Larry, aged 53, is a responsible officer and

a director of our major subsidiaries namely Get Nice Securities
Limited (“GNS”) and Get Nice Futures Company Limited
(“GNFCL”). Being the Group’s chief operating officer, Mr. Ng
is primarily responsible for supervising the securities and futures
broking and securities margin financing businesses. Mr. Ng
joined GN Holdings in July 2001. He has had over 29 years of
experience in the financial industry, with 27 years in securities
and futures and several years in corporate banking. Mr. Ng holds
a bachelor of science degree in finance from California State

University, Fresno located in the United States.

Mr. Cheng Wai Ho, aged 58, is a responsible officer and a
director of our major subsidiaries namely GNS and GNFCL.
Mr. Cheng takes up the management role in the supervision of
the human resources department of the Group. He also oversees
our overall implementation of registration procedures to ensure
all relevant staff are properly registered under the SFO. Prior to
joining GN Holdings, he had been a dealing director of three
other securities firms for more than six years. He is a member of

Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute.

Mr. Ko Yat Fei, aged 32, is the financial controller of the
Group and company secretary of the Company. He has more
than 10 years of experience in finance, auditing and corporate
advisory. He is responsible for managing finance and compliance
matters within the Group. Mr. Ko is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a member of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales,
an associate member of the Hong Kong Chartered Governance
Institute and an associate member of The Chartered Governance
Institute in the United Kingdom. He holds a master’s degree
in corporate governance from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and a bachelor’s degree in commerce (honours) in

accounting from Hong Kong Shue Yan University.

Mr. Kam Wing Ho, aged 43, and is the head of information
technology department of our Group. He is responsible for the
development and supervision of the information technology
system of our Group. He joined GN Holdings in January 2011.
He has over 17 years working experience in the information and
technology field. Mr. Kam holds degree of bachelor of science in

computer science from Victoria University, Australia.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance
Report in the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31
March 2022.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to the establishment of good
corporate governance practices and procedures. This is with the
view of being a transparent and responsible organisation which
is open and accountable to the Company’s sharecholders. The
Directors believe that good corporate governance practices are
increasingly important for maintaining and promoting investors’

confidence.

An explanation of how the principles of the Corporate
Governance Code were put into practice during the year ended
31 March 2022 is set out below.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
COMPLIANCE

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Board is of the
opinion that the Company has applied the principles of, and
complied with, the applicable code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board provides leadership, approves policies, strategies and
plans, and oversees their implementation to further the healthy
growth of the Company, in the interests of its shareholders.
The Board takes responsibility for all major matters of the
Company, including the approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, financial information, appointment of

Directors and other significant financial and operational matters.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Company are delegated to the chief executive officer
(“CEO”) and the senior management. The delegated functions
and work tasks are periodically reviewed by the Board. Approval
must be obtained from the Board prior to any significant

transactions entered by the abovementioned officers.

ERERAEAEHBE T F=H
= HIRAFE 2 AR R B AR IR

4o

TERERER

Ay A B AT RAE A SE A IR R RO
Fe oo DA — A HL 32 W RE NI 4% <7 A B AT
(1 4 3 > SR 2% ] BER B A 2 A R o
EHAG > R A SR WO B A R
B EHEFOH AEZ .

HBREE X2 -4 =H=+—H1 14
A A 9% B A 224 IR ST R 22 DRI Y B Al
Ty A R 3 e

WEF - "H=-H=+—HILFE &
=8 s NN Y - | A i s e L
B 10U A 2B IR S 0 B 2 s MG
j( o

Exg

e A AEEOR - R B
ol BB % A RO B > DUfE B A Y A AR
R FFEHBR LG -  EETFAK
AAF A ERFIH > A FHM LS
I A B R IE - R O - R AR R
ERE R AR M ER - EHRA
DA R H A B R A B I O o

ARATFZHEEM - 1T 8 E T AT
BURE (TTECAR)) R E i g A | -
i R e S TARAT B & & MIMnf o Balki A
BRTSIAT AR H R 5 o il b JE M o g e -

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 £$F ¢ GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED &€ mEBER A A

15



16

ERERKRSE

AN
IR
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS - continued

The Board has the full support of the senior management to
discharge its responsibilities. In addition, the Board has also
established three Board Committees and has delegated various

responsibilities to them as set out in their terms of reference.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board currently comprises six members, half of
these Directors are non-executive and independent of the
management. The Board is collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Company by directing and supervising the
Group’s affair. The Board reflects the necessary balance of skills
and experience appropriate and diversity of perspective for the
requirements of the Group’s businesses. As at the date of this
annual report, two of the Directors are executives, namely,
Mr. Shum Kin Wai, Frankie (Managing Director) and Mr. Hung
Sui Kwan (CEO), one of them is non-executive Director,
Mr. Hung Hon Man (Chairman of the Board, Member of
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee) and
three of them are independent non-executive Directors, namely,
Ms. Ng Yau Kuen, Carmen (Chairman of Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee),
Mr. Chan Ka Kit (Member of Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee), and Mr. Cheung Chi
Kong, Ronald (Member of Audit Committee, Remuneration

Committee and Nomination Committee).

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Board has at all times
met the requirements of rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive directors and at least one of them possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related

financial management expertise.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMPOSITION - continued

Each of the Directors’ respective biographical details is set out in
the “Biographical details of Directors and senior management”
of this annual report. The Board members have no financial,
business, family or other relationships with each other save for
that Mr. Hung Sui Kwan (CEO) is the nephew of Mr. Hung

Hon Man (Chairman of the Board and non-executive Director).

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Board has at all times
adopted the board diversity policy. It sets out the approach to
achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in order to enhance
its effectiveness. The Company endeavors to ensure that the
Board has the appropriate balance of skills, experience, expertise
and diversity of perspectives. The appointments of board
members will continue to be made on merit basis, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard
for the benefits of diversity of the Board. Pursuant to the board
diversity policy, the Company secks to achieve board diversity
through the consideration of several factors, including but not
limited to gender, age, culture and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
The Board will set up and review the measurable objectives from
time to time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the

progress made towards achieving those objectives.

The Board has revised and adopted the board diversity policy
on 26 April 2019 and will review from time to time the
implementation of the policy, as appropriate, to ensure its

continued effectiveness.
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DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance
to indemnify its Directors and officers against liabilities arising
from corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed
on an annual basis ensuring that the Directors and officers are

adequately protected against potential legal liabilities.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as directors of the
Company and the conduct, business activities and development

of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion of
his appointment. This is to ensure the new employee possesses
an appropriate understanding of the business and operations of
the Company and has full awareness of Director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory

requirements.

Directors are expected to participate in appropriate continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains

informed and relevant.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, relevant reading
materials including regulatory updates and seminar handouts
have been provided to the Directors for their reference and

studying.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND

EERIREXRE-F

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT - continued
A summary of their records of training during the financial year #H A BB A B Al Rl sk AR

is as follows:

Training on corporate
governance, regulatory
development and other

relevant topics

BBLEXER -

EERRR

H{th 458 =B 2 Z 5
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Shum Kin Wai, Frankie AR A v
Mr. Hung Sui Kwan T i 3 5 A 4
Non-Executive Director FHITES
Mr. Hung Hon Man S B e v
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIYFHITES
Ms. Ng Yau Kuen, Carmen E RN ER gum 4
Mr. Chan Ka Kit e e 4
Mr. Cheung Chi Kong, Ronald sRAETLAEAE 4
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BOARD PRACTICES

Pursuant to the Code provision A.l.1(now renumbered as
C.5.1), the Board should meet regularly, and board meetings
should be held at least four times each year to discuss the
Group’s business development, operation and financial
performance. Notice of at least 14 days is given to all
Directors for all regular Board meetings to give all Directors
an opportunity to attend. All regular Board meetings adhere
to a formal agenda in which a schedule of matters is addressed
to the Board and all Directors have the opportunity to include
matters in the agenda for Board meetings. All Directors have
access to Board papers and related materials and are provided
with adequate information which enables the Board to make an
informed decision on the matters to be discussed and considered
at the Board meetings. Minutes of Board meetings are kept
by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection at any

reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

To facilitate the decision-making process, the Directors are free
to have full and timely access to the management for enquiries
and to obrtain all relevant information and the Directors can seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at

the Company’s expense, upon making request to the Board.

During the year, all Directors have been provided with monthly
updates by the Group’s management, giving a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s performance, position,
recent developments and prospects in sufficient detail to keep
them abreast of the Group’s affairs and facilitate them to
discharge their duties under the relevant requirements of the

Listing Rules.
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BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEE
MEETINGS

During the year, 6 Board meetings and 2 general meetings have

been held. Directors may participate either in person or through

EXERESEZEEER

T AAEJE > AN T BRAT /S R R ek
MR K@ - EH Al B aEmE T4

electronic means of communications. Details of the attendance A A ek o 2 E kB R
of the Directors in the meetings are as follows: M
Audit  Nomination  Remuneration

Board committee committee committee AGM EGM

Exe ERZEE RYZEe  §HZEE RRBAFAE RRGHAE
Executive Directors HIES
Mr. Shum Kin Wai Frankie AR 6/6 N/ATRE N/ATRHE A NIATR 1/1 1/1
M. Hung Sui Kwan W s R 66 NARER  NAKER  NARER 0/1 1N
Non-Executive Director FHTES
M. Hung Hon Man HE L 516 NIARE 12 112 1N 1N
Independent Non-Executive Directors ~ BUFHTES
Ms. Ng Yau Kuen, Carmen RYELL 6/6 0 0 i) il 1N
Mr. Chan Ka Kit BARREE 6/6 20 0 W) 1 11
M. Cheung Chi Kong, Ronald REILEE 6/6 0 0 i) 1 1N

The Company Secretary of the Company is responsible for
keeping minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings.
Draft minutes are normally circulated to Directors for comment
within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final version

is open for Directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction,
which involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder
or a Director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board
at a duly convened Board meeting. The Company’s articles of
association (the “Articles”) also contains provisions requiring
Directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the
quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which such

Directors or any of their associates have a material interest.
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APPOINTMENTS AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

All Directors were appointed for fixed term of three years
commencing from 8 April 2020. They are subject to retirement

by the rotation under the provision of the Articles.

According to the Article 108(a), at each annual general meeting
of the Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being
(or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from

office by rotation.

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company,
Mr. Shum Kin Wai, Frankie and Mr. Hung Sui Kwan will retire
by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-

election.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors. All
the Directors have confirmed, following a specific enquiry by the
Company that they have complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code during the year.

The Company has adopted written guidelines, “Code for
securities transactions by relevant employees”, on no fewer
exacting terms than the Model Code for securities transactions
by relevant employees who are likely to be in possession of

unpublished price-sensitive information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the written guidelines by the

employees was noted by the Company.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The roles of the Company’s Chairman and CEO are
complementary, but importantly, they are distinct and separate

with a clear division of responsibilities.

Mr. Hung Hon Man (Chairman), provides leadership and
is responsible for the effective functioning of the Board in
accordance with good corporate governance practice. With
the support of the senior management, the Chairman is also
responsible for ensuring that the Directors receive adequate,
complete and reliable information in a timely manner and

appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board meetings.

Mr. Hung Sui Kwan (CEO), focuses on implementing
objectives, policies and strategies approved and delegated by
the Board. He oversees the Company’s day-to-day management
and operations. He is also responsible for developing strategic
plans and formulating the company practices and procedures,
business objectives, and risk assessment for the Board’s approval.
Mr. Hung Sui Kwan is a nephew of Mr. Hung Hon Man, the
Chairman of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Independent non-executive Directors have played a significant
role in the Board by bringing their independent judgment at the

Board meetings and scrutinising the Group’s performance.

Their views carry significant weight in the Board’s decisions,
in particular, they bring an impartial view to bear on issues of
the Group’s strategy, performance and control. All independent
non-executive Directors possess extensive academic, professional
and industry expertise and management experience and
have provided their professional advices to the Board. The
independent non-executive Directors provide independent advice
on the Group’s business strategy, results and management so that
all interests of Shareholders can be taken into account and the

interests of the Company and its Shareholders can be protected.

During the year, the Board (at all times) met the minimum
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
at least three independent non-executive Directors, and complied
with the requirement that these should include one such Director
with appropriate professional qualifications of accounting or
related financial management expertise. Ms. Ng Yau Kuen,
Carmen has the appropriate professional qualifications and

experience in financial matters required.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS - continued

Pursuant to the requirement in the Listing Rules, the Company
has received a written confirmation from each of the independent

non-executive Director of his/her independence to the Company.

The Board considers that the three independent non-executive
Directors are independent in character and judgement and they
also meet the independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the

Listing Rules.

DIVIDEND POLICY
The Company has adopted a dividend policy that, in

recommending or declaring dividends, the Company shall
maintain adequate and sufficient cash reserves for future growth.
The Board has the full discretion to declare and distribute
dividends to the Shareholders, and any final dividend for a
financial year will be subject to Shareholders’ approval. In
proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also take into
account, among other things, the Group’s general financial
position, capital and debt level, future cash requirements and
availability of business operations, business strategies and future
development needs, any restrictions on payment of dividends
and any other factors the Board may consider relevant. Any
payment of the dividend by the Company is also subject to
any restrictions under the Articles and all applicable laws and

regulations.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD AND
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The overall management of the Group’s operation is vested in
the Board. The Board takes overall responsibility to oversee
all major matters of the Group, including the formulation and
approval of all policy matters, overall strategic development of
the Group, monitoring and controlling the Group’s operation
and financial performance, internal control and risk management
systems, and monitoring of the performance of the senior
management. The Directors must make decisions objectively in

the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Group are delegated to the senior management of the Group.
The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed.
Pursuant to the levels of authority approved by the Board, the
senior management executes day-to-day operations unless the
subject matter exceeds the authority granted by the Board or
relates to any matters specifically reserved to the Board, they

would seek approval from the Board.

The Board has established (i) Nomination Committee (ii)
Remuneration Committee and (iii) Audit Committee, with
defined terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board
committees which explain their respective roles and the authority
delegated to them by the Board are posted on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Board committees
are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties
and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice and other assistance in appropriate

circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD AND
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD - continued

Nomination Committee

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are (i)
to review the structure, size and composition of the Board
on a regular basis; (ii) to recommend to the Board suitable
candidates for directorship after consideration of the nominees’
independence (if applicable) and quality in order to ensure the
fairness and transparency of all nominations; and (iii) to assess
the independence of independent non-executive Directors.
In identifying suitable director candidates and making such
recommendations to the Board, the Nomination Committee
would also take into account various aspects of a candidate,
including but not limited to, his/her education background,
professional experience, experience with the relevant industry

and past directorships.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises four members,
being Ms. Ng Yau Kuen, Carmen (Chairman of Nomination
Committee), Mr. Hung Hon Man, Mr. Chan Ka Kit and
Mr. Cheung Chi Kong, Ronald.

The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year. There
were two meetings held during the year ended 31 March 2022.
The major work performed by the Nomination Committee for
the year ended 31 March 2022 is set out below:

(i) assessed the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

(ii) reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity of
the Board; and

(iii) recommended the re-election of Directors at the annual

general meeting.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD AND
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD - continued
Nomination Committee — continued

Nomination Policy

On 26 April 2019, the Board has adopted the nomination
policy (“Nomination Policy”) which sets out the nomination
criteria and procedures for the Company to appoint additional
directors or re-elect directors. The Nomination Policy can assist
the Company in achieving board diversity and enhancing the

effectiveness of the Board and its corporate governance standard.

When assessing the suitability of a candidate, factors such as
the reputation, integrity, accomplishment and experience,
commitment in respect of sufficient time, interest and attention
to the Group’s business will be taken into consideration as a
whole. In addition, a range of diverse perspectives, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skill and knowledge would be
considered. In the case of independent non-executive Directors,
the candidates must further satisfy the independence criteria set

out in the Listing Rules.

Remuneration Committee

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the overall remuneration
policy and structure relating to all Directors and senior
management of the Company; to make recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights, compensation payments and any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment and

ensure none of the Directors determine their own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises four
members, being Ms. Ng Yau Kuen, Carmen (Chairman of
Remuneration Committee), Mr. Hung Hon Man, Mr. Chan Ka
Kit and Mr. Cheung Chi Kong, Ronald.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD AND
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD - continued

Remuneration Committee — continued

The primary aim of the remuneration policy is to enable the
Company to motivate and retain executive Directors and senior
management by comparing their performance against corporate
goals and objectives when determining appropriate compensation
for them. The principal elements of the remuneration package
include basic salary, discretionary bonus, retirement scheme
contributions and share options. No Director or any of his/her
associates should be involved in any decision as to his/her own
remuneration. In determining guidelines for each compensation
element, the Company refers to the comparable remuneration

standard in the market.

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year. There
were two meetings held during the year ended 31 March 2022.
The major work performed by the Remuneration Committee for
the year ended 31 March 2022 is set out below:

(i) reviewed the remuneration of Directors and senior

management of the Group; and

(ii) reviewed the remuneration package included in the
renewed service contracts with all Directors and made

recommendation to the Board.

According to the code provision B.1.5 (now renumbered as
E.1.8) of the Code, the annual remuneration (including bonus)
of the members of the senior management of the Group by band
for the year ended 31 March 2022 is set out below:
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD AND
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD - continued

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the external auditors and has authority to raise
questions regarding the resignation or dismissal of the auditors;
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process, internal
control and risk management systems and to review the Group’s
interim and annual consolidated financial statements. The
Audit Committee has access to and maintains an independent

communication with the external auditor and management.

The Board has also delegated the corporate governance function
to the Audit Committee. The major responsibilities are to review
the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance
and training and continuous professional development of

Directors and senior management.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three members,
all of whom are independent non-executive Directors. The
members are Ms. Ng Yau Kuen, Carmen, Mr. Chan Ka Kit and
Mr. Cheung Chi Kong, Ronald, all of whom are not involved in
the day-to-day management of the Company. Ms. Ng Yau Kuen,
Carmen who has appropriate professional qualifications and
experience in accounting matters, was appointed as the chairman

of the Audit Committee.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD AND
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD - continued

Audit Committee — continued

The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year. There were two
meetings held during the year ended 31 March 2022. The major
work performed by the Audit Committee for the year ended 31
March 2022 is set out below:

(i) reviewed the annual consolidated financial statements and
the announcement of the final results for the year ended 31
March 2021;

(ii) reviewed and discussed with the management about risk

management and effectiveness of internal control;

(iii) reviewed the connected transactions and continuing

connected transactions of the Group;

(iv) reviewed the Company’s compliance with the Code and

relevant disclosures;
(v) reviewed the re-appointment of external auditors;

(vi) reviewed the non-competition undertaking from GN
Holdings; and

(vii) reviewed the interim consolidated financial statements and
the announcement of the interim results for the period
ended 30 September 2021.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required under

the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2022.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

FINANCIAL REPORTING - continued

Directors’ responsibility

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company are to give a true and
fair view and comply with all applicable regulatory requirements
and accounting standards. In preparing the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2022, the Directors
have selected appropriate accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are prudent
and reasonable. The Directors are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern as at 31 March 2022. Accordingly, the Directors
have prepared the consolidated financial statements for the year

ended 31 March 2022 on a going concern basis.

The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation of
annual financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the Group’s financial position, its financial performance, and
cash flows for the year. Management provides the Board with
management accounts and updates on a monthly basis, with a
view to giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group’s performance, financial position, and prospects to enable
the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties.
In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2022, the Board:

(i) adopted HKFRSs, which conform to the International

Reporting Standards in all material respects;

(ii) selected suitable accounting policies and applied them

consistently;

(iii) made prudent and reasonable judgements and estimates;

and

(iv) ensured that the financial statements were prepared on a

going concern basis.

In financial year ended 31 March 2022, the annual and interim
results were published within three months and two months,
respectively, after the end of the relevant period to provide

stakeholders with transparent and timely financial information.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING - continued

Independent auditor’s responsibility

The responsibilities of Mazars CPA Limited, Certified
Public Accountants, the Company’s external auditor, on the
consolidated financial statements are set out in the section
headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this annual report on

pages 55 to 61.

Independent auditor’s remuneration

For the year ended 31 March 2022, Mazars CPA Limited, the

Company’s external auditor, provided the following services to
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2022 2021
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HK$’000 HK$’000

FET T

Audit services SN RS 1,360 1,360

Taxation services T 65 AR s 25 24
Professional services in relation to a B 45 A B &) SO 2 BEERRTE

composite offer document - 68

Total Mt 1,385 1,452

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

The Company has received an annual confirmation from GN
Holdings that GN Holdings has complied with the terms of the
deed of non-competition undertaking (“Deed”) dated 16 March
2016 in favour of the Group as referred to pages 193 to 195
in the prospectus of the Company dated 24 March 2016. The
Company has also adopted appropriate procedures to monitor

that the Deed is being observed.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company, to
the best of their knowledge and beliefs, are of the view that GN
Holdings has complied with the terms of the Deed for the year
ended 31 March 2022 and has not entered into any transaction
with the intent to breach the terms of the Deed during the year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the establishment
and maintenance of sound and effective risk management and
internal control systems to safeguard the Group’s corporate

interests.

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems
are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss; to manage prudently but
not completely eliminate the risk of system failure. Systems and
procedures are put in place to identify, manage and control the

risks of different businesses and activities.

The internal control system is to maintain proper accounting
records and to comply with relevant laws and regulations. The
Group has its independent audit function, assisting the Board
and management to conduct regular and independent review to
ensure a sound internal control system is being implemented,
maintained, and relevant regulatory requirements are complied
with. On a yearly basis, the internal audit personnel will present
a report to the Audit Committee relating to operational,
financial and compliance aspects and will alert the management
on the audit review findings or irregularities, if any, advise them
on the implementation of necessary steps and actions to enhance

the internal controls of the Group.

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Audit Committee,
as delegated by the Board, has reviewed the report provided
by the Group’s internal audit personnel and is satisfied the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management. It has also considered the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the accounting and
financial reporting functions and their training programs and

budgets.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Board has adopted
its risk management policy and risk appetite statement which
clearly defines the types of risk that the Group is prepared to

pursue, retain or tolerate. The risk management process includes:

(i)  Setting objectives, identifying ownership of risks, and risks

that could affect the achievement of objectives;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL - continued

(if) analysing the likelihood and impact of risks and evaluate the
risk portfolio accordingly; and

(iii) considering the risk responses and ensure effective
communication to the Board/senior management and
ongoing monitor the residual risks (if any). A risk register
has been maintained as a tool for documenting risks and

actions to manage each risk on an ongoing basis.

During the year, the senior management is responsible for
maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
control. The risk control is implemented to minimise the risks to
which the Group is exposed to during the day-to-day operation
of business. The senior management designs, implements and
maintains the risk control to safeguard the assets of the Group.
It also involves making decisions regarding which risks are

acceptable and how to address those that are not.

The Board has confirmed that a review of the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems has been

conducted and considers them effective and adequate.

DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group acknowledges its responsibilities to ensure potential
inside information being captured and confidentiality of such
information being maintained until consistent and timely
disclosures are made in accordance with the Listing Rules. The
Group has an inside information policy with the procedures and
internal controls for the handling and dissemination of inside

information as follows:

e the Group conducts its affairs with close regard to the
disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules as well
as the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Insider Information”
published by the Securities and Futures Commission of
Hong Kong in June 2012;

e the Group has implemented its policy on fair disclosure by
pursuing board, non-exclusive distribution of information
to the public through public announcements and the

Company’s website;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION -
continued

e the access of information is restricted to a limited number
of employees on a need-to-know basis such that employees
who are in possession of inside information are fully
conversant with their obligations to preserve confidentiality;

and

e the Group has established and implemented procedures for
responding to external enquiries about the Group’s affairs
and only designated persons are authorised to speak on
behalf of the Company when communicating with external

parties such as the media, analysts or investors.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ko Yat Fei is the company secretary of the Company
and a full-time employee of the Company. He has day-to-day
knowledge of the Company and is responsible for advising the
Board on corporate governance matters. Mr. Ko confirmed that
he has complied with all the required qualifications, experience

and training requirements under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining clear,
timely and effective communication with shareholders of the
Company and investors. Therefore, the Group is committed to
maintaining a high degree of transparency to ensure that the
investors and the shareholders of the Company receive accurate,
clear, comprehensive and timely information about the Group
through the publication of annual reports, announcements and

circulars.

The Company also publishes all corporate correspondences on
the Company’s website www.getnicefg.com.hk. Shareholders and
investors may also email their queries to the Company’s email
address: investor@getnice.com.hk, which will be handled by
the Company’s Investor Relations team. The Board maintains
regular dialogues with investors and analysts to keep them
informed of the Group’s strategy, operations, management and

plans.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS -
continued

The Directors and the members of the various board committees
attend, and answer questions raised at the general meetings of
the Company. Separate resolutions are proposed at the general

meetings on each substantially separate issue.

The chairman of the general meetings of the Company explains
the procedures for conducting a poll before putting a resolution
to vote. The results of the voting by poll are then published on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

How shareholders can convene an extraordinary general

meeting

Pursuant to the Articles, any one or more sharcholders holding,
at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company and carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary of the Company by mail at the Company’s principal
office address in Hong Kong, to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be
held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the

Company.

The procedures by which enquiries may be put to the Board
and sufficient contact details to enable these enquiries to be

properly directed

Shareholders may send their enquiries requiring the Board’s
attention to the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal
office address at G/F-3/F., Cosco Tower, Grand Millennium
Plaza, 183 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong. The Company
Secretary forwards communications relating to matters within
the Board’s purview to the Board and communications relating
to ordinary business matters, such as suggestions, and inquiries
to the CEO.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS - continued

Procedures and sufficient contact details for putting forward

proposals at shareholders’ meetings

Shareholders are welcome to suggest proposals relating to the
operations, strategy and/or management of the Group to be
discussed at shareholders’ meeting. Proposal shall be sent to
the Board by written requisition. Shareholders who wish to put
forward a proposal should convene an extraordinary general
meeting by following the procedures as set out in paragraph
headed “How shareholders can convene an extraordinary general

.
meeting” above.

Constitutional Documents

During the year ended 31 March 2022, there had been no

significant change in the Company’s constitutional documents.
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EEEHRE
DIRECTORS' REPORT

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) have pleasure
in presenting their annual report and the audited consolidated

financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company whose shares
are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited since 8 April 2016. The principal activities of
the Group are engaged in the provision of financial services,
including securities dealing and broking, futures and options
broking, underwriting and placements, securities margin
financing, corporate finance services and asset management
services. Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in

note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022 are

set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income on page 62.

The Directors proposes to recommend, at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday,
25 August 2022 (the “2022 AGM”), a final dividend of HK3
cents per share to the sharecholders on the register of members on
2 September 2022.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years ended 31 March 2022 is set out
on page 176 of this annual report. This summary does not form
part of the audited consolidated financial statements in this

report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company

were entered into or existed during the year.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 18 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements. There
is no movement in the share capital of the Company during the

year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme of the Company (with
details as disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements), no equity-linked agreements were entered into by
the Company that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares or that require the Company to enter into any agreements
that will or may result in the Company issuing shares during the

year or subsisted at the end of the year.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages

65 to 67.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available
to sharcholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s

shares.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
As of 31 March 2022, the reserves of the Company

available for distribution to shareholders were approximately
HK$2,155,869,000 (2021: HK$2,160,440,000) which
comprised share premium, other reserve, contributed surplus and

retained profits.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2022 and up to

the date of this report, are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Shum Kin Wai, Frankie (Managing Director)
Mr. Hung Sui Kwan (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-Executive Director:

Mr. Hung Hon Man (Chairman)
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DIRECTORS - continued

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. Cheung Chi Kong, Ronald
Mr. Chan Ka Kit
Ms. Ng Yau Kuen, Carmen

Each of the Directors will be subject to retirement and
re-election at annual general meeting in accordance with the

Articles.

In accordance with Article 108(a) of the Articles of Association,
at each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for
the time being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-third,
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
(including those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. A retiring

Director shall be eligible for re-election.

Accordingly, Mr. Shum Kin Wai, Frankie and Mr. Hung Sui
Kwan will retire as executive Directors by rotation at the 2022

AGM and they, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at
the 2022 AGM.

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF
DIRECTORS

Upon specific enquiry by the Company and following
confirmations from the Directors, save as otherwise set out
in this report, there is no change in the information of the
Directors required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1)
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on the Stock Exchange.

Name of Director Details of changes

Ms. Ng Yau Kuen,
Carmen

Ms. Ng resigned as an independent
non-executive director of Simplicity
Holding Limited (stock code: 8367)
on 27 July 2021.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of

the Company are set out on pages 12 to 14 on the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors, non-executive Director and
independent non-executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company. The appointment of each of
the Directors is for a period of three years and shall continue
thereafter until terminated by not less than two months’ notice

in writing served by either party on the other.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors being proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a
service contract which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation other than statutory

compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the contracts described under the section headed
“Connected Transactions” and “Continuing Connected
Transactions” below, no contracts of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted

at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
On 18 March 2021, the Group entered into a sales and purchase

agreement with Get Nice Development Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of GN Holdings, to dispose of 100% of its equity
interests in NobleNet, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group,
and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Grace Field for a consideration
of HK$457,000,000 (subject to adjustment). Details of the
disposal have been disclosed in the Company’s announcement
dated 18 March 2021 and circular dated 29 April 2021. On 24
May 2021, the disposal was completed and NobleNet and Grace
Field ceased to be subsidiaries of the Company.

On 18 March 2021, GNS, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company as lessee and Tao Yun Company Limited, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of GN Holdings entered into
a tenancy agreement, for the leasing of the premises for a term
of three years commencing from 1 April 2021 at a monthly rent
of HK$600,000. Pursuant to HKFRS 16 “Leases”, the entering
into of the tenancy agreement as tenant by GNS will require
the Group to recognise a right-of-use asset on its consolidated
statement of financial position in connection with the lease.
As such, the lease will be regarded as an acquisition of asset
by the Group and constitutes a connected transaction for the
Company under the Listing Rules. The value of right-of-use asset
recognised by the Group under the tenancy agreement amounted
to approximately HK$20,896,000.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED

TRANSACTIONS

1. Brokerage services and margin loan financing
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1. BERBRARBTZERRE

Brokerage
commission
income paid

to the Group
for the year

Margin loan
interest paid
to the Group

for the year

Maximum
amount of
margin loan

for the year

Name of connected person BEALHR
Executive Directors: HITESE
Shum Kin Wai, Frankie and his associate e N SN+

SRS i YN

Hung Sui Kwan and his associate

Non-Executive Director: EHTES

Hung Hon Man and his associates UL ST R LT

Directors of certain subsidiaries AEEETHELR
of the Group: ES:

Ng Hon Sau, Larry and his associate PR Y SN | YN

Cheng Wai Ho and his associate At L H IR A+

Interest expense

During the year, the Group paid an interest expense to GN
Holdings amounting to approximately HK$38,000 for loan
facility.

License fee

During the year, the Group (i) received license fee from
Mr. Hung Hon Man’s associate amounting to HK$240,000
for office areas sharing; and (ii) paid license fee to Bowell
Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of GN
Holdings amounting to approximately HK$783,000.

Save for disclosure in (4) below, the Directors, including
the independent non-executive Directors, were of the
opinion that the transactions listed in (1), (2) and (3)
above were on normal commercial terms where all of the
applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio) on
an annual basis calculated under the Listing Rules were less
than 5% and the annual consideration was less than HK$3
million. The transactions were thus exempted from the
reporting, annual review, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant to Rule
14A.76(1)(c) of the Listing Rules.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS - continued

4. Brokerage services and margin loan financing provided

to Mr. Hung Hon Man and/or any controlled companies

On 1 November 2019, GNS and Mr. Hung Hon Man
(“Mr. Hung”) (a non-executive Director and the chairman
of the Board), entered into (i) the financing services
agreement (“Financing Services Agreement”), pursuant to
which GNS may (but not obliged to), upon request from
Mr. Hung and/or any controlled companies, provide or
procure any other company amongst the Group to provide
the margin financing facilities to Mr. Hung and/or, as the
case may be, the relevant controlled company from time
to time during the period from 15 December 2019 to 14
December 2022; and (ii) the broking services agreement
(“Broking Services Agreement”) pursuant to which GNS
may (but not obliged to), upon request from Mr. Hung
and/or any controlled companies, provide broking services
and services incidental thereto by GNS or any company
amongst the Group to Mr. Hung and/or any controlled
companies during the period from 15 December 2019 to
14 December 2022. Details of the terms and conditions
of the Financing Services Agreement and Broking Services

Agreement can be referred to the announcement dated 1

November 2019 and circular dated 22 November 2019.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, (i) the interest
income earned from Mr. Hung and his controlled
companies by GNS amounted to approximately
HK$13,051,000 (with annual cap set at HK$29,000,000
for year ended 31 March 2022); (ii) the maximum amount
of margin loan granted to Mr. Hung and his controlled
companies amounted to approximately HK$320,991,000
(with annual cap set at HK$330,000,000 for year ended 31
March 2022); and (iii) the brokerage commission earned
from Mr. Hung and his controlled companies by GNS
amounted to approximately HK$2,056,000 (with annual
cap set at HK$8,000,000 for year ended 31 March 2022).
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CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS - continued

4.

Brokerage services and margin loan financing provided
to Mr. Hung Hon Man and/or any controlled companies

— continued

Pursuant to rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the
independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed
that the above transactions have been entered into (i) in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (ii) on
normal commercial terms or better (as the case may be); and
(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them during the validity of the agreement periods on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the

Company’s shareholders as a whole.

The auditor of the Company has reviewed the
abovementioned continuing connected transactions
pursuant to rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules and advised
the Board in writing (with a copy provided to the Stock
Exchange) that the above transactions, nothing has come
to their attention that causes them to believe that: (i)
have not been approved by the Board; (ii) were not, in all
material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies
of the Group if the transactions involve the provisions of
goods or services by the Group; (iii) were not entered into,
in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing the transactions; and (iv) have

exceeded the their respective annual caps.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material related party transactions undertaken
by the Group in its normal course of business are set out in
note 39 to the consolidated financial statements. Those related
party transactions which constituted connected transactions/
continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules which
are set out in the section headed “Connected Transactions” and
“Continuing Connected Transactions” on pages 42 to 45, have
compiled with Chapter 14A.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 March 2022, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code contained in the Listing Rules, were as follows:

1. Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
of the Company

(Note)

BEALRS

A ETE H O SERS R AR AT 2 R B
N 58 5y 2 A% W5 R i B 3R M R
39 o MR BT RLAIE TS 2 B ZC 5 A
B A by 2 BN 58 b (3 © R A4 4k
FA2RASH B 5 | K [ BB AL 5
A ) RS BRI 14A % 2 BLE o

EERBETHRARZROER

RZFEZ A= —H REBEH R
B W1 28 3 5 2 A 2 W 2R T 5 A7 1 8 T i
P ek AR 45 i R B 2 A E ST JI 2R
WA T RS P 2 e AR IR AR
) R S AT BN B BT A AR E] R
R B O 28 F A8 o B B IR B BB XV R
90y ~ AR BR 03 S A o B A R T F

1. XATEREEIBIZEERZ
HE

Percentage
Number of of the issued
issued ordinary

shares held

share capital

of the Company

FFERT (GEXARABET
EBRRHA BAzED L
1,875,000,000 75.00%

Name of Director Capacity

ESpS REMtE

Mr. Hung Hon Man Held by controlled corporation
PEEE SR s A (i)

Note:  Mr. Hung Hon Man is deemed to be interested in (i)

50,309,829 ordinary shares of the Company which are
held by Honeylink Agents Limited (“Honeylink”), a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Island with
limited liability, the entire issued share capital of which
is beneficially owned by Mr. Hung Hon Man; and (ii)
1,824,690,171 ordinary shares of the Company which
are held by GN Holdings. Honeylink is interested
in 6,016,745,872 ordinary shares of GN Holdings,
representing 62.26% of issued share capital of GN
Holdings.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES - continued

2.

Long positions in the non-voting deferred shares of
HK$1.0 each of GNS, a wholly owned subsidiary of the

Company
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EERBETRASZ KRG MR

n

2. RAQAZEMNBLRAGHRZZE
REELET 2 EREEIRELER 2 5

B

Percentage

of the issued

Number of non-voting

non-voting deferred share

deferred of GNS

Name of Director Capacity shares* held IhEFES

FFERERE CERTERERE

EEpR EEME BERHE EZERZBIL

Mr. Hung Hon Man Beneficial owner 36,000,000 90%
3t B wan Hadifa A

Mr. Shum Kin Wai, Frankie Beneficial owner 4,000,000 10%
AR jogE/ XN

40,000,000 100%

The non-voting deferred shares carry practically no rights to
dividends nor to receive notice of nor to attend or vote at
any general meeting of GNS and on liquidation, the assets of
GNS available for distribution among the holders of ordinary
shares and the holders of non-voting deferred shares shall
be applied first in paying to the holders of ordinary shares
the sum of HK$1,000,000,000,000 per ordinary share and
secondly in repaying to the holders of non-voting deferred
shares the nominal amount paid up or credited as paid up on
such shares, and the balances of the GNS’s assets shall belong
to and be distributed among the holders of ordinary shares in
proportion to the amount paid up or credited as paid up on

such ordinary shares respectively.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES - continued

3. Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
of GN Holdings, the immediate holding company of the

Company

Name of Director Capacity

EEHS e

Mr. Hung Hon Man Held by controlled corporation (Noze)
Bt 2R ()

EERBETRASZ KRG MR

m

3. RAAREEERARGHERSRE

Bo1B T2 EBRZHR
percentage
Number of the issued
of issued share capital of
ordinary  the GN holdings
shares held REFER
Fr¥FE 17 2RITRE
EBER#E 2B
6,016,745,872 62.26%

Note: Mr. Hung Hon Man is deemed to be interested in
6,016,745,872 ordinary shares of GN Holdings which are
held by Honeylink, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability, the entire issued share
capital of which is beneficially owned by Mr. Hung Hon

Man.

Save as disclosed above, as of 31 March 2022, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in any shares or underlying shares of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the

Model Code.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
AND OPTIONS

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme to subscribe
for shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company granted under the
share option scheme during the year are set out in note 33 to the

consolidated financial statements.

During the year, no options were granted to any director of the

Company.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate and none of the
Directors, their spouses or children under the age of 18, had
any right to subscribe for the shares of the Company, or had

exercised any such rights during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2022, so far as is known to any Directors or
chief executives of the Company, the persons or corporations
(other than a Director or chief executive of the Company)
who had, or were deemed or taken to have an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of
the SFO (“DI Register”) or as otherwise notified to the Company

were as follows:
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS - continued
Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the

FTERRKR-E
AATEREEIBTZEERCHEAR

Company
Number of Percentage of
issued/underlying the Company’s
ordinary issued share
Name Capacity shares held capital (%)
EARDF
e T/ BETRE
=L BEME HBEEEREE ZBEDL (%)
GN Holdings Beneficial owner (Note) 1,824,690,171 72.99
RE e PE I HB AN (L)
Honeylink Held by controlled corporation (Note) 1,824,690,171 72.99
R (22)
Beneficial owner (Note) 50,309,829 2.01
Ha A A (i)
Mr. Hung Hon Man Held by controlled corporation (Note) 1,875,000,000 75.00

BESOEE

mZEEEA (i2)

Note: Mr. Hung Hon Man is deemed to be interested in (i) 50,309,829
ordinary shares of the Company which are held by Honeylink, a

company incorporated in the British Virgin Island with limited

liability, the entire issued share capital of which is beneficially
owned by Mr. Hung Hon Man; and (ii) 1,824,690,171 ordinary
shares which are held by GN Holdings. Honeylink is interested
in 6,016,745,872 ordinary shares of GN Holdings, representing
62.26% of issued share capital of GN Holdings.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, the Directors were

not aware of any person or corporation (other than the Director

and chief executives of the Company) who had, or were deemed

or taken to have, any interests or short positions in any shares or

underlying shares of the Company as recorded in DI Register or

otherwise notified to the Company.

FE o USSR B A BE A (i) B Honeylink (2
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association, or the
laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to

offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the Group’s retirement benefits scheme are set out in

note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the listed shares of the Company during
the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group’s turnover

attributable to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for

less than 30% of the Group’s total turnover.

The Group had no major suppliers due to the nature of the

principal activities of the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained the public float as required by the
Listing Rules during the year.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to HK$1,026,000.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has maintained appropriate directors and officers
liability insurance and such permitted indemnity provision for
the benefit of the Directors is currently in force and was in force
throughout the year ended 31 March 2022.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Details of the compliance by the Company with the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
are on pages 15 to 37 of the Corporate Governance Report in

this annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,

qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and are decided by the Board, as
authorised by the Shareholders at the annual general meeting,
having regard to the Group’s operating results, individual
duties, responsibilities and performance, and the prevailing
market conditions. No individual should determine his/her own

remuneration.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A fair review of the Group’s business, a discussion and analysis
of the Group’s performance during the year ended 31 March
2022 and an analysis of the likely future development of the
Group’s business are set out in the “Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis” from pages 4 to 11 of this

annual report. The discussion forms part of this directors’ report.

In addition, discussion on the key relationships with the Group’s
major stakeholders, Group’s environmental policy and performance
as well as compliance with relevant laws and regulations which
have significant impact on the Group are set out in the Company’s
Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2022 (“ESG
Report”). The ESG Report will be published separately on the
websites of the Company (www.getnicefg.com.hk) and the Stock
Exchange news website (https://www.hkexnews.hk).

A7 B AR 2 w1 ST b T R R B Bk 14T 2 A
AT Z R > BUR AR 15537
H2[3EEhmE] -

M <& BOR
A% A T 2 A B 4 B o B
S0 DUE B2 R B G R A A

TP JSe SR AR R AT I R A 3 hE -
P <2l T P 2 B AR % S SR R
0 22 75 A AR [ 1 AR S A R G IS
W R B o DL RCE IRE 1 T DL E o 3l
e N 78 T L o

EBEERRE
AEBEH 2P EEE - AEEEE -F
T == HOR R R B B
I AT e AR B I S T REZ R AR TR Z S \1‘)?
RN A4 E 2 [ T e
PR R S T ) o A B A 1‘%522!&%%
TR — AR o

BEAh > A B B AR ] E R 2
BR AR ~ A B2 I BR PR O M R B KO ST B
A SR A KR M B AR
%ﬁﬁ/\zfx/\jz FOOHEBRE - HER
h s (TEBRBE - A g R R wR )
fﬁ %i‘%& HER L o /A U
(www.getnicefg.com.hk) X ¥ 52 It () B #% 5
443 (heeps:/fwww.hkexnews.hk) 7317 T # o

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ##f € @&E@EHMR /A" ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2022 £k



PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group include

strategic, commercial, operational and financial risks.

Strategic risks

The Directors maintain a strategic plan together with a financial
budget at the end of each financial year based on then knowledge
to the external environments and a number of forecast and
estimates. The Group would invest in capital expenditures or
require additional working capital by way of equities or debts
fund raising based on the strategic plan in order to cope with
the market demand and competition. Given the rapid change of
unforeseeable external environments in the financial industry,
the Group is facing significant strategic risks on its capital
expenditures and working capital requirements when changing
the strategic plans to adopt the unexpected changes of external

environments.

Commercial risks

The Group is facing the keen competition by other securities
brokers or financial institutions. To maintain the Group’s
competitiveness, the management uses cost leadership strategy
as well as diversifying its business strategy to tackle other

competitors.

Operational risks

Management regularly reviews the Group’s operations to ensure
that the Group’s risk of financial or reputational losses or
inability to deliver services to customers, resulting from fraud,
errors, omissions, failed internal processes, IT systems and
compliance matters, are adequately managed. The Group has
also established its own business continuity plan and monitoring
measures, including but not limited to implementation of cyber
security control and comprehensive cyber testing programme,
to protect the Group from risk of interruption to its business

continuity.

Financial risks

The principal financial risks are set out in note 6 to consolidated
financial statements heading “FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS” —

“Financial risk management objectives and policies”.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from
each of the independent non-executive Directors. The Company
considers the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent of the management of the Company and are free
from any relationship that would materially interfere with the

exercise of their independent judgments during the year.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2022 were audited by Mazars CPA
Limited (“Mazars”) whose term of office will expire upon the

forthcoming annual general meeting.
A resolution for the reappointment of Mazars as the auditor of
the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

On behalf of the Board

HUNG HON MAN
CHAIRMAN

27 June 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

maZzars

To the members of
Get Nice Financial Group Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Get Nice Financial Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 62 to 175,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting

policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2022, and of its financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (the

“HKCO”).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Mazars CPA LimiTED

HH R S BR (o) o s A A
42nd Floor, Central Plaza,

18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Fs AT s 18 SRR ERIE 42 M

Tel &Eifi: (852) 2909 5555

Fax 8 2: (852) 2810 0032

Email FEE: info@mazars.hk

Website #81k: www.mazars.hk
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Key Audit Matters BRELSE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional IBH) S % A% T T T AR A A A R 2 B 3
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the B o 58RI AR S B R 2 B R
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These Ry B 2 BIH o FE R IH Y R AR A% BT
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the R AR & A R Mttt i RO S i

consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

HL o A A AN 6 0 0 S TR AR R
Koo

Loss allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL”) on accounts receivable from margin clients arising from the

business of dealing in securities margin financing

EFRECHERBELCRURECEFREABGEER ([RAGEER ) ZERERE

Related disclosures are included in notes 4, 6 and 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

HREMBIREMTS 6 R25FTBZ IG5 17 &

Key Audit Matter
BREELER

At 31 March 2022, the accounts receivable from
margin clients arising from the business of dealing in
securities margin financing amounted to approximately
HK$2,779,411,000, net of loss allowance for ECL of
approximately HK$334,097,000. These represent 57% of
the total assets of the Group.

Management assessed the provision for ECL of accounts
receivable from margin clients based on various inputs
such as loan-to-value percentage, default rate provided by
credit rating agency or other relevant information together

with forward-looking analysis.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
AEHMNET N AEEBRERSR

Our procedures, among others, included:

e considering the relevance and reasonableness of
method adopted and key assumptions over the ECL
assessment, and the relevance and accuracy of the

source data used in the assessment;

e evaluating the credit risk management process
including the process for identification of impaired
accounts receivable from margin clients and the

measurement of the loss allowance;

. checking, on a sample basis, the existence and
accuracy of the recoverable amount of the securities
collateral, to supporting documents and with

reference to closing market price;
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Key Audit Matters — continued

HRERER-H

Loss allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL”) on accounts receivable from margin clients arising from the

business of dealing in securities margin financing — continued

EFRECTHERBELCRURECEFREABGEER ([RAGEFR) ZEREE-&

Related disclosures are included in notes 4, 6 and 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

HREHMBHEN L 6R25FT8 2 B 1% 5

Key Audit Matter
REELER

We considered this matter to be a key audit matter due
to the significance of the balance and the significant
judgement in determining ECL on the account receivables

from margin clients.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
AERHMNET N AREBREERSR

comparing, on a sample basis, the recoverable
amount of the securities collateral with the accounts
receivable from each individual margin clients to

determine whether there was any shortfall; and

assessing the sufficiency of the loss allowance
recognised with respect to the above shortfall, after
taking into account other factors such as credit
worthiness, past collection history and repayment

subsequent to reporting period.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Company’s 2022 annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s

report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We

have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with

Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the HKCO, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the

Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated

Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report
is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed
terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial

statements.

,
As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s

internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated

Financial Statements — continued

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group

to cease to continue as a going concern.

D Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obrain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken

to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated

Financial Statements — continued

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law and
regulation preclude public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
g p

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 27 June 2022

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this

independent auditor’s report is:

Fong Chin Lung
Practising Certificate Number: P07321
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BHE_T-_—_#=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

2022 2021
—E-= BT
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 51 FET T
Revenue from contracts with customers T v B o e I 2R 1558
within HKFRS 15 HENZHEF & #HkE 7 64,427 71,664
Interest revenue calculated using the i EBA B LB
effective interest method Bk 25 7 290,400 309,656
Revenue Uk %5 354,827 381,320
Other operating income At A 9 9,894 3,834
Other gains and losses, net At A 3 K s 45 VR AR 10 341,094 (271)
Depreciation expenses 3785 B X 18 (13,338) (5,798)
Commission expenses 1 4 BA 572 (12,678) (12,902)
Net impairment loss on accounts receivable & Wit iz JH 2 I (B 5 48 15 58 6 (130,076) (55,703)
Staff costs =N N 11 (24,544) (22,010)
Finance costs Pl AR 12 (763) (5,477)
Other expenses HoAth BA 32 (24,696) (25,109)
Profit before taxation Bt A= F 13 499,720 257,884
Income tax expense Fir 75 % BH S 15 (32,853) (44,675)
Profit for the year REEmFA 466,867 213,209
Other comprehensive income (expense) Hu2mEmW sz (BEx)
Items that will not be reclassified to FEEH A HER @ 2 IHE
profit or loss
Surplus on revaluation of properties S RLEN 59 1,634
Deferred tax arising on revaluation of W) 2L Al AR 2 R AR TR
properties 31 (10) (270)
Total other comprehensive income AEEHEMEZEHREHEZEE
for the year 49 1,364
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEE2EW AL 466,916 214,573
BT VSN
Earnings per share BREF 17
Basic and diluted AR R 0.19 0.09
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xBTS AN 3R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R-ZEBE-_—_F=A=+—H
At 31 March 2022

2022 2021
—E-= BT —4
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 51 FTHET T TT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property and equipment ENE ] 18 32,881 5,969
Intangible assets I = 19 8,512 8,963
Other assets HoAth & 22 5,401 6,826
Deposits paid for acquisition of W B 2 K ki 2 E AR &
property and equipment 26 - 2,123
Promissory note receivable from the AR A L e TR D L SR R
immediate holding company 23 218,913 =
Investments wE&E 24 58,034 2,061
Deferred tax assets B LB TE K 31 259 259
Goodwill i 20 2,000 2,000
326,000 28,201
Current assets REBEE
Accounts receivable JHRE A B T 25 2,826,396 3,655,082
Prepayments, deposits and AT RIE ~ e X
other receivables At iz 2k T 26 7,350 3,302
Tax recoverable A i =] A I 9,523 62
Investments #H&E 24 163 139
Bank balances — client accounts WITH B —FFIRF 27 480,897 656,240
Bank balances — general accounts and cash ~ $RAT&5 R —— IR T K Bl4& 28 1,226,573 328,186
4,550,902 4,643,011
Assets classified as held for sale NEAFFEREZ EE - 106,132
4,550,902 4,749,143
Current liabilities REEE
Accounts payable JRE Ak B 3 29 517,124 695,799
Accrued charges and other payables R T 2 Y e JH At £k R T 30 6,277 6,137
Deposit received for disposal of subsidiaries 5 [ff Ji§ /A 7] 2 B Utd% 4 40 - 37,000
Lease liabilities HE A | 36 7,798 1,927
Tax payable JBE A B JE 530 10,303
531,729 751,166
Liabilities associated with assets classified as B3 58 2 £5{F & 2
held for sale EEABZ AR - 4,217
531,729 755,383
Net current assets RBEEEE 4,019,173 3,993,760
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wr A BRI R

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R-_EBE-_—_F#=A=+—H
At 31 March 2022

2022 2021

—Eg2=-= —E A

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

F FExT TH#s T

Total assets less current liabilities BWEERRBERS 4,345,173 4,021,961
Non-current liabilities FRBEE

Lease liabilities FHE A& 36 7,117 831

Deferred tax liabilities 1 SE Bl T A 15 31 94 84

7,211 915

NET ASSETS EEFE 4,337,962 4,021,046
Capital and reserves BEAXAKf#E

Share capital Ji N 32 25,000 25,000

Reserves It 4,312,962 3,996,046

TOTAL EQUITY B 4,337,962 4,021,046

The consolidated financial statements on pages 62 to 175 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
27 June 2022 and are signed on its behalf by:

Shum Kin Wai Frankie
TEE

Director

#HH

BRHEFI7SHZGEGMBRERMESRE
T AN H A H O XA HET
o il T E AR

Hung Sui Kwan
B 3
Director

#EH
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RAEEBER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE-_ZT-_—_F#=-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

Property
Share Share  Contributed  revaluation Other Retained
capital premium surplus reserve reserve profits Total

fx  RbRE  ESER  BERE  BhREG REER A

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000

lif3s THT THT T THT T THT T
(note i) (note ii) (note iii) (note iv)

(k) (i) (ft3Eii) (Wt iEiv)

At 1 April 2020 \ZEZZFENA-A 25,000 375,407 1,486,951 18,405 159,933 1,865,777 3,931,473
Profit for the year KB A - - - - - 213,209 213,209
Other comprehensive income (expense) At 2mEbe (%)
Trems thas will not be reclasified vo profiv or bss PR EH A E B w2 FH

~ Surplus on revaluation of propertics ~-NEEHAR - - - 1,634 - = 1,634

~ Deferred tax arising on revaluation of properties  —4#J£ T ff & Z EAERH 31 - - - (270) - - (270)
Total other comprehensive income B2 ENELE = - - 1,364 - - 1,364
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEREURAR - = = 1,364 = 213,209 214,573
Transactions with equity holders HREREAZRS
Contributions and distributions HERAK

- Dividends paid to owners — MR AREZRE 16 - - - - = (1250000 (125,000
Total transactions with equity holders B HERE A2 25 4% - - - - - (125,000)  (125,000)
At 31 March 2021 R-B--£-B=+-H 25,000 375407 1,486,951 19,769 159,933 1,953,986 4,021,046
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RAREmEHE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BHE_T-_—_#=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

Property
Share Share  Contributed  revaluation Other Retained
capital premium surplus feserve reserve profits Total
ES
kx  ROEE RABE EMBE  AtEE  RERY L
Notes HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK§'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000
(i3 TRz TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn
(note i) (note i) (note iii) (note iv)
(W) (Waa) (ki) (e
At 1 April 2021 REZZ—ENA—H 25,000 375407 1,486,951 19,769 159,933 1,953,986 4,021,046
Profit for the year AR - - - - - 466867 466,867
Other comprehensive income (expense) At 2mEbE (%)
Ttems thas will not be reclasified vo profiv or boss — FREH 2B w L FH
~ Fair value change in properties reclassified o~ — M EREHEZ AR E
retained earnings upon disposal L B Bl 40 - - - (18,966) - 18,966 -
- Surplus on revaluation of properties NS - - - 59 - - 59
- Deferted tax arising on revaluation of properdies  — 1T {4 < EEHR 31 - - - (10) - - (10)
Total other comprehensive income At 2ERRAE - = = (18,917) = 18,966 49
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEREURAR = = - (18,917) - 485,833 466,916
Transactions with equity holders HREREAZRS
Contributions and distributions HERAK
~ Dividends paid o owners ~mEHENRELRE 16 = = - - - (1500000 (150,000)
Total transactions with equity holders BURIERH A\ 235 A - - - - - (150,000 (150,000)
At 31 March 2022 WoB--F=f=1-f 5000 375407 1486951 852 159933 2089819 4337962
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

Share premium represents the excess of the net proceeds or
consideration from issuance of the Company’s shares over their
par value. Under the Companies Act (as revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium of the Company is available for
distribution or paying dividends to shareholders subject to the
provisions of its Memorandum and Articles of Association and
provided that immediately following the distribution of dividends,
the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the

ordinary course of business.

Contributed surplus represents residual arising from the
capitalisation of amount due to the immediate holding company to

share capital of the Company on 8 April 2016.

Property revaluation reserve deals with revaluation adjustments of
property and equipment in accordance with the accounting policies

adopted in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

Other reserve represents the capital contributions from equity
holders of Get Nice Incorporated (“GN Incorporated”) and
Steppington Holdings Limited (“Steppington”) now comprising
the Group before the completion of the group reorganisation for

the listing of the shares of the Company.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 5§

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

HE-_ZT-_—_F#=-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

e 073t 1 B A R B AT AR 28 ) JBE 4 2 BT 45 3K
TE T3 AR AR o L i 2 2 7 o AR B
SRR~ FE (RAERT) > AR A 2 B i
i R T 2 1R R AL 8 e K A T A U - Aok SC
B0 YR BIR A BB - M B2 BE S 20 YRAR
Ao FREH SO R B W SEF R AR T 2 F
A -

HAAIRE =2 — R A\
L B A e 2 R BRI 3 FEA O B JBA B AR
R -

19 5 A ol A AR A 3 U 5 S 3 R 2 B 4R
2 G BOR U ) 36 KBt < AR TR -

8 LR R AV O N/ D gl ol
AT 2 4 T E AL ST AT 2R A R 4R B
If Ji T~ Z Get Nice Incorporated ([ GN
Incorporated |) MSteppington Holdings
Limited ([ Steppington]) Z i & o
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HRERERER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE-_ZT_—_F#=-A=+—HLFE

Year ended 31 March 2022

2022 2021
—E- TR T A
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 51 FET THIT

OPERATING ACTIVITIES REER
Profit before taxation 78, 7 Vs ] 499,720 257,884
Adjustments for: R
Depreciation expenses 37 85 B 18 13,338 5,798
Gain on disposal of property and B W 2 K skl 2 Wi

equipment 10 (950) =
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries H B B S 2 B 2 Ui g 40 (338,817) -
Write off of accounts receivables LB R Wi B TE - 193
Werite off of intangible assets T BT 19 451 -
Net impairment loss on accounts receivable JE Wi HE T 27 Yk (B s 1B VR 4 6 130,076 55,703
Fair value changes on investments REZ N RIEEH) 10 (997) 95)
Finance costs Pl R A 12 763 5,477
Interest income FIE e A (9,356) (2,035)
Operating cash flows before movements R A s AT 2

in working capital 26 2% T 4 0 294,228 322,925
Changes in working capital: BEEEEE)

Other assets HoAh & 1,425 @474

Accounts receivable JE i R TR 698,610 (103,513)

Prepayments, deposits and other AR ~ e R

receivables L Ath, 8 AT R TH (1,802) (1,028)

Bank balances — client accounts WITH B —FFIRF 175,343 (199,599)

Accounts payable JEAF R JE (178,675) 202,239

Accrued charges and other payables R T R e LAt Ak 5 T 140 445
Cash generated from operations e 5 B 4 989,269 218,995
Interest income received B W FE g A 6,502 2,035
Interest paid on clients’ accounts ZFEIEFZ O£ H B (119) (1,827)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid B A7 RSB (52,087) (13,865)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING REXBRBERS

ACTIVITIES 943,565 205,338
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXHK
Purchase of property and equipment =Y Y (17,172) (1,220)
Purchase of investment Wi ' 24 (55,000) -
Proceeds from disposal of property and o W 2 K R AR 2 T A5 KR

equipment 10 950 -
Net cash inflows from disposal of B ) JE N | 2

subsidiaries 4 A R 40 180,397 =
Deposits paid for acquisition of W B ) S I A 2 A R

property and equipment - (2,123)
Deposit received for disposal of subsidiaries & Bff J& /A 7 2 B 4% 4 40 - 37,000
Net cash outflow on acquisition of a g B — 1] Bf B A = 2

subsidiary B 45 U A - (37,132)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) REXBRE (AR 2

INVESTING ACTIVITIES FEE 109,175 (3,475)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE_T_—_#F#=A=+—HLEFE

Year ended 31 March 2022

2022 2021
—E-= R
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
i TR TH T

FINANCING ACTIVITIES ME XK
Interest paid 2 At Al B (217) (3,609)
Dividends paid B AT IS 16 (150,000) (125,000)
Lease payment FH & AT 3K 36 (9,166) (948)
Proceeds from bank borrowings AT S PR 30H 549,608 8,086,789
Repayment of bank borrowings fEIR AT B (549,608) (8,086,789)
Loan from the immediate holding BIZEER A AR

company 100,000 787,000
Repayment of loan from immediate i 75 B RPN m AR

holding company (100,000) (787,000)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING MEXBFTRAZERE

ACTIVITIES 34 (159,383) (129,557)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 3 & R H & ZEHIE B FE 893,357 72,306
Cash and cash equivalents at the BEHIRERRS

beginning of the reporting period ZEIEE 333,216 260,910
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of HEHRRERRS

the reporting period ZEEH 1,226,573 333,216
Analysis of the balances of cash and Re¢RREEEER

cash equivalents EERD AT
Cash and cash equivalents e kHE&%EEER 1,226,573 333,216
Less: Bank balances — general accounts B FEAEB R RS Z

and cash included in the assets HEZRATH B —
transferred as held for sale — MR F K B - (5,030)

Bank balances — general accounts and FREMBRREKAY ZBIT

cash as stated in the consolidated HHR-—REFRERES

statement of financial position 1,226,573 328,186
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r & B T 8 SR B R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE_T-_—_#=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Get Nice Financial Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the Companies
Act (as revised) of the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company limited by shares on 31 August 2015 and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Company’s immediate
holding company is Get Nice Holdings Limited (“GN
Holdings”), a company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with its shares listed on the Stock Exchange. The
Company’s ultimate holding company is Honeylink Agents
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability. The Company’s registered
office is located at Second Floor, Century Yard, Cricket
Square, P.O. Box 902, Grand Cayman, KY1-1103, Cayman
Islands and its principal place of business is changed from
10th Floor, Cosco Tower, Grand Millennium Plaza, 183
Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong to Ground Floor to 3rd
Floor, Cosco Tower, Grand Millennium Plaza, 183 Queen’s
Road Central, Hong Kong with effect from 3 May 2021.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set

out in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (‘HKS$”), which is also the

functional currency of the Company.

—REH

HiremERAGRAR (AR2FD R
SR -RENA=ZT—HREMEH
BN B (BB TT) A6 BH 2 B 5 5 R
S RERR R A A BR A R H R A R
TG 22 5 B A PR 2w (THE 32 e 1)
Bl AR E Z BB A E 5 A
BRAMRAR (T&FeEk]) » HA
—HhHERFEFRE L AR B
JBe A A Bk 3 BT BT o AN R 2 R A
& A @ FsHoneylink Agents Limited »
FC R — TR 9 R L B R G RS
ZHBRA T o AL A2 5 M R
J#ASecond Floor, Century Yard, Cricket
Square, P.O. Box 902, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1103, Cayman Islands » HEEE
EWBH _F - -FHAA=ZAREHEF
W 5L 5 R 28 183980 AL T B 35 i K
JEL 1074 58 O /0 A ok 2 i A8 18358
AL TCIE b K R 3 o

ANz EEER SR E R HIKH
@Az FEEBHW N GG M BEHRE
R 5142 o

AN A B FL W B 2 m) (AR [ A4 1))
2R A MBI R A A F Z R B
I ([#ET)) 231 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all
applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (the “HKCO”). The consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of

Securities on the Stock Exchange.

All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand,

unless otherwise indicated.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a basis consistent with the accounting policies adopted
in the 2021 consolidated financial statements except for
the adoption of the following new/revised HKFRSs that are

relevant to the Group and effective from the current year.

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 16: Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions Beyond 30 June 2021

The amendments exempt lessces from having to consider
individual lease contracts to determine whether rent
concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the
covid-19 pandemic are lease modifications and allow lessees
to account for such rent concessions as if they were not
lease modifications. It applies to covid-19-related rent
concessions that reduce lease payments due on or before 30

June 2022. The amendments do not affect lessors.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any

significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

0%

HE-_ZT-_—_F#=-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022
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% S B WS R T AR B A s R A
DN B AR 2 7 i B 5 i o YR R (4% P
M2 F MG R B e
FEHERI ) ~ A A AR ah I
T o AR 2 BEEE AR E R o B
SRS ik 3R N B T A R I 58 5 BT A IR
Ox ) I b TR B 2 A B ER M o

Brn AN A EHERERER
Bl T8

BeMBIRROREE —F — —F4
A T R B PR T RO — S A
HE B B MEBR A DL B 2 A B
T A BE R 2 R iT REAE R A s B
B e W JBR AL -

BRHeTRETERHEREER
BB B IR5ERF 16582 167T 2 2019
AR BENG— e T —HFEANH = A
H 7 191 B 1 £ % %

EERT R RM A B A E S
# LA 22 5201976 1R 5 = 0 2 1 L 2
g1 B0 B R R S A BT - i
o R AR N A 5% 55 TH 6 T e R JE AR
BT AR « 5 B3 8 R K
F N H = H sz A E] HE rY
B A 3K 2 201976 MR 5 B 5 AH BR AH 4 '
o o BZAF BT S AN SR 2 o

7400 4 0 165 T 4 A O AT
GEEs 2R
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r & B T 8 SR B R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE

T —E=-A=+—HILEE

Year ended 31 March 2022

0

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — continued

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRSs 4, 7, 9 and 16: Interest
Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

The amendments address issues that might affect financial
reporting when a company replaces the old interest rate
benchmark with an alternative benchmark rate as a result
of the interest rate benchmark reform (the “Reform”). The
amendments complement those issued in November 2019

and relate to:

e changes to contractual cash flows—a company will
not have to derecognise or adjust the carrying amount
of financial instruments for changes required by the
Reform, but will instead update the effective interest
rate to reflect the change to the alternative benchmark

rate;

*  hedge accounting—a company will not have to
discontinue its hedge accounting solely because it
makes changes required by the Reform, if the hedge

meets other hedge accounting criteria; and

e disclosures—a company will be required to disclose
information about new risks arising from the Reform
and how it manages the transition to alternative

benchmark rates.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any

significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements is historical cost, except
for certain properties and investments, which are measured
at revalued amounts or fair value, as explained in the

accounting policies set out below.

TESBR-&

BHeTRETERHBEREER
— &
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R F4GE ~ BT~ FBIRRFICHZ
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i B RT R Y 2y | R R S B e Bl
([ g8 ]) T DA 540 3 ME 1) R B B A
R 25 I e RS A A A R 28 B S R A
Mo BT - LE+—HME
B EFTE B > WE DL FRIEA
B

s AHBEWEBREE - AFEH
A A R AE Y B B A% 1 e R B
B TR B R T (E - L ZE S R
A ) 3 DA I AR M R R

S

o B b g R B — il 3 b0 AR 5 H A
B b g wh R e QR HHAE
P8 H ok P B ) B B T A% 1k H
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o WER— N RIEBLER A B R T E
A T TR B K o ) At R R A
e | e 2 MR T ik B

PRAA AT B 16 T 3B A B 5 R AR AT
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FTEE®E
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e I JBE S AR > MEA N 51 & R B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as that of the Company using

consistent accounting policies.

All intra-group balance, transactions, income and
expenses and profits and losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full upon consolidation.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control and continue to be

consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Non-controlling interests are presented, separately from
owners of the Company, in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and within
equity in the consolidated statement of financial position.
The non-controlling interests in the acquiree, that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets in event of
liquidation, are measured initially either at fair value or at
the present ownership instruments’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. This choice of measurement basis is made on an

acquisition-by-acquisition basis.

Allocation of total comprehensive income

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests on the basis of existing
ownership interests and the possible exercise of conversion
of potential voting rights is not considered. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to the owners of the
Company and the existing non-controlling interest even if
this results in the existing non-controlling interests having a

deficit balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE

T —E=-A=+—HILEE

Year ended 31 March 2022

0

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Basis of consolidation — continued

Changes in ownership interest

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly

in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i)
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest determined at the
date when control is lost and (ii) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
and any non-controlling interests at the date when control
is lost. The amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the disposed subsidiary
are accounted for on the same basis as would be required
if the parent had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Any investment retained in the former subsidiary
and any amounts owed by or to the former subsidiary are
accounted for as a financial asset, associate, joint venture or

others as appropriate from the date when control is lost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is measured
at the excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree (if applicable)
and the fair value of any previously held equity interest
in the acquiree over the acquisition date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed of the

acquired business.

Goodwill on acquisition of business is recognised as a
separate asset and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, which is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. For the
purpose of impairment test and determination of gain or
loss on disposal, goodwill is allocated to cash-generating

units. An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed.

On the other hand, any excess of the acquisition
date amounts of identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed of the acquired business over the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree (if applicable)
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
interest in the acquiree, if any, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as an income
from bargain purchase. Any resulting gain or loss arising
from remeasuring the previously held equity interests in
the acquiree at the acquisition-date fair value is recognised
in profit or loss or other comprehensive income, as

appropriate.
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0

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only
when the sale is highly probable and the asset (or disposal
group) is available for immediate sale in its present
condition. Management must be committed to the sale,
which should be expected to qualify for recognition
as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification. Non-current assets (and disposal groups)
classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their

previous carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. The Group reassesses whether it
controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that

there are changes to one or more of the elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position which
is presented in note 42 to the consolidated financial
statements, investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. The carrying amount
of the investments is reduced to its recoverable amount
on an individual basis, if it is higher than the recoverable
amount. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the

Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

2. EEQE—H&%—IE

REHEZHRBEE

fild JF L B 7 K B AL R 2 AR (E
7 2 B 52 B (T 3 8 5 A 18 )
Welml > B 5% T A B i S 2 A
WEIHE - SR EREME R LE
2 (B & ALR) AT B P BB
RF o AR T O 2 i R o A B A6
JE B 7 Al s B T I it 52 5 g
B 7088 H U R —4F R 5 A% Tl R
ST - P AR R EZ RS
B (B & AL o 1 SR e B
FAR B A 2 AR TR

o) N

B JB8 2 w45 32 AR 4R B 4 ) 2 E R o A
A4 1 it 2 B R S T A v A2 ) [m)
R 3% Ja B B A REA S S AR A A
T % T A 2 M) R B S o R
LB H B AT A HEE R
1 DUBR R — TH B2 T 12 o ME 2 R B
SEAL - RIS SR R AT Al H B B AR
BT 2 P

T 57 6 BB 3R I RE42 1 2 A 24 ]
BABS IR DL 1A > T4 Fi g 2 ] 2 B LA
BEAS 380 25 R E s BABR © 8 & 2 iR
TET ey 7 K AT o [ < > B 9% R ) 3
RN g T o S N
SEA A AR A AR Wi B B W B T
FHEANR -

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED 4 #f @@ HR/A" o ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4R



g R EE U R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Property and equipment

Property and equipment, other than buildings, are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use. Repairs and maintenance are charged to

profit or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Buildings are stated at revalued amount, being the fair value
at the date of valuation less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Fair value is determined
by independent valuations which are performed annually.
Increases in valuation are credited to the property
revaluation reserve. Decreases in valuation are first offset
against increases on earlier valuations in respect of the
same asset and are thereafter charged to profit or loss. Any
subsequent increases are credited to profit or loss up to
the amount previously charged and thereafter to property

revaluation reserve.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less
accumulated impairment losses of property and equipment
over their estimated useful lives from the date on which
they are available for use and after taking into account their
estimated residual values, using the straight-line method, at

the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land Shorter of the term of the
lease, or 25 years

Buildings Shorter of the term of the
lease, or 25 years

Leaschold improvements  Shorter of the term of the lease
or 5 to 10 years

Motor vehicles and yacht 4 to 10 years

Office equipment 3 to 5 years

Furniture and fixtures 5 to 7 years

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in

the year in which the item is derecognised.

HE-_ZT-_—_F#=-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

2. E\Eggg—rﬁ%_ng

MERRE

Yy 36 K fls (BT BR M) 35 080A ok 2 w5t
185 T (B e MR o W) 26 K sl
H 2 A A4 L AR AT o i
T BIOHL G 1 AIK AR % B A7 M B A T2
AT E A AR AL A o MEAE AR
H BH ST R FLEE A 2 T AR 1R 4R
SCH o

MR Al B (RS (E R Z 2 72
ER R T8 X R BEER) S8R -
O SR TG ¥ B AR AT 2 M S0 A (E
E o fE LT RN A Y SE T AN M
il BT B g Bk ] — & 7 2 S i Al (B
RS - AR B A AN ER o HAR AL ]
B AR AR o M LSS R RT 0B &
HEF AW EEAM M2 BBIR -

W) 2& Ko B0 Y R Al wE AT 4 AR
> fE 2 B ELAG R R BR (AR > i
Hu 2z B R E R E
B DU A R R (E R 1

& 1 B AE I 825 4F
(DA 35 1y UE)

i B AR 325 4F
(DABR T # Fy E)

HE % E HEF s 2104
(AR S 25 1y UE)

TROH I i i 4F 104

N 354

RE K HEE 5Z 74

W) 36 L wc Al JH S A TR 4 A O
R A A A R R A A 4 fg A
1bFfERR o A% b Tl R A E P A 2 AR A
Wi 2 S 1R (% H B P 45 R T 9 o L
T H AR 2 22 R AT ) R AR 1L A RE A
HZ W H st AR+ -

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 £$F * GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED &€ mEBER A A

77



78

r & B T 8 SR B R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE

T —E=-A=+—HILEE

Year ended 31 March 2022

0

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Intangible assets

Trading rights

Trading rights confer eligibility on the Group to trade
on the Stock Exchange. The trading rights have no
foreseeable limit to the period over which the Group
can use to generate cash flows. As a result, the trading
rights are considered by the management of the Group
as having indefinite useful lives because they are expected
to contribute to net cash inflows indefinitely. The
trading rights will not be amortised until its useful life is
determined to be finite. They will be tested for impairment
annually and whenever there is an indication that they may

be impaired.

The useful life of the trading rights is reviewed annually to
determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues
to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is account for on a

prospective basis.

Club memberships

Club memberships with indefinite useful life are stated at
costs less any impairment losses. Impairments are reviewed
annually or when there are any indications that the club

memberships have suffered impairment loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Financial instruments

Financial assets

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instruments and on a trade date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i)
the Group’s contractual rights to future cash flows from the
financial asset expire or (ii) the Group transfers the financial
asset and either (a) it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, or (b) it neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset but it does not retain

control of the financial asset.

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group

continues to recognise the financial asset.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control
the transferred asset, the Group recognises the financial
asset to the extent of its continuing involvement and an

associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.
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0

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Classification and measurement

Financial assets (except for accounts receivable without
a significant financing component within HKFRS 15)
are initially recognised at their fair value plus, in the
case of financial assets not carried at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL”), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets.
Such accounts receivable are initially measured at their

transaction price.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as (i)
measured at amortised cost; (ii) debt investment measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCT); (iii) equity investment measured at FVOCI; or
(iv) measured at FVPL.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the Group’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the financial asset’s contractual cash
flow characteristics. Financial assets are not reclassified
subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group
changes its business model for managing them, in which
case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first
day of the first annual reporting period following the

change in the business model.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Classification and measurement — continued

1)

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it
meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVPL:

(i) it is held within a business model whose objective
is to hold financial assets in order to collect

contractual cash flows; and

(ii) its contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal

and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses arising from
impairment, derecognition or through the amortisation

process are recognised in profit or loss.

The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost include
promissory note receivable from the immediate
holding company, accounts receivable, deposits and
other receivables, bank balances — client accounts and

bank balances — general accounts and cash.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Classification and measurement — continued

2)

Financial assets at FVPL

These investments include financial assets that
are not measured at amortised cost or FVOCI,
including financial assets held for trading, financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at
FVPL, financial assets resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement in a business combination
to which HKFRS 3 applies and financial assets that are
otherwise required to be measured at FVPL. They are
carried at fair value, with any resultant gain and loss
recognised in profit or loss, which does not include
any dividend or interest earned on the financial assets.
Dividend or interest income is presented separately

from fair value gain or loss.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is:

(i) acquired principally for the purpose of selling it

in the near term;

(ii) part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that are managed together and for
which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking on initial recognition;

or

(iii) a derivative that is not a financial guarantee
contract or not a designated and effective hedging

instrument.

Financial assets are designated at initial recognition
as at FVPL only if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or
liabilities or recognising the gains or losses on them on

different bases.

The Group’s financial assets mandatorily measured at
FVPL include investment in equity securities, investment

in an unlisted fund and payment for life insurance policy.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial liabilities

Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instruments.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when
the liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or

expires.

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value
plus, in the case of financial liabilities not carried at FVPL,
transaction costs that are direct attributable to the issue of

the financial liabilities.

The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts payable
and accrued charges and other payables. All financial
liabilities are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method, unless the effect of discounting would be

insignificant, in which case they are stated at cost.
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0

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses (“ECL”) on financial assets that are measured at
amortised cost to which the impairment requirements
apply in accordance with HKFRS 9. Except for the specific
treatments as detailed below, at each reporting date, the
Group measures a loss allowance for a financial asset at
an amount equal to the lifetime ECL if the credit risk on
that financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial asset at an

amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e.
the present value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected life

of the financial instrument.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of the
difference between the contractual cash flows that are due
to an entity under the contract and the cash flows that the

entity expects to receive.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument while 12-month ECL represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default
events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12

months after the reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Financial instruments — continued
Impairment of financial assets — continued
Measurement of ECL — continued

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on the following one or

more shared credit risk characteristics:
(i) past due information

(i) nature of instrument

(iii) nature of collateral

(iv) industry of debtors

(v) geographical location of debtors

Loss allowance is remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk and
loss since initial recognition. The resulting changes in the
loss allowance are recognised as an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to the

carrying amount of the financial instrument.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes
as historical experience indicates that the Group may not
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full if
the financial instrument that meets any of the following

criteria.

(i) information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group);

or

(ii) there is a breach of financial covenants by the

counterparty.

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging

default criterion is more appropriate.
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0

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ##€mEBER AT o

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued
Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.
In particular, the following information is taken into

account in the assessment:

e the debtor’s failure to make payments of principal or

interest on the due dates;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating

(if available);

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

operating results of the debtor; and

D actual or expected changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have or
may have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s

ability to meet its obligation to the Group.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than 30

days past due.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the

reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

Low credit risk

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk

if:
(a) it has a low risk of default;

(b) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its

contractual cash flow obligations in the near term; and

(c) adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash

flow obligations.

As detailed in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements, the financial instruments determined to have
low credit risk includes promissory note receivable from the
immediate holding company and bank balances — general

accounts.

Simplified approach of ECL

For accounts receivable other than margin clients, without
a significant financing component, the Group applies
a simplified approach in calculating ECL. The Group
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each
reporting date and has established a provision matrix that
is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the

economic environment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE_T-_—_#=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Financial instruments — continued
Impairment of financial assets — continued
Credit-impaired financial asset

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that
a financial asset is credit-impaired include observable data

about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

borrower.

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due

event.

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise

consider.

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial

asset because of financial difficulties.

() the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a

deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset when the Group has
no reasonable expectations of recovering the contractual
cash flows on a financial asset in its entirety or a portion
thereof. The Group has a policy of writing off the gross
carrying amount based on historical experience of recoveries
of similar assets. The Group expects no significant recovery
from the amount written off. However, financial assets
that are written off could still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s procedures for recovery
of amounts due, taking into account legal advice if
appropriate. Any subsequent recovery is recognised in profit

or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued
Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash equivalents represent short-term highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. For classification
in the consolidated statement of financial position, cash
equivalents represent assets similar in nature to cash and

which are not restricted as to use.

Revenue recognition
Dividend income

Dividend income from financial assets is recognised when
the Group’s rights to receive dividend is established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably. Dividend income from
investments is recognised when the shareholders’ rights to

receive payment have been established.

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15

Nature OngOdf or services

The nature of the goods or services provided by the Group

is as follows:
(a) Asset management services
(b) Broking services

(c) Corporate finance services
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Revenue recognition — continued

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15

— continued

Identification of performance obligations

At contract inception, the Group assesses the goods or

services promised in a contract with a customer and

identifies as a performance obligation each promise to

transfer to the customer either:

(@)

(b)

a good or service (or a bundle of goods or services) that

is distinct; or

a series of distinct goods or services that are
substantially the same and that have the same pattern

of transfer to the customer.

A good or service that is promised to a customer is distinct

if both of the following criteria are met:

(a)

(b)

the customer can benefit from the good or service
cither on its own or together with other resources that
are readily available to the customer (i.e. the good or

service is capable of being distinct); and

the Group’s promise to transfer the good or service
to the customer is separately identifiable from other
promises in the contract (i.e. the promise to transfer
the good or service is distinct within the context of the

contract).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Revenue recognition — continued

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15

— continued
Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when (or as) the Group satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring a promised good or
service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred

when (or as) the customer obtains control of that asset.

The Group transfers control of a good or service over
time and, therefore, satisfies a performance obligation and
recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria

is met:

(a) the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the

Group performs;

(b) the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
(for example, work in progress) that the customer

controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

(c) the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance

completed to date.
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BHE_T-_—_#=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

0

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Revenue recognition — continued

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15

— continued
Timing of revenue recognition — continued

If a performance obligation is not satisfied over time, the
Group satisfies the performance obligation at a point in
time when the customer obtains control of the promised
asset. In determining when the transfer of control occurs,
the Group considers the concept of control and such
indicators as legal title, physical possession, right to
payment, significant risks and rewards of ownership of the

asset, and customer acceptance.
Revenue is recognised on the following bases:

e Commission income for broking business is recorded

as income at a point in time on a trade date basis;

e Underwriting commission income, sub-underwriting
income, placing commission and sub-placing
commission are recognised as income at a point in
time in accordance with the terms of the underlying
agreement or deal mandate when relevant significant

act has been completed;

e Proof of funds commission and clearing and handling
fee income are recognised at a point in time when
the relevant transactions have been arranged or the

relevant services have been rendered;

o Advisory fee and asset management fee income are
recognised over time when the relevant transactions
have been arranged or the relevant services have been

rendered; and

. Management fee is recognised over time when the

relevant services have been rendered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Revenue recognition — continued

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15

— continued
Timing of revenue recognition — continued

For revenue recognised over time under HKFRS 15,
provided the outcome of the performance obligation can
be reasonably measured, the Group applies the output
method (i.e. based on the direct measurements of the value
to the customer of the goods or services transferred to
date relative to the remaining goods or services promised
under the contract) to measure the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance obligation
because the method provides a faithful depiction of the
Group’s performance and reliable information is available
to the Group to apply the method. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised only to the extent of the costs incurred until
such time that it can reasonably measure the outcome of the

performance obligation.

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets is recognised using
the effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost that are not credit-impaired, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of
the assets while it is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. the
gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) in case of

credit-impaired financial assets.

Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in the currency of HK$, which is

also the Company’s functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at period-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign

currencies are recognised in profit or loss.
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0

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to assess
whether there is any indication that its property and
equipment, intangible assets and the Company’s
investments in subsidiaries may be impaired or impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may be
reduced. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated, based on the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. Where
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the smallest group of assets that generates cash

flows independently (i.e. cash-generating unit).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are

recognised as an expense in profit or loss immediately.

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in
prior years. Reversal of impairment loss is recognised as an

income in profit or loss immediately.

The accounting policy for recognition of the impairment
loss for goodwill is stated in the accounting policy for

goodwill in the earlier part of this note.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income on
the temporary investment of the specific borrowings, that
are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an

expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a
lease at inception of the contract. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for

consideration.

As lessee

The Group applies the recognition exemption to short-term
leases and low-value asset leases. Lease payments associated
with these leases are recognised as an expense on a

straight-line basis over the lease term.

Amounts payable by the Group that do not give rise to a
separate component are considered to be part of the total
consideration that is allocated to the separately identified

components of the contract.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease

liability at the commencement date of the lease.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued
Leases — continued
As lessee — continued

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which

comprises:

(a) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease

liability;

(b) any lease payments made at or before the

commencement date, less any lease incentives received;

(c) any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

(d) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying asset,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease, unless those costs are

incurred to produce inventories.

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost
less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement
of the lease liability. Depreciation is provided on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and
the estimated useful lives of the right-of-use asset (unless
the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the
Group by the end of the lease term or if the cost of the
right-of-use asset reflects that the Group will exercise a
purchase option — in which case depreciation is provided
over the estimated useful life of the underlying asset) as

follows:
Office premises 3 years
The lease liability is initially measured at the present

value of the lease payments that are not paid at the

commencement date of the contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued
Leases — continued
As lessee — continued

The lease payments included in the measurement of the
lease liability comprise the following payments for the right
to use the underlying asset, if any, during the lease term

that are not paid at the commencement date:

(a) fixed payments (including in-substance fixed

payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

(b) variable lease payments that depend on an index or a

rate;

(c) amounts expected to be payable under residual value

guarantees;

(d) exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is

reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

(e) payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to

terminate the lease.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, or where it is not readily determinable,

the incremental borrowing rate of the lessee.

Subsequently, the lease liability is measured by increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability
and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease

payments made.

The lease liability is remeasured using a revised discount
rate when there are changes to the lease payments arising
from a change in the lease term or the reassessment of
whether the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a

purchase option.
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r & B T 8 SR B R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE_T-_—_#=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued
Leases — continued
As lessee — continued

The lease liability is remeasured by using the original
discount rate when there is a change in the residual value
guarantee, the in-substance fixed lease payments or the
future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or
a rate (other than floating interest rate). In case of a change
in future lease payments resulting from a change in floating
interest rates, the Group remeasures the lease liability using

a revised discount rate.

The Group recognises the amount of the remeasurement of
the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
If the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced
to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement
of the lease liability, the Group recognises any remaining

amount of the remeasurement in profit or loss.

Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the

associated services are rendered by employees.

Retirement benefit costs

Payment to defined contribution retirement benefit scheme
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised
as expenses when employees have rendered service entitling

them to the contributions.

Long service payments

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long service
payments under the Employment Ordinance is the amounts
of future benefit that employees have earned in return
for their services in the current and prior periods. The
obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit
method and discounted to its present value and after
deducting the fair value of any related assets, including

those retirement scheme benefits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based transactions

The Group’s employees, including directors, receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby the employees rendered services in

exchange for shares or rights over shares.

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant
date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period or is recognised as an expense in full at the grant
date when share options granted vest immediately, with a

corresponding increase in equity.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option reserve

will be transferred to retained profits/accumulated losses.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties
other than employees are measured at fair value of the goods
or services received, except where the fair value cannot be
reliably estimated, in which case they are measured at fair
value of the equity instruments granted. In all cases, the fair
value is measured at the date the Group obtains the goods

or the counterparty renders the services.
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r & B T 8 SR B R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE

T —E=-A=+—HILEE

Year ended 31 March 2022

0

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the results
for the period as adjusted for items that are non-assessable
or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, any deferred tax arising from initial recognition
of goodwill; or other asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable

profit or loss is not recognised.

The deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is recovered or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and
tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at

the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, tax losses and

credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investment in subsidiaries except where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will

not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attaching conditions will be complied
with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is
recognised as income over the years necessary to match the
grant on a systematic basis to the costs that it is intended
to compensate. Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair
value is credited to a deferred income account/recognised as
a deduction from the carrying amount of the relevant asset
and is released to profit or loss over the expected useful life

of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

The benefit of a government loan received at a
below-market rate of interest is treated as a government
grant. The benefit of the below-market rate of interest shall
be measured as the difference between the initial fair value

of the loan and the proceeds received.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the

Group.

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is

related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group.
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r & B T 8 SR B R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE_T-_—_#=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Related parties — continued

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(i)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each holding
company, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is

related to the others).

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a

member).

both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are

also related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a).

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a

holding company of the entity).

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ##€mEBER AT o

it is a part, provides key management personnel

services to the Group.
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g R EE U R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Related parties — continued

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity

and include:

(a) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;

and

(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or

domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes
subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes

subsidiaries of the joint venture.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group’s chief operating decision maker, who is the
Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company, for
the purpose of allocating resources to, and assessing the

performance of, the Group’s various lines of business.

Individual material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect
of the nature of products and services, the nature of
production processes, the type or class of customers, the
methods used to distribute the products or provide the
services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material

may be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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r & B T 8 SR B R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE_T-_—_#=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

3. FUTURE CHANGES IN HKFRSS 3. BAMBREEN ZKRKEH
At the date of authorisation of the consolidated financial A %}:ﬁ,ﬁﬂ‘ﬁ%$&%€ﬁﬂt W2 H, Fike
statements, the HKICPA has issued the following new/ wh Rl & B E A DL T B AR 4E [ AT B K
revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group and are not A AR A 55 v AR A 50 (AR 4 B R A 4 i B
yet effective for the current year, which the Group has not ) 2B ET A T A U S i e
carly adopted. HIl -

Amendments to HKAS 16 Proceeds before Intended Use Fg ARG BT R BRI
Amendments to HKAS 37 Cost of Fulfilling a Contract " B EAEE BT BIAHZHRAY
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework BT RE RS BT O %Zﬁk
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle 1 FEMHREEN B E ZF-\EE2FCTE
e
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or BRI BT BRABARB T REY
Non-current
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies b GTTERIA 2 B GRHR G
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates (R L PA TN -Gl T vA S &
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities FheENFLEZ BT RE-ERAREZEER
arising from a Single Transaction AR MR
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an BHRAHREENEI0%R  REXHHABEATS
and HKAS 28 Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture Fe AN AELECHZEE
Bk g
W Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January W ORZER T —H - HEHBEM R
2022 A B T ) A 5
@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January e R EFE—H - HEHE MR
2023 A B T ) A 5
Bl The effective date to be determined Bl Ak H O E
The Board does not anticipate that the adoption of these I TE R R R B R AT RT AR
new/revised HKFRSs in future periods will have any 16 557 T v B 25 o 3 HI) IS0 R e 35 AN 4B
material impact on the result of the Group. VB 2 A AR AT AT R o
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g R EE U R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and
judgements are made by the management in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements. They affect the
application of the Group’s accounting policies, reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, and
disclosures made. They are assessed on an on-going basis
and are based on experience and relevant factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Where appropriate,
revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period of revision and future periods, in case the revision

also affects future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Loss allowance for ECL

The Group’s management estimates the loss allowance
for financial assets at amortised cost including promissory
note receivable from the immediate holding company and
accounts receivable by using various inputs and assumptions
including risk of a default and expected loss rate. The
estimation involves high degree of uncertainty which is
based on the Group’s historical information, recoverable
amount of securities collateral, past collection history of
borrowers, concentration risk of borrowers, the Group’s
actual loss experience, existing market conditions as well
as forward-looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period. Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying amount
of the financial assets at amortised cost. Details of the key
assumption and inputs used in estimating ECL are set out

in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 5§

4.

HE-_ZT-_—_F#=-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

A2 & 5t fh wT K F

BB S BB T R R R
B T R A& 2 Al i B ARG DA I F B - A
B B XA B B AL
RIFECR M - B - B AR
PH 52 2 2 ¥ 8 DA B BT A i 22 R o
I E G R R R LA R (R
15 75 £ FE UL T 58 2% 3 R A S R A
Z & B A B AR B SO B
(S U A G R i e 4
RIETAAE B T 2 31 ] B R A ] (4
A BB 7T (7] 5 5 R A ) el

EEATRERZRZEERE

HH I B 18 2 7 1R B

7 2 o] A L 20 A o D 1R iy A SR
BB (45 % % JEl By M T8 40 s 18 )
Al w42 4 8 A TR B & EE
1 s 18 36 - % 5F LA B R 4R
2 e 8 R R SRR S EWOIRTH © G% A
RE P B BE AN E T o TY R R AR
4 R S R ~ R R R A A B0 AT i (]
R TR A ON BB R Bk K
B 5 B 4R P R B~ A 42 RO B R AR
HRACHR - BUA T DL 2R 45 oA R
14 T WS P Al T A AT o A0 TE A B A
il T AN IR] - 2 BN 52 80 0 0 A
AR A A R T o A RS
5V A CVINIES SCHE TP 1€ Sk
17 S 5 5 P 5 R B G

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED #ir&mEBAER AR

105



106

r & B T 8 SR B R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE_T-_—_#=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

AND JUDGEMENTS - continued

Key sources of estimation uncertainty — continued
Revaluation of buildings

The Group’s buildings with carrying amount of
approximately HK$1,400,000 (2021: HK$1,400,000) are

stated at fair value under revaluation model.

These revalued amounts are based on the valuation carried
out by an independent professional valuer with reference
to recent market transaction prices at the end of reporting
period/the date of transfer and/or market rental value for
similar properties at similar locations, adjusted for certain

estimates of market conditions.

In determining the fair value of the buildings, the valuer
has based on a method of valuation which involves, inter
alia, sales price of comparable properties in close proximity
adjusted for differences in key valuation attributes,
such as size and age. In relying on the valuation report,
management has exercised their judgement and is satisfied
that the method of valuation is reflective of the current
market conditions at the end of each reporting period.
Particulars of the buildings of the Group are set out in note

18 to the consolidated financial statements.

Tax provision and tax losses

At the end of the reporting period, no deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of certain tax losses of
approximately HK$22,002,000 (2021: HK$23,336,000)
as the realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends
on whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary

differences will be available in the future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital
structure of the Group consists of debt, when applicable,
and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital as disclosed in note 32
to the consolidated financial statements and reserves as
disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. The management reviews the capital structure by
considering the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. In view of this, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new debt
or the redemption of existing debt. The Group’s overall

strategy remains unchanged throughout the year.

Certain group entities are regulated by the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Commission (the “SFC”) and
are required to comply with the financial resources
requirements according to the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (the “SF(FR)R”). The
Group’s regulated entities are subject to minimum paid-up
share capital requirements and liquid capital requirements
under the SF(FR)R. Management closely monitors, on a
daily basis, the liquid capital level of these entities to ensure
compliance with the minimum liquid capital requirements
under the SE(FR)R. The Group’s regulated entities have
complied with the capital requirements imposed by the
SE(FR)R throughout the years ended 31 March 2022 and
2021.

HE-_ZT-_—_F#=-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022
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T figi 5 W 4t 58 ) R W 5% 2 (ol fe) o A ER
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BHE_T-_—_#=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

6. €T H

Categories of financial instruments KL T A
2022 2021
—Eg2=-= —E A

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

! FET T
Financial assets EMEE
Financial assets at FVPL &N REFF AR R 2

4 Rl (a) 58,197 2,200

Amortised cost iz 340 5 Bl A (b) 4,759,205 4,644,120
Financial liabilities E@MmasE
Amortised cost 2 18 81 AR (c) (523,401) (738,936)
Notes: [t =3

(a) Financial assets at FVPL include investments in equity
securities, investment in an unlisted fund and payment for

life insurance policy.

(b) Financial assets at amortised cost include accounts
receivable, promissory note receivable from the immediate
holding company, deposits and other receivables (excluding
prepayments), bank balances — client accounts and bank

balances — general accounts and cash.

(c) Financial liabilities at amortised cost include accounts

payable and accrued charges and other payables.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
investments, accounts receivable, deposits and other
receivables, bank balances and cash, accounts payable
and accrued charges and other payables. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes to
the consolidated financial statements. The risks associated
with these financial instruments and the policies on how
to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective

manner.

() A RMEF AR 2 4l E A R
A LSRR E R AT RE
AR/

(b) 4 S B T 2 4 AT L 4 B U
ARVE - B S B B 4 T A R R SRR
$e 4 B LAt 1B Wi SR IH OR B4 T8 A9 3
H) ~ BATEER — B IR LR SRATSS
h—— BIRF R84 -

(o) RS AT 2 &Rl A a1 AT
AR TH LA K2 M T ) o L A B A5 S50 o

MHEEBREEERRBE

AL FEAHM T AGERE -
W HR T ~ % 4 Be L A B Wi AROOH - SR AT
AEER LB A - BEATERIE DL R ORE ST 2 A
Jo H Aty A BROH o e SE il T H 2 5F
15 T B 5 WA 5 k3R 2 A R A R B R
145 < il T EL BT B A 22 L B A R
A B LB 2 B A R o A B B
0% 1 LS B - ik PR R IR NI AT 0
HHEAT 0 $E Mt
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued
Marvrket risk

Market risk can be described as the risk of change in fair
value of a financial instrument due to changes in interest

rates, equity prices or foreign currency exchange rates.
y ¥

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank balances. The Group currently
does not have an interest rate hedging policy. However,
the management monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate risk should the

need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The management considers that the Group’s exposure to
cash flow interest rate risk on variable-rate bank balances as
a result of the change of market interest rate is insignificant
due to low interest rates on bank balances at the end of the
reporting period, thus no sensitivity analysis is prepared for

cash flow interest rate risk.

Equiry price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities which classified as
financial asset at FVPL. The directors of the Company
manage the exposure by closely monitoring the portfolio of
these financial instruments. The fair value of these financial
instruments will be affected either positively or negatively,
amongst others, by the changes in the closing market prices

of the relevant listed equity securities.

Sensitivity analysis

No sensitivity analysis has been prepared as the directors of

the Company consider the price risk is not significant.

Currency risk

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
currency risk exposure is not significant as most of the
transactions and financial assets and liabilities of the group
entities are denominated in the functional currencies of the
respective entities. Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis has

been presented on the currency risk.

HE-_ZT-_—_F#=-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022
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BHE_T-_—_#=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued
Credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position, which is net of

impairment losses, represents the Group’s exposure to credit

risk.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties arises from
the carrying amounts of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial

position.

The Group exposes to credit risk, which is the risk that a
counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in full when
due. Impairment allowances are made for losses that are
expected at the end of the reporting period. Significant
changes in the economy, government policy or speculation
environment of the stock market could result in losses that
are different from those provided for at the end of the
reporting period. Management therefore carefully manages
its exposure to credit risk. The Group’s internal credit risk
grading assessment for financial assets, except for accounts
receivable under HKFRS 15, compiled as the following

categories:

tRMITHEH-&
MERMEEAERKE &

EHER
5 45 RS IR 01 2 2 L W 4 L R 10

R T L 7% 101 B 9k Ml R 3 AR R A £ )
T 3¢ 114 £ B gt i 1T

R 52 5y 65 75 R BEJE AT B AT T W] A AR 4R
V) 7 A 5 M 4R 2 A 4 ] A R A R L
B o JhAR A &5 MBS IR DLR i 41 4% T
CL i 8 2 Al 7 2 BRI (H o

B U R R N
355 77 1 B ) 5 R B8 SCAT 4 B o ik I ik
R FE UM 8R4 B 18 - A SR Bt
LA B (BB o AU~ BUR BB T 4%
BRI A R E) - W E A 2 s
HEHEMRCEREE AR - B
b 2R A AR P (R B LR o ARIR
T 5 e R B 15 5% > AS 4R
& EE (BRI WCRIASN) 2 R (S &
P T A ) LR B A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued
Credit risk — continued

Internal credit rating

R EBEEFFR

Performing

J& # H

Underperforming

V& %1% YLK AE

Not performing

I #

Write-off

i

Description

RS

HE-T-_—F=A=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2022
tWMIAE-&
ERREEEERBKX &

EERE &
ECL treatment

FHEEEBRZEEL X

The balances that have not had a significant ~ 12-month (Normal Credit Quality)

increase in credit risk since initial

recognition and 12-month ECL will be

recognised

ARG 2R A 8RR ALEE 2fH (ERFEEER)
1IN S A e RR 1 24 H TE IS Rk 1R

The balances that have had a significant

increase in credit risk since initial

Lifetime (Significant increase in

Credit Risk)

recognition and for which the lifetime ECL

will be recognised

A B AR 2 A5 BB B RS AR B I O B e B 1 )

T S 51 e 8 22 39 TR £ 4 1R

The balances that have objective evidence

Lifetime (Credit-impaired)

of impairment and for which the lifetime

ECL will be recognised

A7 TR A B Hh BB I I (R 1 10 e R

2 TS Bk 1R

The balances that have evidence indicating

that the debtor is in severe financial

difficulty and the Group has no realistic

prospect of recovery

2 (EA5 HR(E)

Amount is written off

A B A5 B B BUR (S R B T DL
A SR ] 38 T A 4 T e S S [ 3RO

ZHIE
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BHE_T-_—_#=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued
Credit risk — continued
Accounts receivable from margin clients

The Group provides financing services only to recognised
and creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that
all these margin clients are subject to credit verification
procedures. The margin loans are secured by pledged
marketable securities and margin facilities are set to
ensure that certain proportion of the fair value of pledged
marketable securities of the individual margin clients is

higher than the corresponding outstanding loans.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 57% (2021:
68%) of the total accounts receivable from margin clients

was due from the Group’s ten largest margin clients.

No aging analysis is disclosed, as in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the aging analysis does not
give additional value in view of the nature of business of

securities margin financing.

The Group’s customer base consists of a wide range of
clients and the accounts receivable from margin clients
are categorised by common risk characteristics that are
representative of the customers’ abilities to pay the amounts

due in accordance with the contractual terms.

In estimating the ECL and in determining whether there is
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
whether the accounts receivables from margin clients are
credit-impaired and the amount of loss given default, the
Group has taken into account the credit quality of margin
clients, the collateral to account receivable balances ratio,
amount of margin shortfall of margin clients and pledged
marketable securities and adjusted for forward-looking
factors that are specific to the debtors and general economic
conditions of the financial industry, in estimating the
probability of default of these financial assets, as well as
the loss upon default in each case. There was no change in
the estimation techniques or methodology made during the

year.

tRMITHEH-&
MERMEEAERKE &

FEmE—-&

JEN AR i 2 5 P HRIE

74 1 {8 e R RT LR B L Y B =
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AEREEFFHHERZEERE
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7 AE HR A NI 3 E PR W <5l 7 R A e R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued
Credit risk — continued
Accounts receivable from margin clients — continued

The Group has established a margin client credit risk
classification system and performs credit risk management
based on margin client classification in one of three
categories of internal credit rating. The information about
the ECL for the accounts receivable from margin clients
at the end of the reporting period is summarised below.
After considering the above factors, net impairment loss of
approximately HK$130,076,000 (2021: HK$55,703,000)
was recognised during the year.

At 31 March 2022

HE-_ZT-_—_F#=-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

tRMITHEH-&
MERMEEAEREE &

EEEE &
TR 35 2 5 )7 I — 48
AREMOEIRBEEFFEERS
ARG  WREBRBEEF 28 (5T
SHENERE B RS H o — ) AT
15 B0 VB B o A R R 22 BB AR
i 4 % PR TE Y TE S B e 1R G R
WMAE - WEE LMK EEL > FRE
it 2 Tok (L s 18 75 8 49130,076,000 % 7T
(ZF = —4F :55,703,000% 7C) °

R-B-_-_§=A=+—H

Gross Net
carrying Loss carrying
Internal credit rating Basis of ECL amount  allowance amount
REBEETR BHFEBEREXE AEEE BREEE FREE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TER TERT
Performing J& #7
— Ten largest margin - tRREEEF 12-month 128 H 1,589,543 7,460 1,582,083
clients (including (B4 1t 73 5T
Mr. Hung Hon Man T REE
and his close family KIEWE)
members)
— Other directors and — H ¥+ K% 12-month 1218 A 541 3 538
their close family i B % Kk
members which not A A
included in ten largest (R AN
margin clients REEEF N
— Other margin clients —— HAREEEF 12-month 121 A 1,058,100 15,777 1,042,323
2,648,184 23,240 2,624,944
Underperforming J& A 1E BR A Lifetime 146,241 49,065 97,176

Not performing KNIEH Lifetime

319,083 261,792 57,291

3,113,508 334,097 2,779,411
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE_T-_—_#=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued

Credit risk — continued

Accounts receivable from margin clients — continued

At 31 March 2021

6. TRITH-&

MEERBREEEERBEK-&

FEmE—-&
JEW AR % 2 5 7RI —

R-F_—F=H=+—H

Gross Net
carrying Loss carrying
Internal credit rating Basis of ECL amount  allowance amount
RN S TR B 1R A e BRWEE  EESHE  FREE
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
Tkt Tk T T
Performing J& #)
— Ten largest margin — +REBEERF 12-month 1248 H 2,478,290 11,639 2,466,651
clients (including (/B4 1 33 5L
Mr. Hung Hon Man TR RE
and his close family RIEHE)
members)
— Other directors and — Hph#E s g s 12-month 1218 A - - =
their close family i) B % R Ik
members which not WA A
included in ten largest (IR N
margin clients REEEF KN
— Other margin clients — HiRESEP 12-month 1218 H 998,030 4,674 993,356
3,476,320 16,313 3,460,007
Underperforming J& A0 15 IR Lifetime 21 70,578 10,953 59,625
Not performing N K] Lifetime EX 264,406 176,755 87,651
3,811,304 204,021 3,607,283
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HE-_ZT-_—_F#=-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. EMIA-&
Financial risk management objectives and policies MBEMREEEERBR &
— continued
Credit risk — continued EERE &
Accounts receivable from margin clients — continued JENT (R 5 2 % 7 BRI — 48
At 31 March 2022, the Group recognised loss allowance of MoE - HE=H=+—H > &AEH
approximately HK$334,097,000 (2021: HK$204,021,000) A PR 78 B % 5 R TE A AR g 4R
on its accounts receivable from margin clients. The 1 #9334,097,000% T (& = —4F
movement in the loss allowance for accounts receivable 204,021,000¥7C) © AN EIRAEE S X
from margin clients during the year is summarised below. F HRIE Y s R B s B R F o
Year ended 31 March 2022 BE-_Z-__F=A=+—HLFE
12-month ECL Lifetime ECL
REARAEEES rHRAEERE
Under- Not
Performing performing  performing Total
PR BRERRE TEH @zt
Other
Ten largest directors
margin clients and their
(including  close family
Mr. Hung members
Hon Man which not
and his  included in
close family ~ ten largest  Other margin
members) margin clients clients Total
EHESR
tAREE RENBRE
EF(BE ZHAE
REXEER  EFBER
BEFHE TAREE AtRES
BE) EFR EF &zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn
At the beginning of the i Sy )
reporting period 6,458 - 9,855 16,313 10,953 176,755 204,021
Increase in allowance, BEEmEs
net 1,002 3 5,922 6,927 38,112 85,037 130,076
At the end of the reporting bR 45 K
period 7,460 3 15,777 23,240 49,065 261,792 334,097
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BHE_T-_—_#=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. EMIA-#&
Financial risk management objectives and policies HMEEREREEEERKE &
— continued
Credit risk — continued EERE &
Accounts receivable from margin clients — continued TG (R 75 & 5 HRIH — 48
Year ended 31 March 2021 BE - —H=A=+—HILEE
12-month ECL Lifetime ECL
12M8 A SR 2HRNEEER
Under- Not
Performing performing  performing Total
Béth A ER X A At
Other
Ten largest directors
margin clients and their
(including  close family
Mr. Hung members
Hon Man which not
andhis included in
close family ten largest ~ Other margin
members)  margin clients clients Total
K& R
TARES  BENEE
EF(fff  #BRWA
WEXEER  EAEER
2RxE  TAREE  HbRES
B8 EF R kF At
HK$000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
T T T T T T T
At the beginning of the AR A
reporting period 7,861 = 8,547 16,408 7,822 124,088 148,318
Increase (Decrease) in B
allowance, net (W) B8 3,778 - (3.873) 95) 3,131 52,667 55,703
At the end of the reporting P
period 11,639 - 4,674 16,313 10,953 176,755 204,021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued
Credit risk — continued
Accounts receivable from margin clients — continued

The following significant changes in the gross carrying
amounts of the balances contributed to the increase in the

loss allowance during the year:

(i) Increase in shortfall portion of margin loans which
are not fully secured amounted to approximately
HK$337,850,000 (2021: HK$218,945,000); and

(i) Additional loss allowance for not performing
category of approximately HK$72,459,000 (2021:
HK$31,960,000) as a result of difficulties on

repayment by accounts receivable from margin clients.

The Group has pledged securities as collateral amounted to
approximately HK$41,307,000 (2021: HK$80,018,000)
in respect of the credit-impaired accounts receivable from

margin clients.

Deposits withﬁmmciﬂl institutions

The credit risk on bank balances — general accounts
is limited because majority of the counterparties are
financial institutions with high credit-ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies and state-owned banks
with good reputation. No loss allowance was recognised for

both years.

HE-_ZT-_—_F#=-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

6. TRITH-&

MEERERERRBE-&

EEmME-&

HEW AR % 2 % 7RI —

DT &5 % 48 R T (B0 Y K 58 ) S B 4
AL s £8 98 A 18

() A5 WO 2 R H
FHE KR 43 38 1 £9337,850,000 7

G (T F = — 4 1 218,945,000
Jt) 5 M

(i) FH A R PR R 4 P R TE 7 TH Y
7 IR 5 R R R A LRI AR WA
A1 i 18 15 4 #972,459,000% 7T (—
K —4 1 31,960,00045 76) ©

7 45 1) 5 B A B I 1Y FE i IR 5
K P HRIE A 141,307,000 #0 (&
T —4F 1 80,018,000% t) Z B KA 7B
FAE 2y FEAH G

T T 1 2 77k
RIOTHEHR - BWIRFZFEERRA
BR o PR 2 K BB A 52 5 3 7 7 M6 R A
BRSO T R B AT AR 2 A
W L B A R (5 B B A SRAT o A
A JEE 4% Sl 08 Tl s 1R A
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BHE_T-_—_#=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued
Credit risk — continued

Promissory note receivable from the immediate holding

company

The Group considers that the promissory note receivable
from GN Holdings has low credit risk based on GN
Holdings’ strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term and low risk of default.
Impairment on the promissory note receivables is measured
on 12-month ECL.

In estimating the ECL the Group has taken into account
the issuer previous historical actual credit loss experience,
financial information and adjusted for forward-looking
factors that are specific to the debtors and general economic
conditions of the industry in which the counterparty
operates, in estimating the probability of default of the
promissory note receivable, as well as the loss upon default
in each case. The management of the Group considers
the 12-month ECL of promissory note receivable to be
insignificant, so no loss allowance was recognised during the

year.

Liquidity risk

As part of its ordinary broking activities, the Group is
exposed to liquidity risk arising from timing difference
between settlement with clearing house or brokers and
customers. To address the risk, the treasury team works
closely with the settlement division on monitoring the
liquidity gap. The Group manages its liquidity risk through
maintaining sufficient cash. As part of the measures to
safeguard liquidity, the Group has maintained substantial
stand-by banking facilities, diversifying the funding sources

and spreading out the maturity dates.

6. TRITH-&

MEERBREEEERBEK-&

EEESE &
TG A FE I L R A

AR o HEIRA R IR R
1A A A B AT A # B e I R AR L
o 78 40 A B A > W0 A 2 TR B ik
TR SL R B A RS SRR o UK
HEE 5% 14 3ok (B0 4% 120 H T8 0145 B s 48 5t
5 .

st EE S EEE - AEEC %R
BAT B AL R B AR B R KB - B
B5EORE o Sl AR R USRI A R
R T 07 BT R AT S — B RS Ak
PR AE 9 R DUAG & WOR S8 E 22 1Y
BRI > DR A DL T & A
18 o AR S 1A B R 3 2 B WSOK S i 5
1248 A I E BRI A=K
L AR A TR NI e s R 9 A4

B E L ERE
SPNCSVES R USROS e
B WO SR T IR 2 B Ah R T A A %
% 2 T 46 S b B IR 2 T T O )
S R\ B o 7 B B DL TH R B > FE S X (R
BgAMMBEESE FEZEES
ZEHRH o AEHIE MM LB B
PEOFC U B < Jm B o A A PR B R B
e —F > ARB O MRS RE
i AR AT R ORI B B
BIIH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued
Liquidity risk — continued
Liquidity and interest risk tables

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities and lease
liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. The tables
have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities and lease liabilities according to the
earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.
The tables include both interest and principal cash flows.
The difference between the “Total undiscounted cash flows”
column and the “Carrying amount at the end of reporting
period” column represents the future contractual cash
flows attributable to the instrument which are not included
in the carrying amount of the financial liabilities and

lease liabilities on the consolidated statement of financial

HE-_ZT-_—_F#=-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

tRMITHEH-&
MERMEEAEREE &

HEELEME—E

LB B 2 BT 5w B Y 7
TERHEAAEECMARLHERH
AR 48 Hih 5 7 K Aok K 2 R B A9 B RR o
AR AR A A EOR R
Bl (AR B n] B LR 2
ZHB) MR o TREAENE RAE
BemE - [RGB RS REAH] —
B L[ i 5 R 2 R T (| — 3] 2 ]
M= RRA W THEMGRKREL
Bg U8 o A BB R A
& Al AR S R B A RO AR B S IR D
RZIRWHE -

position.
Carrying
Repayable amount at
in less More than Total the end of
Repayable than Within  1year butless  undiscounted  the reporting
on demand 1 month lyear  than 2 years cash flows period
AEERX  AREA —E% AERRE RESHER
& hiEE -£R BRER REAE ZIRE{E
HKS$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TR TR FTER TR TER TR
At 31 March 2022 A—E__F
=A=t-H
Accounts payable T AROR 303,553 213,577 - - 517,130 517,124
Accrued charges and REst % A
other payables TEft 50 - 6,277 - - 6,277 6,277
Lease liabilitics HERHE - 172 7,862 7,200 15,234 14915
303,553 220,026 7,862 7,200 538,641 538,316
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BHE_T-_—_#=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued
Liquidity risk — continued

Liquidity and interest risk tables — continued

tRMITE-&

MEERBREEEERBEK-&

MEBELERE—E
B & R F 5 g 7 7 —

Carrying
Repayable amount at
in less More than Total the end of
Repayable than Within 1 yearbutless  undiscounted  the reporting
on demand 1 month lyear  than 2 years cash flows period
AEER  AR—MA —EfE O KEEBEE  RERENK
% & — R (R Wi E A T (H
HKS$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T Ti#x T T Ti#x T
At 31 March 2021 NER T
=ZA=1+—H
Accounts payable JE IR 303,347 392,458 - = 695,805 695,799
Accrued charges and fEt 2 ) R KAty
other payables T 200R - 43,137 - - 43,137 43,137
Lease liabiliies HE A - 173 1,793 835 2,801 2,758
303,347 435,768 1,793 835 741,743 741,694

The following tables detail the Group’s expected maturity
for certain financial assets. The tables below have been
drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities
of the financial assets, including interests that will be
earned on those assets, except for those financial assets
which are repayable on demand. The analysis is based
on when the Group anticipates that the cash flows will
occur. The difference between the “Total undiscounted
cash flows” column and the “Carrying amount at the end
of reporting period” column represents the possible future
cash flows attributable to the instrument which are not
included in the carrying amount of the financial asset on the
consolidated statement of financial position. The inclusion
of information on financial assets is necessary in order to
understand the Group’s liquidity risk management as the

liquidity is managed on a net asset and liability basis.

TRBAEAEES T EMEREZHH
BIMA - TRIRBEMERERIE G
A2 DL (B 4% 5% 5 B I R
AL o e At e R R 2 < i 7 R
Sb o A B o3 M 5 R A R A A T A B
4 UL BB A T B L R T A B o TR B B
Bl &M — 5 EI R REHRZ
MR | —F 2 28 - RERABRT
L AG R AT TE B & i B - A B B
45 B N A < AR R AR S B RS
ARVLR Z IR E - iR E) & &R AR
15 4 B A f VR R . [ > U
kAT B < R E DR B A A AR
o 7 ) < o A B AR R 0 LY o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued
Liquidity risk — continued

Liquidity and interest risk tables — continued

HE-T-_—F=A=+—

Year ended 31 Mar
tWMIAE-&

MERMEEREERBEX &

REEL R —&
B & 2 R 5 g 7 7 —

BIEFE
ch 2022

Carrying
Repayable amount at
Repayablein ~ Repayable between  Repayable Tol  theend of
Repayable on less than between 3 months to between undiscounted  the reporting
demand Lmonth  1to3 months lyer  1toDyears Undated ~ cash flows petiod
AREX  AMBR 1BfARm SfERE  -FERF FERRE  RAEER
L ARE BE -EnlE i BEE  RESE  /BEE
HKS$000 HKS$'000 HKS$000 HKS'000 HKS$000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HKS$000
Tén TEn T#rn TEn T TEn Tén TE7

At 31 March 2022 R-8-2F=R=1-H
Accounts receivabl, net BRI 2,780,119 47,035 = = - - 87056 282639
Deposits and other receivables Be R LR 0,426 - - - - - 0,426 6,426
Invesement f& - - - - SRR /AN /A U

Promissory note receivable from BRERERAARIEZR
the immediate holding company = 1,650 3,300 14,850 211,209 - 231,009 218913
Bank balances-client accounts RhR-ZFER 383,206 97,091 - - - - 480,897 480,897
Bunk bebncesgenerl accons end et RATEB-—REFRAE 656857 5,564 514,409 - - - 12680 1226573
3,826,608 201,940 517,709 14,850 211,209 58,197 4830513 4,817,402
Carrying
Repayable Total amount at
Repayable on  Repayable in less ~ between I to 3 undiscounted the end of the
demand  than 1 month months Undated cash flows  reporting period

A
AEEX  ARER 1EEAR ARREE  REREEA
fi iR fi R WEA®  ZRAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i fen FEE PG T ThR
At31 March 2021 R-2--F=f=t-H

Accounts receivable, net JEIR R 3,608,108 47,854 E = 3,095,962 3,055,082
Deposits and other receivables 154 R REaR 4612 = = = 4612 4,612
Investments /4 - - - 2,200 2,200 2,200
Bank balances-client accounts BEn-ZRRF 571,461 84,779 - - 656,240 656,240
Bank balances-general accounts and cash 474t —— MRIRF kB4 259,525 54,543 14,124 = 328,192 328,186
4,443,706 187,176 14,124 2,200 4,647,206 4,646,320
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BHE_T-_—_#=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Fair value measurements

The following presents the assets and liabilities measured

at fair value or required to disclose their fair value in these

financial statements on a recurring basis across the three
levels of the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 13

Fair Value Measurement, with the fair value measurement

categorised in its entirety based on the lowest level input

that is significant to the entire measurement. The levels of

inputs are defined as follows:

(i)

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ##€mEBER AT o

Level 1 (highest level): quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the

Group can access at the measurement date;
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or

liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 (lowest level): unobservable inputs for the asset

or liability.
Financial assets measured at fair value

Financial assets Fair value at 31 March

SHEE RZBA=+-H2Z2AHE
2022 2021
ZBIZE | "R F
HK$°000 HK$’000
TR Ti#T
Unlisted investments — 2,117 2,061
Payment for life insurance policy
(note 24)
ELETHRE-AFREZ
K (H5E24)
Unlisted fund (note 24) 55,917 =
A b (M EE24)
Listed equity securities (note 24) 163 139
Tl A S (i RE24)

tWMITE-&

AREHE

DR 2 LA A B M 45 O A M 31 o
WEAARBZEELAME HEE
Vs B S R4 1 S 1358 20 7 1 4 T
REZ ZMBRDET > % hA M
B 55 A AR R R R A
A T 0 A B B 4 o WA B B
PR EIT

o 1 ( ) AREE AR
Hﬁﬁﬂﬂl%Z*Hﬁ%‘?ﬁEﬁﬁA
{6 BT P 2 R ORAETH )

o 2 HIUEEFBZIMEUN - E
7 BB P B A
AN B R

o 3 (RK)E
4E 75 B 5% ﬁk%ﬁ(ﬁ"‘

CHEERARMZ

(i) AR EFEZ 2 EE

Fair value Valuation techniques
hierarchy and key inputs
AR R
MRAEER TEBAHE
Level 3 Surrender cash value (including
guaranteed interest), reported by the
financial institution on a regular basis
#3JE BB EE (AERHEANL)
7 — [ < O R A 300 E 4
Level 2 Net asset value
LY B EHE
Level 1 Quoted prices in an active market
H1E i 8 117 35 2 1

There were neither transfers between Level 1 and Level
2 fair value measurement nor transfers into and out
of Level 3 fair value measurement during years ended
31 March 2022 and 2021. The only movement in the
Level 3 fair value measurement is the change in fair

value.

A E ?::fﬁ&~$: =2
ZA=Zt—HIREE > H1E R
28 o> SR fE T 2 O i B
5308 oy fuE w A A S
oo 3N RMEF B 22 H)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Fair value measurements — continued

(ii) Financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at

fair value

The management of the Group considers that
the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in
the consolidated statement of financial position

approximate their fair values.

Financial assets and financial liabilities subject to

offsetting

The disclosures set out in the tables below include
financial assets and financial liabilities that are subject
to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar
agreement that covers similar financial instruments that are

either:

e offset in the Group’s consolidated statement of

financial position; or

* not offset in the Group’s consolidated statement of

financial position as the offsetting criteria are not met.

Under the agreement of continuous net settlement made
between the Group and Hong Kong Securities Clearing
Company Limited (“HKSCC”) and a broker, the Group has
a legally enforceable right to set off the money obligations
receivable and payable with HKSCC and a broker on the
same settlement date and the Group intends to settle on a

net basis.

In addition, the Group has a legally enforceable right
to set off the accounts receivable and payable with its
retail customers in the Group’s brokerage business (the
“brokerage clients”) that are due to be settled on the same
date with reference to the settlement method set by the
HKSCC and the Group intends to settle these balances on a

net basis.

HE-_ZT-_—_F#=-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

6. TRITH-&

DAREFE-&

(ii) T LT 7R 2 B R
=M A HE
A £ [ T R 2 R AR A T IR
DU 12 0 59 A 31 Bk 2 4 Al R
Je 4 A 2 SR T (E SLAS B 2 %
FAEHA -

TREERSHMEEIEH

R T Z BER AR R B A R
VR BT 2 B — B A T M ok O 3R
ML e @ T H 2 B % PR & flE =
SEA SN

o RALEMESMBIRILEILSEE
)

o DRI 2 TR A0 1 T 7 88 A AR 4R
P &5 A BB AR DR AR S

AR A 5 1] 5L 7 o P R 5 R PR A
([ WA ) R A8 A0 3T 1O 35 P 31
5 0 W vk o AN SR BB 5 3 T o A L
A7 HE ) 1K B 7 A A A B A6 A R A [ A
S H 0 e Wi R A RO BEAE o T LA
EEAFUFE T LR -

B Ak > 2 %5 5 i 5 AT LI A5 5 7
%> AL A G5 T AT HE AT 8
AEEBLEBZEFEREF (BLF
J5 1) W TR] O 0 A6 A R i R B A R
W i HAS SR A R A T AR
LS5 &5 R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZT_—_F#=-A=+—HLFE

Year ended 31 March 2022

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. EMIA-#&
Financial assets and financial liabilities subject to cTHEEHSHEEEE &
offsetting — continued
Except for balances which are due to be settled on the same [ s 416 88 2 AR [E] B 21 20 1A 45 54 19 45 ik
date which are being offset, amounts due from/to HKSCC, Ah > R B R 4 AR A S AE A AT R
a broker and the brokerage clients that are not to be settled BliE % F AR 07 AT RAT > SIS AR
on the same date, financial collateral including cash and [F] HHA &5 500 B Uk IR A 5 ik &5 4E -
securities received by the Group and deposits placed with RERRELKFHIE - SRERY (8
HKSCC and a broker do not meet the criteria for offsetting FEAEEC IR S NGBS ~ BN
in the consolidated statement of financial position since WA A MREZ S WA G IR 4R
the right of set-off of the recognised amounts is only A AR UL R IR 2 AR A o
enforceable following an event of default.
Gross amounts
of recognised
financial ~ Net amounts of
liabilities ~ financial assets
set offin the presented in the
Grossamounts  consolidated  consolidated Related amount not st offin the
of recognised statement statement consolidated statement of financial position
financial assets ~ of financial ~ of financial Financial Collateral
after impairment position position  instruments pledged ~ Net amount
NEoHE  REREE
AEE  RRREE  ARRED
BEALR ZCREEE  2oHEE PERGRUBRRZ T ES 2 RBLE
EEAE  ARAE BE  GRIR CERERM #E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TRR TR TR TRn T
At31 March 2022 R-R-ZE=f=1-A
Accounts receivable arising from the business of EARMERHER L
dealing in securities and furure contracts iy JlE 2,979,387 (152,991 282639 (1,000)  (2,760510) 64,886
GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ##€mi&EBEHER 25 o ANNUAL REPORT 2022 3§



6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial assets and financial liabilities subject to

offsetting — continued

e A T R AR B R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE_T_—_#F#=A=+—HLEFE

Year ended 31 March 2022

6. $RITH-&
LHEERSREBE I EY &

(Gross amounts
of recognised
financial
liabilities set

Net amounts of
financial assets

offinthe  presented in the
Grossamountsof ~ consolidated ~ consolidated Relted amount not et offin the
recognised statement statement consolidated statement of financial position
financial assets of financial of financial Financial Collateral
after impairment position position instruments pledged Net amount
REREH  RERME
WEE  RREREH  RRERES
CRAEH ZCHASH  (SHEE T ER G MR RN RS HR 2%
EEAR  AR4E TE O AEIE CHENERD 8
HKS$000 HK§'000 HK$000 HK§000 HK§'000 HK$'000
T T T Tk Tk Tk
At31 March 2021 W-B=-£Z8=1-H
Accounts receivable arising from the business of BRRMERAREER
dealing in securities and future contracts B EIRE 3,797,451 (142,369) 3,655,082 (1,033) (3,582,649) 71,400
Gross amounts  Net amounts
of recognised o financial
financial assets liabilities
set offin the  presented in the
Gossamounts  consolidated  consolidated  Related amount not set offin the consolidated
of recognised statement statement statement of financial position
financial ~ offinancial  of financial Financial Collateral
liabilities position position  instruments pledged ~ Net amount
RERHE
RRZEE2  REAHE
BRZ  CREER HRRESZ YERGAUBRRRMEE 2 RBLE
SRaRNE EESE CRBETE SRIR CHERERY B
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000
Thn Thn Thn Tén Tén Tén
At31 March 2022 W-8ZZEZf=t-AR
Accounts payable arising from the business BERMEROEE L
of dealing in securities and futures contracts elvd {3 (670,115) 152,991 (517,124) 1,000 - (516,124)
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BHE_T-_—_#=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial assets and financial liabilities subject to

offsetting — continued

6. $RITH-&
CREERSHABEIIKE &

(Gross amounts
of recognised
financial assets
set off in the

Net amounts
of financial
liabilities
presented in the

Related amount not set off in the consolidated

Grossamounts  consolidated ~ consolidated
of recognised statement statement statement of financial position
financial of financial of financial Financial Collateral
liabilices position position instruments pledged Nt amount
RERRH
hHERE,  RERME
ElR  CHIeR RRRENZ TERG S HERAE T ES R LR
SHARAE  HEAW SMRERE  2MIR CHMERD i
HK§000 HK§'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§000
T Tin T T T T
At31 March 2021 R-2=-E=f=1-H
Accounts payable arising from the business BRI B
of dealing in securities and futures contracts Bl 2R (838,168) 142,369 (695,799) 1,033 - (094,766)
The amounts which have been offset against the related E A A 4 B 45 A BA IR LR BLAR B 2

recognised financial assets and financial liabilities in the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position are
measured on the same basis as the recognised financial assets

and financial liabilities, which is amortised cost.

il 0 < A N BRI 2 R K
B ke 0 < L I B UML) 2 e
(B % i 35 A & -
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HE-_ZT-_—_F#=-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

7. REVENUE 7. Wz
2022 2021
—E—-= X T
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T #5T
Revenue from contracts with customers & /& 9§ & EBIFE 155
within HKFRS 15 HEANZEFEHAWSE
Brokerage commission K4 50,858 49,385
Underwriting and placing commission A1 81 I e 5 A 4 5,830 8,751
Proof of funds commission & 4w AR 4 200 8,208
Other commission HAth A 4 793 88
Clearing and handling fee income HE AT EEBA 1,691 1,807
Asset management fee income EE S ML A 2,383 -
Advisory fee income FHE AN 2,672 905
Management fee SN — 2,520
64,427 71,664
Interest revenue calculated using the 1 B R B A 2
effective interest method FIE NG 7
— Bank balances and time-deposits — SRAT & R K A K 3,141 1,942
— Other financial assets at amortised costs — Y AR T 2
A 4 &
— Accounts receivable — B IR IE 287,259 307,714
290,400 309,656
Total revenue W 2 48 58 354,827 381,320

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 5§
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BE_Z-__F=A=+—RLLFE

Year ended 31 March 2022

7. REVENUE - continued 7. Wi — &
In addition to the information shown in segment

disclosures, the revenue from contracts with customers

B 70 ¥ 48 5 T 8 EDRL S o A i S R
o e QI S 1 S SRR 1B A I R R S A AR

within HKERS 15 is disaggregated as follows: SrEHIE
2022 2021
—Eg2=-= —E A
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT T
Timing ofrevenue recognition: Yg 7 Az 5%/7%'7’/5‘[3 :
At a point in time RERE
Brokerage commission A 4 50,858 49,385
Underwriting and placing commission £ 81 T i 5 A 4 5,830 8,751
Proof of funds commission B4 R WA 4 200 8,208
Other commission oAt AR 4 793 88
Clearing and handling fee income LR T T B I 1,691 1,807
59,372 68,239
Over time BE B
Advisory fee income e [ 2 e A 2,672 905
Asset management fee income SR e PN 2,383 -
Management fee ESEN PN - 2,520
5,055 3,425
GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED #&#r<Ri5&EBEHBMR AT o ANNUAL REPORT 2022 iR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is currently organised into five operating
divisions, namely, broking, securities margin financing,
corporate finance, asset management and investment. These
divisions are the basis on which the Board of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker, reviews the
operating results and financial information. The principal
activities of these divisions are as follows:

Broking — Provision of stockbroking,
futures and options broking and
underwriting and placements

Securities margin — Provision of securities margin
financing financing

Corporate finance —  Provision of corporate advisory
services

Asset management — DProvision of asset management
services

Investments — Investment in financial
instruments

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 2
to the consolidated financial statements. For the purposes of
monitoring segment performance and allocating resources
between segments:

e all assets are allocated to operating segments other than
certain property and equipment, club memberships,
certain prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
promissory note receivable from the immediate
holding company, certain bank balances and certain
tax recoverable.

e all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than certain accrued charges and other payables,
certain deferred tax liabilities and certain tax payable.

e all profit or loss are allocated to operating segments
other than certain depreciation expenses, certain lease
payments for short-term leases or leases of low value
assets/operating lease rentals, certain management fee,
certain finance costs, certain staff costs and certain
other expenses incurred for strategic planning by the
Group.

Segment information about these divisions is presented
below.

HE-_ZT-_—_F#=-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

2EHER

A 45 8 By 73 ) A8 7 A R o R AR
foBHRREEME hEME &
EEMH, URBE - ZEMARAL
FAERE (M EEEERKE) FRK
CES VAR g e SRR VE Sl
ZEBFEBWME

e — RERELR - R
L SARERS s s > LA
Fe 8 B e 4

RS — RESHREEME

EmE  — RO SR H RS
HEEH - REtEEE R
B - BEeMTHE

REB O W0 2 @ T BUR BLER G B R
B RE2 BT 2 A 4R B 2 & R EBURAAIR © 2
B 5% TR AR B K 43 H R 2 B IR 40 B

o BRERA M KB - & T E R
PR TR RIE ~ 3% B B L At 1 i
AR ~ B WCE R ] R S
5~ 0y SR AT &5 B K HR 43 R i Bl
BLIASL > BT A B E S E 7 il 2 &
B o

o BRI MBSt 2T K OH At B AT IR
TH ~ ¥ 45 2 SE B TE R R T A5
fHBLIE SN > B A 0 Bl 2 48
BOTHS o

o BRESADITEE B S~ AR A
s AE (A B 2 A& A R
HEME  WHEHRER - 5
B A - R AR B TR B A
LA B2 I SR WS R P A A HL A
PS4 - BT A i A Bk 4R B 3 i

EREE AR o

BLAE R 1 2 70 50 R E B FI AR e
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BHE_T-_—_#=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and

results by reportable operating segments.

Year ended 31 March 2022

o EE R &

2 UK R

DAF B 420 F 45 AL A B AR A 2 A
9 T 5 3 T AR HG ST -

BE-ZE-_-_F=ZA=+—-HLFE

Securities
margin  Corporate Asset
Broking financing finance management Investments Consolidated
#5
&e RESRE LEME BEEE RE &E
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TER TER TER TER TER
Segment revenue Mk s 62,721 287,051 2,672 2,383 - 354,827
Segment result N ES (696) 156,975 2,416 2,122 902 161,719
Unallocated other gains and losses, net 74 e F A& &
BREE 339,767
Unallocated other operating income A7 Ft S fth & LA K
and corporate expenses, net PEERBE (1,728)
Unallocated finance costs F 4 B AR (38)
Profit before taxation T i i A 499,720
Year ended 31 March 2021 BE-Z-—F=A=+—HIFE
Securities
margin Corporate
Broking financing finance Consolidated
fog
Ba RELEME > ERE Rty
HK$’000 HK$000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
T SR SREPIn R
Segment revenue UL 73,812 306,603 905 381,320
Segment result LRIES 21,693 250,900 606 273,199
Unallocated corporate expenses R B A H (14,804)
Unallocated finance costs 7R 43 Tl AR (511)
Profit before taxation Tl Al Ve ) 257,884
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-_ZT-_—_F#=-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 8. AWER-—&|
Segment assets and liabilities PTHMEEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and PLR 2 #2780 T i R Ay iRk 2 A
liabilities by reportable operating segments. B EE XA T -
At 31 March 2022 R=FB=-—"f=A=t—H
Securities
margin  Corporate Asset
Broking financing finance management Investments Consolidated
2%

B RELRME LXEE HEER k& Ra
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TER TER TER TER TER TER

Segment assets i ERE 1,564,843 3,002,337 11,122 7,115 56,440 4,641,857
Unallocated assets FO B E 235,045
Consolidated assets GRERE 4,876,902
Segment liabilitics o B 315,097 222,492 95 493 - 538177
Unallocated liabilities APEAR 763
Consolidated liabilities GeAR 538,940

At 31 March 2021 WoE——F=H=+—H

Securities
margin Corporate

Broking financing finance Consolidated
GG REAME  SEME 5h

HKS$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T Tt Tix Tix

Segment assets 73 R 756,204 3,894,302 10,419 4,660,925
Unallocated assets AR HL & 116,419
Consolidated assets OB E 4,777,344
Segment liabilities Sy A 418,735 295,300 82 714,117
Unallocated liabilities Ao B E 42,181
Consolidated liabilities A AR 756,298
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE_T-_—_#=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

8. IHER-&E

Other segment information Hth 5 EHER
2022 —E—=
Securities
margin  Corporate Asset
Broking financing finance management Investments  Unallocated  Consolidated
&%
BE RECME OL¥ME  BEEE k& AAE &a
HKS$000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HKS$000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$’000
TER TEn TéEn TER ThEn TéEn TER
Amounts included in the measure of RN BRI HEE L
segment profit or segment assets: R
Additions of property and equipment WERREZRE 40,191 - - = = - 40,191
Depreciation of property and equipment 413 Rt fif 2 97 (13,334) - - 6) - (1) (13,338)
Fair value gains on investments REZ A s 79 - - - 918 - 997
Gain on disposal of property and HEME R 2
equipment - - - - - 950 950
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 40) B B 8 ] 2 W
(Hrik40) - - - - - 3887 338817
Government subsidies B AR 410 - - 80 - - 490
Incerest income (including revenue and 7 BA (B &
other operating income) Hi&EMRA) 3,375 287,051 8 = = 6,181 296,615
Provision of net impairment loss on TEMURIE 2 W s R v
accounts receivable i - (130,076) - - - - (130,076)
Write-off of intangible assets i S (451) - - - = = (451)
Finance costs BERA (724) - - - - (39) (763)
Commission expenses iEAEDT (12,496) - (182) - - - (12,678)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Other segment information — continued

2021

Amounts included in the

measure of segment

profit or segment assets:

Additions of property and
equipment

Additions of property and
equipment through
acquisition of a
subsidiary

Additions of intangible
assets through
acquisition of a
subsidiary

Depreciation of property
and equipment

Fair value gains on
investments

Government subsidies

Interest income (including
revenue and other

operating income)

A A
W2
3 R 20
BN
R R

A5 908 M O 2 )
REEVEE

BN & & P
£ &2 n R fE R
TLJRE
FIEWA (B 1

Wi R H A
A

Provision of net impairment [ i iz T 2 Ji (B

loss on accounts
receivable
Finance costs
Commission expenses
Write-off of accounts

receivable

i 45 1 A

il B A
{2 A 52
A 4 1 Wi e

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Broking

HK$000
T

4,885

335

550
(1,788)
95

3,045

3,123

(4,9606)
(12,750)

Securities
margin
financing
g

i
PR 2 A
HK$°000
T#T

306,603

(55,703)

(193)

HE-_ZT-_—_F#=-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022
D EER - &
Hihp MER — &

TE T 4R
Corporate
finance Unallocated  Consolidated
PEME R4 B A
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FHE  FEE TEE
= - 4,885
- - 335
- - 550
- (4,010) (5,798)
- - 95
- - 3,045
23 - 309,749
= = (55,703)
- (511) (5,477)
(152) = (12,902)
= = (193)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE_T-_—_#=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong.
Accordingly, the Group’s revenue from external customers

and all non-current assets (excluding financial assets and

deferred tax assets) are located in Hong Kong.

Information about major customers

During the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, there

were no customers individually contributing 10% or more

of the Group’s total revenue.

DEHER —&E

ih & & B

REMEZ EBHORER - B A%
B2 AR K F 2 ia & A R i
EE OREHE 4 R E R B S
) B R i o

ERFEEF2EH

i e S - G e e |
=+ —H L I T E B /R
A £ [ AR 3R 10% 8 DA E 2 B R o

RBE_F__FR-F_—F=H

During the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, the
aggregate revenue attributable to the five largest customers

of the Group accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s

total revenue.

EFRZE
AR e

=t —HIEFEE RN AEETE KR
F I £ G A 4R [ AR 2 22 30%

9. OTHER OPERATING INCOME 9. Hib&EEWA
2022 2021
—_EgE=-= X T
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 51 FHET TH#IT
Bank interest income SRAT A Bl A 34 93
CCASS income AR R S 2,877 =
Government subsidies O # B (a) 490 3,045
Interest income from promissory note EL % & /> 7l #5471 2
issued by the immediate holding TR SRR 2 R B A
company 23 6,181 =
Sundry income HAth g A 312 696
9,894 3,834
Note: Bt 51
(a) During the year, the Group recognised subsidies of (@) A > R 20197 R 7 B R R TRAT >

approximately HK$490,000 in respect of the Financial
Industry Recruitment Scheme for Tomorrow under
the Financial Service and the Treasury Bureau (2021:
approximately HK$2,895,000 and HK$150,000 respectively
in respect of the Employment Support Scheme and
the Subsidy Scheme for the Securities Industry under

Anti-epidemic Fund) of the Hong Kong SAR Government

due to the COVID-19 pandemic.

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED 4 #f @@ HR/A" o ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4R
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e A T R AR B R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-_ZT-_—_F#=-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

10. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET 10. Hfth it 22 R 518 3 88
2022 2021
—E—-= X T
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
i FET T
Gain on disposal of property and B W 2 K s 2 W i
equipment 950 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries A i S A\ 2 U gs 40 338,817 -
Net realised losses on error trades PERRAT A S 2 B AR B
i 18 VAR (7) (2)
Fair value changes on investments BEZ A RERH 997 95
Net exchange gains (losses) FEE 58,05 45 (fs 1)) 157 4 788 (364)
Write-off of intangible assets B TR (451) -
341,094 (271)
STAFF COSTS 11. BT A
2022 2021
—E-= BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THsIT
Staff costs including directors’ B LA (G 45 # F M) -
emoluments:
Salaries and other benefits 4 N HoAh AR A 23,632 21,230
Retirement benefit scheme contributions ER NI B 912 780
24,544 22,010
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE_T-_—_#=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

12. FINANCE COSTS 12. @& B A
2022 2021
—E_-— —E A
HK$’000 HK$000
FE T T T
Interest on bank borrowings SRATE & 2 | B 178 3,098
Interest on clients” accounts KERF ZF 5 119 1,827
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEZAME 427 41
Interest on loan from the immediate IR LY UNGIPAL =& IS
holding company 39 511
763 5,477
13. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 13. B Al & Al
This is stated after charging: AT FS S i
2022 2021
—E-CF —ZE — —lE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH5 T
Auditor’s remuneration % B B ) 1,360 1,360
Werite-off of accounts receivable L R A TR — 193
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’S AND EMPLOYEES’
REMUNERATION

(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s

remuneration

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the six

(2021: six) directors were as follows:

Year ended 31 March 2022

HE-_ZT-_—_F#=-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

14. EERTHRARKEEM S

(a)

EERTHRAZME

AT B N (L F T —4F N
Z)ERLHZMEWT ¢

BE-—Z-_—_f=H=+—H1Lt
EE

Executive
Director
and Chief Non-
Executive  Executive  executive
Officer ~ Director ~ Director  Independent Non-executive Directors
UTESR
TRBE UMEE FYTES BUFHTES
Mr. Shum Ms.Ng M. Cheung
Mr.Hung  KinWai, MrHung  Mr Chan  YauKuen,  ChiKong
Sui Kwan Frankie ~ Hon Man KaKit  Carmen Ronald Total
ARBEE SBEXE BEXEE RFARE ROBRL REI%E ag
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$°000
T Tz TEn TEx TR TEx  TEn
Fees (IEA - - - 120 120 120 360
Other emoluments: Him4
Salaries and other benefits (note i) B4 R AR () 709 497 = = = = 1,206
Performance and discretionary KRB BICAL (ki)
bonus (note ii) 89 62 - - - - 151
Contributions to retirement R AT B 5
benefit schemes 18 28 - - - - 46
Commission 1% 256 116 - - - - 372
Total emoluments Lk 1,072 703 - 120 120 120 2,135
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE_T-_—_#=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’S AND EMPLOYEES’
REMUNERATION - continued

(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s

remuneration — continued

Year ended 31 March 2021

4. EERTHAEAZREEN S

— 8

(a)

EERTTRAZME -&

BHE_F - F=A=t+—H1
FEE

Executive
Director
and Chief Non-
Executive Executive executive
Officer ~ Director ~ Director  Independent Non-executive Directors
ATEER
oA  HhEF FanES BukdhEs
Mr. Shum Ms.Ng  Mr. Cheung
Mr. Hung Kin Wai, ~ Mr.Hung Mr.ChanKa  YauKuen,  ChiKong
Sui Kwan Frankie  Hon Man Kit Carmen Ronald Total
Wmies ARELE BECEE BRREE ROBLL REIEE AE
HKS$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
Tt  FEx  FExr T T fEx TEx

Fees e - - - 120 120 120 360

Other emoluments: L% -

Salaries and other benefits (note i) 4 LA MEA () 709 496 - = = = 1,05

Performance and discretionary R RMRILAL (ki)

bonus (note i) 89 62 = = = - 151

Contributions to retirement N il =y

benefit schemes 18 28 = - = - 46

Commission iE3 193 180 - - - - 373

Total emoluments L1 1,009 766 s 120 120 120 2,135

Notes: it 3

(i) The balances shown above for executive directors, () LA BT S (R E e
namely Mr. Hung Sui Kwan and Mr. Shum Kin Wai, R A ) SRR
Frankie, were mainly for their services in connection T A S AR 7 A E 2
with the management of the affairs of the Company O TR A 2 IR -
and the Group.

(ii) Performance and discretionary bonus is determined (i) FBILIEEAL T2 BARLEN
with regard to the Group’s performance, the FBL BRI R AT BT 5 S
individual’s performance and comparable market FF B I o
statistics.

There was no arrangement under which a director or SIf7 4HE B 2 B 4T A R ]

the chief executive officer waived or agreed to waive WERE 2 - FR F—

any remuneration in the years ended 31 March 2022 F=H =+ —H 1k 4F B AT A 357

and 2021. In addition, no emoluments were paid by ZACHE o WA s R E S F T

the Group to any of the directors as an inducement to —zE - —sE= B = o — [ e 4E

join, or upon joining the Group or as a compensation B A 48 [ N7 4 ) AT o] 2 2 S A

for loss of office for the years ended 31 March 2022 B 4 > VB B f% 45 W A &£ |8 7 55

and 2021. BB B AE & o BOME £ Rk R e AE

4 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-_ZT-_—_F#=-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 4. ESRITHREABRREEHM &
OFFICER’S AND EMPLOYEF’ — 18
REMUNERATION - continued
(b) Employees’ remuneration b) EEMS

The five highest paid individuals of the Group
included one (2021: one) director of the Company.

The emoluments of the remaining four (2021: four)

highest paid individuals are set out as follows:

7 4 1) T Ao v B 8 BN —
MA(ZF 5 — ) BARAH
EH o

HERMAL (ZF = — 4 f7) i
E RN L2 BB RN

2022 2021

—E=-= —aE = —kE

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET T T

Salaries and other emoluments Hr 4 e At I 4 5,250 5,166
Contribution to retirement PR N I o R

benefits schemes 36 54

5,286 5,220

The emoluments of the individuals are within the

following bands:

HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001 % 7T £21,000,000%5 T
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 %5 7T £.1,500,000%: JC
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 %% 7€ %22,000,000% 7T

55 < T = A7 DL S E

Number of individuals

EEAE
2022 2021
—E-— TR T AR
1 —
3 3

There was no arrangement under which the four
highest paid individuals waived or agreed to waive
any remuneration for the years ended 31 March 2022
and 2021. In addition, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to the four highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office for the years ended 31
March 2022 and 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE_T-_—_#=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

15. TAXATION

The profits tax rate for the first HK$2,000,000 assessable
profits arising from Hong Kong of qualifying entities will
be taxed at 8.25%, and assessable profits arising from Hong
Kong above HK$2,000,000 will continue be taxed at the
rate of 16.5% under two-tiered profits tax rates regime. As
only one of the subsidiaries in the Group is eligible to elect
the two-tiered profits tax rates, profits of the remaining
subsidiaries of the Group will continue to be taxed at a flat
rate of 16.5%.

For the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, Hong Kong
Profits Tax is calculated in accordance with the two-tiered

profits tax rates regime.

15. B8

R 45 1 15 Bl Bl R/ Sk - A B S
e 96 2 2 19 12,000,000 0 E 35 Bl
i FI 4% L 8.259% 1) Bl SR AU A R A B > T
e A 9 2 2E 192,000,0009 7 LA L Y E
LR i P K A A LA 16.5% O BE R BB -
H A A 45 [ A 12— [ B 2 A A 288
R A5 B Bl 2R W A il 2 B A > AR
{3 B B 2 ) 2 i P A A L 16.5% 1
& — Bl HEL -

WE_F " HER_F_—~F=H4
=+ — B IREE > B A A5 A
o0 00 24 T A0 o A o

2022 2021
—E-= BT
HK$’000 HK$°000
F 5 Tt
Current tax B HA %5 18
Hong Kong Profits Tax MG
Current year AN 33,137 43,686
(Over) Under provision in prior years DAFEAF B Gl B )
A R (284) 921
32,853 44,607
Deferred tax IE R TE
Origination and reversal of temporary W7 I 2 S 7 A L 8 [l
differences (note 31) (B 5E31) - 68
Income tax expense Fr 45 Bt BA % 32,853 44,675

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ##€mEBER AT o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

T —F=A=1+—HILEFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

15.

16.

TAXATION - continued 15. HIE— &
Reconciliation of income tax expense SR ¥R
2022 2021
—E-= X4
HK$’000 HK$°000
FTERT T# T
Profit before taxation ol Hif Yo ] 499,720 257,884
Income tax at applicable tax rate 7 B ARG E 2 s 82,289 42,385
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax  H7H G B Wt A 2 B 5 5 2%
purpose (57,665) (848)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for A~ o] $I 8 B 32 2 B 75 5 ¢
tax purpose 7,974 1,800
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised o i R TE s 18 2 B S R 2 - 442
Utilisation of tax losses previously not B ) DAFE K i RR B I s 4R
recognised (226) -
(Over) Under provision in prior years DUFEAE B GER BB ) 8 R 2 (284) 921
Others HoAth 765 (25)
Income tax expense for the year A BE T 15 BB S 32,853 44,675
DIVIDENDS 16. I 5
2022 2021
—E—-— X T
HK$’000 HK$°000
FERT T#T
Final dividend for prior financial year, EAT b BB B R R R
paid — HK3 cents (2021: HK2 cents) — & 31l
per share (ZFZ—4F 22U ) 75,000 50,000
Interim dividend for current financial AT o A B BUAE B 2 rh A R
year, paid — HK3 cents (2021: HK3 — 1 3L
cents) per share (T —4F 33l 75,000 75,000
150,000 125,000

A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March
2022 of HK3 cents (2021: HK3 cents) per share,
amounting to HK$75,000,000 (2021: HK$75,000,000)
has been proposed by the directors of the Company and is
subject to the approval by the owners of the Company in

the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE_T-_—_#=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

17. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share

is based on profit attributable to the equity holders of the

Company and the weighted average number of ordinary

shares in issue during the year as follows:

17. R E R
AR B A 2 ) PR HE T 1 3 R B 4
PR B AT 08 P Y 49 e e oy
1 JR A I R 2 R T

Earnings s &l
2022 2021
—E-= BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT T#C
Earnings for the purpose of basic and R R R A S
diluted earnings per share e 722 ) 2 v A
Profit for the year attributable to equity 482\ 7] #E 45 I
shareholders of the Company JRE A £ 1A Y ) 466,867 213,209
Number of shares R EE
2022 2021
—E-= BT 4
’000 ’000
FR T
Weighted average number of ordinary F A T R R A R 4 v 2 A
shares, for the purpose of basic and 2 I n R T 2 i
diluted earnings per share 2,500,000 2,500,000

For the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, diluted

earnings per share are same as the basic earnings per share as

there are no dilutive potential ordinary shares in existence

during the year.
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HE-_ZT-_—_F#=-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

18. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 18. ¥R &RE
Right-of- Right-of-
use assets- use assets- Motor Furniture
Office Leaschold Leaschold ~ vehicles and Office and
premises land Buildings  improvements yacht equipment fixtures Total
ERREE- EREEE-

HARA gLt BT RENEEE REREE BOERE  GAR%E A

HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000

T Tt Tt Tt T Fibr T Fibr
Cost or Valuation HARE
Acl April 2020 REZZFFNA-H - 103780 37750 7416 29,64 9474 530 188,594
Addicions RE 3,665 = = = 658 56 6 4,88
Additions - acquisition of a subsidiary RE-WE-MIE LR - - - 105 - 10 - 335
Adjustment on revaluation EXE S - - 250 - - - - 250
Transfer to assets held for sale BRELELERR - (103,370) (36,600) - - - - (139,970)
At31 March 2021 REFZ-E=f=1-H 3,665 410 1,400 751 30,082 10,260 556 54,094
Comprising; i
Atcost S 3,665 410 - 751 30,08 10,260 556 52,694
At valuation fiff - - 1,400 - - - - 1,400
At31 March 2021 WoEZ—EZA= 1R 3,665 410 1,400 75 30,281 10,260 556 54,094
Ac 1 April 2021 RZZZ—-FmA—H 3,665 410 1,400 750 30,282 10,260 556 54,094
Addicions KE 20,89 - - 17,934 - 1340 1 40,191
Disposi il = - - - (1,200) - - (1,200)
Wi of #4 - - - (660 - 269 ) (414
At31 March 2022 RZBZZE=R=1-A 24,561 410 1,400 20,764 29,082 8,962 49 85,671
Comprising: ff
Arcos fi i 24,561 410 - 20,764 29,082 8962 92 84,71
At valuation b - - 1,400 - - - - 1,400
At31 March 2022 RZE-ZEZf=1-A 24,561 410 1,400 20,764 29,082 8,962 49 85,671
Accumulated amortisation/depreciation 23S /1T B
A April 2020 RoZ-ZEMA 0 - 36951 - 7,005 29,385 8,901 501 82943
Charges i1 1047 2453 1384 177 30 404 13 5,798
Eliminated on revaluation B IS - - (1,384) - = - - (1,384)
Transfer to assets held for sale RS ERE - (39,232) = = = = - (39,230)
At 31 March 2021 RE--EZA=1-H 1,047 172 - 7,38 29,705 9,305 514 48,125
Charges i1 8,791 10 59 3,668 165 632 1 13,338
Eliminated on revaluation B IS - - (59) - - - - (59)
Disposal e - - - - (1,200) - - (1,200
Wrie off it - - - (4691) - (2,639) (85) (7414)
At31 March 2022 RZBZZE=R=1-A 9,838 182 = 6359 2,670 7,299 44) 52,790
Net carrying values RAE
At31 March 2022 RZB-ZF=f=1-A 14723 m 1,400 14,405 41 1,663 50 32,881
At 31 March 2021 RZZZ-F=H=1-H 2,618 238 1,400 139 577 955 9] 5,969
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BHE_T-_—_#=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

18. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - continued

The property interests in leaschold land and the buildings
thereon (including the whole or part of undivided share in
the underlying land) in Hong Kong, which are reported
as property and equipment with net carrying value of
HK$1,628,000 at the end of the reporting period (2021:
reported as property and equipment and assets held for
sale with a net carrying value of HK$1,638,000 and
HK$100,738,000 respectively), are held by the Group as
the registered owner. Those property interests were acquired
from the previous registered owners by making lump sum
payments at the upfront. Except for the variable amounts
to be charged by the government subsequently that are
reviewed regularly with reference to the rateable values, for
example, there are no ongoing payments to be made under
the terms of the land lease. At the end of the reporting
period, the remaining lease term is about 25 years (2021: 26

years).

The buildings of the Group with carrying amount
of approximately HK$1,400,000 (2021: buildings of
approximately HK$1,400,000 and certain buildings
which includes in assets held for sale of approximately
HK$36,600,000) are stated at fair value under revaluation
model (2021: fair value under revaluation model and fair

value model respectively).

The carrying amount of the buildings at 31 March 2022
and date of transfer were valued by Prudential Surveyors
(Hong Kong) Limited (“PSL”) (2021: PSL) on market
value basis. PSL is not connected with the Group, and
has appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the

valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations.

18. MERZRE &

HWHE T X H EEE R R
% (B4 AH B 1 b B 2 30 5 4 A AT
a3 E B O 3o 9 R 2 J TV (E
1,628,000% 70 51 $ 45 W) 3 K s i (=
T AR R E 1,638,000 T &
100,738,000 7T 43 Fll 51| # 7% ¥ 3 T %
UL R AR B EAE)) A S AE
BETEERE - ZEWERLSTIU
AT — WM AT 3 o X A B R ¥ E
W o BR BUR H A% & 2 18 R RR 25 i FH
(B0 8 H A 5 BT SC BRI V7 B & EE AL 0 B
> MRt H B K o S SRR A A
oo RMEBR - SR TITWHENA A
254F (ZE Z—4F 1 264F) -

A% £E 5] MR T (H 4Y 451,400,000%5 76 2
M (ZF = —4F  £1,400,00045 7
ZHFERAFERFELEEE T
36,600,000%5 7G Z ¥ 43 1 ) AR $5 = Ak
B L AT ] (T = — 4
R 45 2 Ak AR 20 2 A B DA R AR (B AR
KHIH) o

MFR _FF=A=1+—HLkH
1 B 2 AR T (E S il PR AT A R
A (THIEAT]) (R —4F : [l
1) $ T (R AT Al (E o W AT LA
A5 T 31 4 R R L RLB AR 2 B
AT B R SR AL ) 2 2 Al (L AR B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - continued

In estimating the fair value of the above buildings, the
highest and best use of buildings is the current use. In
estimating the fair value of the Group’s buildings, the
management of the Group uses market-observable data
to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not
available, the management of the Group engages third
party qualified valuers to perform the valuation of the
Group’s buildings. At the end of each reporting period, the
management of the Group works closely with the qualified
external valuers to establish and determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for Level 3 fair value
measurement. The management of the Group would first
consider and adopt Level 2 inputs where inputs can be
derived from observable quoted prices in the active market.
When Level 2 inputs are not available, the management of
the Group would adopt valuation techniques that include
Level 3 inputs. Where there is a material change in the fair
value of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be

reported to the directors of the Company.

One of the key unobservable inputs used in valuing
different buildings in the Group is the unit sale rate,
which is approximately HK$6,000 per square foot (2021:
approximately HK$6,000 per square foot to HK$27,000
per square foot), taking into account age, location and other
individual factors such as size and levels of building. A
decrease in the unit sale rate would result in decrease in fair
value measurement of the buildings by the same percentage

decrease and vice versa.

Buildings are classified as Level 3 under fair value hierarchy
at 31 March 2022 and 2021. There were no transfers into
or out of Level 3 during years ended 31 March 2022 and
2021.

If the buildings under property and equipment had
not been revalued, they would have been included in
these consolidated financial statements at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses of approximately HK$1,059,000 (2021:
HK$1,101,000).

HE-_ZT-_—_F#=-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

18. MERZHE &

A BT 2 N R ER > T
R B R A B 5 H AT & o AR
9 A7 2L A1) 20 RS i 85 T B A Y B
BT A AR T B R - F AR
G i A\ A T B A A I Y B
& {58 € ZE WA 58 = 5 5 A Ak e A 3R R
fili A< SR B O M o A A I IR > A
4 (9 A L T B NS A L PR
WAl SR RT L R R E ARG BF A
D7 % B 3T N S (A R A A B
A G B PR g B B R AR
208 oy A\ BUHE > b A BEE 2R B I
T 5 LB B N B R A o L
5 55 2 g A\ R I > A4 9 A L
{58 & £F J 62 15 26538 i A SR 10 W Al
Tk WEEMNARMEEBHERES
5 o 5 0 1Y Ji (R i A m S MR o

A B [ A [R) A% A (B P A Y L o — TH
Jo B4 B A W O\ BUOHR R R 8 B
8 (4457 J5 W6,000% o0) (—F ——
AT 6,000 0 2 BT 5 IR
27,000% J0) - E T F E M E -
SR At R A1 PR 2 (o BT R /N A
J&) o BALEEE NS TE A
FAE FH R AR AR R E 4 b R R

R-F__HFER_F_—F=H
Sb o H RO A R R
LR G X et ), St S
FEA = AIRAERER - I AR
G LR

MEYERBRBEET ZMFEAREE
Al FU B 04 42 JRE b AR Ik B AT B
K Bt il B s 15 DA 71,059,000 7T (—
T —4F 1 1,101,000% 70) R4 G B
WEFNE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 £$F * GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED &€ mEBER A A

145



146

gk E U

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE_T-_—_#=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. B & &
Trading rights Club
in Stock Exchange memberships Total
B
2R efesn Bt
HKS$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
T T TiBT
Cost B
At 1 April 2020 MoF-FENA—H 2,172 6,712 8,884
Additions — acquisition of a subsidiary T B — S — [ Bt B 2 ) 550 = 550
At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 REFZ—H=A=+—Hk
“F_-FNA—H 2,722 6,712 9,434
Write off g = (451) (451)
At 31 March 2022 R=ZB=ZZ§=Zh=+—-8 2,722 6,261 8,983
Accumulated impairment losses R HESA
At 1 April 2020, 31 March 2021, REZFZFENA—H
1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022 “ECEZAZH
“EFENA-H R
“E--f=ZR=1-H 71 400 471
Carrying value REE
At 31 March 2022 RZB-ZZ§=ZA=+—-H 2,651 5,861 8,512
At 31 March 2021 MR- —F=A=1—H 2,651 6,312 8,963
GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ##7 £ R&EBAEMR AT e ANNUAL REPORT 2022 3§
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS - continued

The management of the Group determined that certain
trading rights amounting to approximately HK$500,000
(2021: HK$500,000) were no longer utilised to generate
profits to the Group. For the purpose of impairment testing
on these trading rights, the recoverable amount has been
determined based on secondary market prices less cost
of disposal and no impairment was made at 31 March
2022 and 2021. The recoverable amounts of other trading
rights with carrying value of approximately HK$2,151,000
(2021: HK$2,151,000) held by the Group have been
determined with reference to the recoverable amounts based
on a value-in-use calculation. Details of the impairment
test on other trading rights are set out in note 21 to the

consolidated financial statements.

Intangible assets amounting to approximately
HK$5,861,000 (2021: HK$6,312,000) represent club
memberships. For the purpose of impairment testing
on club memberships, the recoverable amount has been
determined based on the second-hand market price less
cost of disposal. No impairment loss was recognised in
years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021 with reference to the

recoverable amount of the club memberships.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the trading

rights and club memberships have indefinite useful lives.

HE-_ZT-_—_F#=-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

19. B EE—&

AEBZEMEBRLE T HEA
500,000% G (& — — 4 1 500,000%5
JG) 2 38 5 WE TR R Re I DA 2 A 4E )
A Y ) o TE 3 UM 5 28 T RE HE AT e (E A
IR > e &R - F1 8
A I A T R e A
ER FE T AE=ZA=+—Hi &
B AE o A4S 42 1B FE A BR T (E 492,151,000
oo (ZFE Z—4 1 2,151,000% 70) &
HAh sz 7 RER T Il & 88 - © 2% 7]
Wi el 4 E > AR 5 A P B (B R 0A 2 T
FE o HoAth 58 5 HE 2 U (B A B R RN
A6 BABS HR R T EE21 -

£ B %95,861,000% 0 (& = — 4 ¢
6,312,000% JG) 2 Y & & 5 & Ir &
EomemaE s BEBMEmNE > K
AU (] 4 R S MR AR T T 8 (R A
ERAMEE - 25 Gz ik
| & %% RNEE T HEXF
T HEZHA =+ —H I FE EHER
W AE 1

AAFERDR > KHMELG g
H A B R4 -

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 £$F * GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED &€ mEBER A A

147



148

gk E U

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE_T-_—_#=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

20. GOODWILL 20. &
Broking
HK$’000
TH# T
Cost AR
At 1 April 2020 REFZFFEMHA—H
Addition — acquisition of a subsidiary N B — W — [ B & 2 F 2,000
At 31 March 2021, 1 April 2021 and RNoEZ—F=H=1+—H"
31 March 2022 —EHE T —4EMA—H &
—_E-_—_f=H=+—H 2,000
Impairment AR
At 1 April 2020, 31 March 2021, RZFFFENA—H - ZF 4
1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022 =“H=t—H - ZF=-—4FWH—H
;—EZ_—_H#=H=1+—H =
Carrying values ARIEIE
At 31 March 2022 R-ZB-_—_F=A=+—H 2,000
At 31 March 2021 Wo_E_-_—#£=H=+—H 2,000

Detail of the impairment test on goodwill are set out in

note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

B R M iE21 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON OTHER

TRADING RIGHTS AND GOODWILL

Certain trading rights with indefinite useful lives and
goodwill set out in notes 19 and 20 to the consolidated
financial statements have been allocated to the relevant
separate broking cash generating units (“CGUs”). The
carrying amounts of goodwill, net of accumulated
impairment losses and certain trading rights, net of
accumulated impairment losses, at 31 March 2022 and
2021 allocated to the CGUs are as follows:

HE-_ZT-_—_F#=-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

21 H R ZREREE 2B ER A

HO AR A B R M RE 19 202 2 T
3 PR S (56 4 00 5 B M % R L 0 G
2 R Bl 9 7B 7. 8 A0 A1 BB (A B
fr]) R-FEZHERFCFS
H=+—H0r =88R 802 fE (4
bR 2 EHEE R IR) S T 52 5 1 (F0 kR
RFHBEREH) < IREEWT

Other

trading rights Goodwill

Ht X5 % Gk

HK$’000 HK$’000

T# T THs T

Carrying value at 1 April 2020 AN B CFAFEIH —H Z IREHE(E 1,601 -

Additions — acquisition of a subsidiary ¥ E: — & i — [H] [t &g 2w 550 2,000
Carrying value at 31 March 2021, AR~ ZH=1+—H-

1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022 “E-HFNA—-H R

—E-_F=A=t+—HZ

M 11 B 2,151 2,000

At 31 March 2022, the recoverable amounts of the CGUs
have been determined based on a value-in-use calculation.
That calculation uses cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management covering a
5-year period and at a discount rate of 12% (2021: 12%)
and at zero (2021: zero) growth rate. A key assumption for
the value-in-use calculation is the zero growth rate, which is
determined based on past performance and management’s
expectations for the market development. Management
believes that any reasonably possible change in any of the
assumptions would not cause the aggregate recoverable
amount of the CGUs to fall below the aggregate carrying
amount of the CGUs.

OTHER ASSETS

Other assets mainly represent statutory and other deposits
with various exchanges and clearing houses and are

non-interest bearing.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 5§

MRoEFE - HF=ZHA=1+—H> AlHE
A7 2 mT i e] 46 B0 AR B E B A
W E - s EHEIE AR R S L W R
2 HAFEMBOEE LA12% (ZF ——4F
12%) Z REBLR DA BT (& . —4F
F) 2 WERETHERETEN o T
RRAERBEERERZ FEMBRK
M & 38 1= 28 T AR DA AE 2 R B I 8 B
Jig i B g R 2 B R o P
FEAT > AT A0 (R 5% 2 AT o] £ 34 AT fE 5 )
AN e EEH B A 2 A Rl ] i R 4 R
R A L A 2 A FHER T (E o

2. EthEE
oA & B F AR RAT T AFE 55 BT K&
GERRT 2 1k R4 o RS
AR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE_T-_—_#=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

23. PROMISSORY NOTE RECEIVABLE 23 EREEREZERAFAALEE
FROM THE IMMEDIATE HOLDING
COMPANY
At 31 March 2022, the amount represented a 3%-coupon M E - —HE=H=+—H Z&%HE
promissory note at principal amount of HK$220,000,000 3R 7 4 %6 £4220,000,000%5 7T 2 3JH
maturing on 24 November 2023 received as part of the BAGERE  HR _F_=41—H
consideration of disposal of subsidiaries as set out in the 0 H B A RS BB i 25 M EE
note 40 to the consolidated financial statements. The 40T 7 A B B BRI T g B A R
promissory note was fully settled on 20 April 2022. ARE - R ERC R F
PR =+ H AR -
24. INVESTMENTS 24. RE
2022 2021
—E-= TE T A
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
i THAT TH#EIT
Financial assets at FVPL BARETFAEBREZ
CRMEE
Payment for life insurance policy NE B 2 3% (a) 2,117 2,061
Investment in an unlisted fund JEEMELSZHRE (b) 55,917 —
Investment in equity securities BAE S 2 HE—
— listed in Hong Kong FEHEH 163 139
58,197 2,200
Analysed as: Sy HT
Non-current FE ) 58,034 2,061
Current T 163 139
58,197 2,200

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED #ir £ mEBARA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. INVESTMENTS - continued

(a)

The amount represents a life insurance policy with an
insurance company to insure a staff of Red Eagle Securities
Limited (“Red Eagle”), under which Red Eagle is the
beneficiary and policy holder and the total insured sum
is HK$2,000,000. The subsidiary is required to pay an
upfront payment at inception. The Group can, at any time,
withdraw cash based on the value of the policy at the date of
withdrawal, which is determined by the gross premium paid
plus accumulated guaranteed interest earned and minus any
charges made in accordance with the terms and conditions
of the policy. If withdrawal is made between the first to
tenth policy year, as appropriate, a pre-determined specified

surrender charge would be imposed.

As represented by the directors of the subsidiary, the Group
will not terminate the policies nor withdraw cash prior to
the tenth year for the policy and the expected life of the
policies remained unchanged from the initial recognition.
The balance of the payments for life insurance policies is
denominated in HK$, being the functional currency of the

relevant subsidiary.

The guaranteed interest of the policy is at 3.75% per annum
for the first policy year, 3% per annum for the second policy
year and 2% per annum for third policy year to tenth policy
year onward and no guarantee interest for eleventh policy

year onward during the effective period of the policy.

The unlisted investment fund represents the initial capital
contribution of HK$55,000,000 in a Limited Partnership
Fund (the “Fund”). All fund holders can only be appointed as
limited partners. The limited partners did not participate in
the daily management and only entitled to distribution when
profit is made from the Fund. The portfolios of these funds
mainly comprise investment properties, listed shares in Hong
Kong and quoted debt securities listed overseas. The Fund

was held for long-term investments.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 5§

HE-_ZT-_—_F#=-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

24, BWE— &

(a)

(b)

7% 4 BEACRAE — MR B A A T
KHBHEARAF (TEEK]) 2 —
ZETHMBEZ NFRE B
Z s NFIAR R N > ARG
2,000,000%5 JC ° #% Ml & 2 7 28 #E
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i 48R 2 N 2 B 2 2 3 AR 5 A
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22 A AT Wi 2 I 7 o WA AE S
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ERRE o
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FLHEEREREXE—HAERE
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ErERIEHEREB AN AR
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FERENBEHAF T EORERE
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T HREEBESR - ZEE IR
AERBITE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE_T-_—_#=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

25. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

25. EUWBRIE

2022 2021
—=E-= T &
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
Wt FERT T T
Accounts receivable arising from the B AEHHFEKFELAZ
business of dealing in securities: JRE Wi FE I
— Cash clients —BlE&% @) 9,235 8,735
— Margin clients: — (R oz S (b)
— Directors and their close family — I G B
SR it B 186,004 290,060
— Other margin clients —Hi B SRS 2,927,504 3,521,244
- HKSCC —HELH 12,302 22,462
— Broker — R - 350
Accounts receivable from futures B A4 EEEF P EAER
clearing house arising from the B A L 45 5 T > ME W B TE
business of dealing in futures
contracts 25,448 16,252
3,160,493 3,859,103
Less: Loss allowances W e T A (334,097) (204,021)
2,826,396 3,655,082

The normal settlement terms of accounts receivable from
cash clients and securities clearing house are two days
after trade date while for accounts receivable from futures
clearing house are one day after trade date. All the accounts
receivable (net of loss allowance), except for accounts
receivables from margin clients, are expected to be recovered

within one year.

Information about the Group’s exposure to credit risks and
loss allowance for ECL of accounts receivable is set out in

note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

EWE%Eﬁ& B 5 4 2 BRIE Y

EMAE S BEWE - TRk
@\m%%Z%EMEﬁ R YRR
G HZE—H - BRBIRAFEEF 2R
AN > BT A RE W TE (F11 B 5 48 15 )
P TE R — 4 R e o

A B A 2 1 T 3 2 £ LB DA R Wi
MRIA 2 BRIl IR IR 2 &
BE > R AR A B R M T o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - continued

Notes:

(a)

Included in the accounts receivable from cash clients
are debtors with a carrying amount of approximately
HK$133,000 (2021: HK$161,000) which are past due at the
end of the reporting period but which the directors of the
Company consider not to be impaired as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and a substantial portion

of the carrying amount is subsequently settled.

In respect of accounts receivable from cash clients which are

past due but not impaired at the end of the reporting period,

HE-_ZT-_—_F#=-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

25. B BRIE — &

(a)

W% P 2 BRI b - A5G A o
AR L 4 T AR T 4% 49133,000 95 70
(& —4F 1 161,000% 0) 2 MEI 3K
TH > M A8 7] 35 58 5 A B OB 4
(NS DR Sl E O Wl (= = =
K 58 8 17 K R 4 B T ) R L AR T

i -

3 IOR (8 I e (E 2 B
&P RECRIAT 5 > A BE IR AT

the aging analysis (from settlement date) is as follows: (%553 A s T
2022 2021
—E-= T T AR
HK$°000 HK$°000
FRERT T
0-30 days 030K 129 145
31- 60 days 31R60K 1 13
Over 60 days B 60K 3 3
133 161

The accounts receivable from cash clients with a carrying
amount of approximately HK$9,102,000 (2021:
HK$8,574,000) are neither past due nor impaired at the end
of the reporting period and the directors of the Company are

of the opinion that the amounts are recoverable.

Accounts receivable from margin clients are secured by
clients’ pledged securities with fair value of approximately
HK$11,686,337,000 (2021: HK$34,659,941,000).
Significant portion of the pledged securities are listed equity
securities in Hong Kong. The loans are repayable on demand
subsequent to settlement date and carry interest typically at a
range from 7.236% to 9.500% per annum (2021: range from
7.236% to 9.500% per annum) at 31 March 2022. Securities
are assigned with specific margin ratios for calculating their
margin values. Additional funds or collateral are required if
the outstanding amount exceeds the eligible margin value
of securities deposited. The collateral held can be pledged
and can be sold at the Group’s discretion to scttle any
outstanding amount owed by margin clients upon failure to

provide additional fund against shortfalls.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 5§

AR HAOR o HRTE (E £ 499,102,000%5
JC (& = —4F 8,574,000 70) 2 M
W B 4 % 5 22 BRI 2 Slf7 406 i 1A I 6 3
1B > AR ] 2 25 58 2 A7 BH 3K T8 B ol DA
g

JEW AR B S FF 2 IREBUEFF 2 &
B - GBS Z A REL
£411,686,337,00045 76 (& ——4F :
34,659,941,000% J6) ° A s I 17 g 4
A B HE A BB S ) AR A o A
“E - _HE=ZA=+—H > AHEXR
TE &5 H M A% Z8 4 0 0 R 3K I A R
Fi AR | A F-7.236/E 229,500 (%
AR AR R R A 77.236)H £9.500
JE) 5HE - B E R T 2 RE L
ARG A S EE - A RER
HEHBEGFA BRI A GRS
SEME > AGEREFEMEEIES
SCHEH A o BT REA Z A R DA TR
> M 8 7R AE F AL AE AN & 4 HE A R
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BHE_T-_—_#=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

25. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - continued

Notes: — continued

(b) — continued

Included in accounts receivable from margin clients arising

from the business of dealing in securities are amounts due

from directors and their close family members. The details

are as follows:

25. B BRIE — &
WaE : — 4
b) —4f

R 3L o) S A Z B R B 2 E
SRIAH - AR S R R H RN A

N I

Maximum amount Market value of pledged
Balance outstanding securities
o REAEESHE EfEFzmE
During the ~ During the
At At At yearended  year ended At At
1 April 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
Name 2020 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022
D Bz
IS B ZF--F ZBOCE IS i
[ S R S =i =R “EF % ZBC-CE
—ERFUE =i =R =f—A Er=E =A =R
g MA—H =+—H S LA LLEE =t—H =t-H
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK§000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T T TAL T THL T THT
Mr. Hung Sui Kwan, it 5 0 2 A
director of the Company ~ (AAREH) K
and his close family ZERHA
members 13 = 541 734 2,749 16,414 9,465
Mr. Hung Hon Man, B
director of the Company, (AL R EH) »
his close family members  ZEZREM A K
and a controlling endicy  — I | 313,555 290,060 185,463 323,277 326,890 9,056,720 1,589,411
Mr. Shum Kin Wai, Frankie, 4 Ftf& 4 (A3 7]
director of the Company ~ #H) X BH Kk
and his close family KE
members - - - - 640 = -
The above balances are repayable on demand and bear DL b &b 5 6 2 E SR 18 9 I 4z B H A
interest at commercial rates which are similar to the rates T35 4 % 5 SR Ik > T 2R 22 1 P 2
offered to other margin clients. FREH o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

26.

HE-_ZT-_—_F#=-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

ANRE - REREMWEWRR

RECEIVABLES Ig
2022 2021
—E—-= X T
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
i FET Tt
Prepayments BT R 924 813
Other deposits HoAth 1% & 3,175 2,452
Interest receivables for promissory HEERAREITZ
note issued by the immediate 7R 58 SR 2 R SR B
holding company 23,40 2,314 -
Other receivables JHL A, JEE W5 R T 937 37
Deposits paid for acquisition of e 8 ) 3 e M 2
property and equipment EEDE - 2,123
7,350 5,425
Analysed as: AT
Non-current FE W - 2,123
Current B 7,350 3,302
7,350 5,425

All current balances are expected to be recovered within one
year except for deposits of approximately HK$3,175,000
(2021: HK$2,452,000).

BANK BALANCES - CLIENT ACCOUNTS

The Group receives and holds money deposited by clients
and other institutions in the course of the conduct of the
regulated activities of its ordinary business. These clients’
monies are maintained in one or more segregated bank
accounts. The Group has recognised the corresponding
accounts payable to respective clients and other institutions
(note 29).

BANK BALANCES - GENERAL
ACCOUNTS AND CASH

The amounts comprise cash held by the Group and
short-term bank deposits at market interest rates ranging
from 0% to 0.32% (2021: 0% to 0.25%) per annum.
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27.

28.

T A i Bl &5 R 2 TE A Y — 4E Nl ]
M £73,175,0008 JC (= F . —4F ¢
2,452,000 JC) Z Z & BRI ©

RITEBR—FFRF
A4 & By H R EH L E N EIT Z A
B B I BN R T S A B
PRAE Y s o IWFERF KETIAEH—
RS2 (8 7 S ERATHRF o A4
FOIE R A B R R H A RS S AT 2 K
T (B 5E29)

RITEH - —REFRRE

AR EAEALEHEA 2B & U
FF i 85 B 2R (4R ) Z A F-0JH 520.32
JE) (TF T —4F  0JE £0.25H) 5FEZ
AT -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE_T-_—_#=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

29. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

29. E{JBRIE

2022 2021
—E=-= T &
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
i FET T
Accounts payable arising from the WHEEEEB R EEZ
business of dealing in securities: JE At BRTE -
— Cash clients —HEREF (a) 198,575 374,297
— Margin clients —REBEEEF (b) 222,492 295,300
- HKSCC —BBAE (a) - 2,043
Accounts payable to clients arising MESHEREH
from the business of dealing in A 2 AT % P RO
futures contracts (c) 96,057 24,159
517,124 695,799

No aging analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of directors
of the Company, the aging analysis does not give additional

value in view of the nature of business.

(a) The normal settlement terms of accounts payable to cash
clients and securities clearing houses are two days after trade

date.

(b) Amounts due to securities margin clients are repayable on
demand and carry interest at 0.025% (2021: 0.025%) per
annum. Included in accounts payable to margin clients
arising from the business of dealing in securities are amounts
due to directors of the Company, their close family members
and a controlling entity of approximately HK$758,000
(2021: HK$1,528,000).

(c) Accounts payable to clients arising from the business of
dealing in futures contracts are margin deposits received from
clients for their trading of futures contracts on the Hong
Kong Futures Exchange Limited. The amounts payable are
repayable on demand except for the required margin deposits

for the trading of futures contracts.

BREB ZME > AN R EHB IR
B 73 A7 I S R AME o TR L S B B R
MRt AT o

() BEANBESEF K orak T 2 RER
IEWAE B2 HRMH o

(b) REBFHRTE S KT FEHE B R F
BNl HA%0.025H (& ——4 1 0.025
JH) ZAEFRGHE - Bk E K E
2 EATMR T &% P AR A6
AN A~ S 2 BB FR KA
T 4 ) B B B R TE 49758,0009 7T (=
T —4F 1 1,528,000%50) ©

(© MEARHEEEGHELZEMER
HRIE > K 1M & F i A 7E 7 o 1
35 A BRA 7 B E IS A& 4 2 (R
SR 4 o RINE G B E T R
SR A AN > A R A AR TH 2 28 A R
I fE 7 o
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30. ACCRUED CHARGES AND OTHER

e A T R AR B R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-_ZT-_—_F#=-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

30. Bt B R R H RN KA

PAYABLES
2022 2021
—E=-= —E T4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Accruals e T 3,352 3,918
Other payables Al 8 A5 5 IE 2,925 2,219
6,277 6,137
31. DEFERRED TAXATION 31. IEER IE

The movements for the year in the Group’s net deferred tax

provision were as follows:

4 2 S -

Accelerated tax

Revaluation of

PATR 7% A% 45 M) 22 90 208 30 JEL 436405 1 ALY

depreciation properties Total
IERBIEFTE EMWE &t
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
T# T T# T Tt
At 1 April 2020 T R
WMH—H 1,083 2,616 3,699
Charge to profit or loss for FNERAS 4E 48 45
the year (note 15) (Fft5E15) 68 - 68
Charge to other comprehensive FIBR A 4F J8 At 4 T
income for the year I - 270 270
Transfer to disposal group EHERELEZ
held for sale (note 40) B SR M (FffwE40) (1,410) (2,802) (4,212)
At 31 March 2021 REFZ—4
=A=+—H (259) 84 (175)
Charge to other comprehensive FI R A 4F B H At 4 T
income for the year Ik 25 — 10 10
At 31 March 2022 R-—ZEE——
=A=t+—H (259) 94 (165)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had estimated
unutilised tax losses of approximately HK$22,002,000
(2021: HK$23,336,000) available to offset against future
profits. The tax losses have not been recognised due to

uncertainty of future profit streams and may be carried

forward indefinitely.
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R BAR > A< B A 422,002,000 45
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE_T-_—_#=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

31. DEFERRED TAXATION - continued

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax (assets)

32.

31. IEER 1EH — &
VB SE R TE () B B TR 1T

liabilities for financial reporting purposes: AR
Assets Liabilities
BE =0
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-CE R —EC-CE R
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
THER T THERT TT
Accelerated tax depreciation B E A B (259) (259) - -
Revaluation of properties EX/ES - - 94 84
Deferred tax (assets) liabilities EERH (BE) AF (259) (259) 94 84
SHARE CAPITAL 32. R
Number of shares Amount
RHEE £
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-CF R —E-CF R
HK$’000 HK$°000
TR T
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BRI (50.01% 7T 2 & 4
Authorised: T
At the beginning and the end of the T ) )R A
reporting period 10,000,000,000 | 10,000,000,000 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAE
At the beginning and the end of the TR 0 R A
reporting period 2,500,000,000 | 2,500,000,000 25,000 25,000

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED #ir £ mEBARA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the

“Option Scheme”) pursuant to a resolution passed on 16

March 2016. The major terms of the Option Scheme are

summarised as follows:

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to
attract and retain the best available personnel to
provide additional incentive to employees (full-time
and part-time), directors, consultants, advisers of
the Group, distributor, contractor, supplier, agent,
customers, business partners or service providers of the
Group and to promote the success of the business of

the Group.

The eligible participants of the Option Scheme include
any employee (full-time or part-time), director,
consultant or adviser of our Group, or any substantial
shareholder of the Group, or any distributor,
contractor, supplier, agent, customer, business partner
or service provider of the Group, who in the absolute
discretion of the Board has contributed or will

contribute to the Group.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding share options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Option Scheme and
any other share option scheme of the Group must
not in aggregate exceed 30% of the relevant class of
securities of the issued share capital of the Company

from time to time.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all share options to be granted under the
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of
the Group must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares (250,000,000 shares) of the Company in issue.

The total number of shares issued and which may
fall to be issued upon exercise of the share options
granted under the Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Group (including both exercised
or outstanding options) to each participant in any
twelve-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued

share capital of the Company for the time being.
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33. R EFTE
AAFEREHR T —ANEZH A
F 38 8 2 P 22 40 40 — T I A RE 51 2
(TRERCAESE B )) - REME MRt #) > £ 58

ek

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

B AT

Jils s HE T 3 5 TE R ) B R B
BN E AR A (&
FeB) ~ A FEEA A
M~ 23 8 7~ R B~ SRR R
B~ BF - 1 20 A BUIR B it
JE 7 42 {3 A A 5 ) DA I i B A 4R
HESE Y IRRES

i e R B 2 & B AR 2 B AL AR
EFGRLEBHMNEER SO
N AR AR AR R 2 AR 4R
B AT A R B (2 o e i) > &
S PN e SR
] 25 SR~ AT ] 43 8 7~ R
- - B FF
S BUIRBS ERE

PR A7 {1 A 58 O S 5 ) e A 42 T
AT AT A S S BT 4
) AR AT 2 BT A 1 i RE Tf n] B ZH
TETZEMHEE ERAFAH
e NN P N R Y N R €
B 75 75 B0 2 30% -

PRI A7 ol A 45 8 e E 5t ) e A 4 [
2 AT o] A i S T BT AR 2
JT A B B HE T RT BB ZH TR AT 2 MR
HFEE EE W N v /N 4
1T My 210% (250,000,000 8%
fiy) o

T ATART -+ A H A R AT AR R
S IS ) S A A R AT e L At B
S HEE it ) BT 452 o 2 B IRCHE > T 2
] % 2 B3 3547 I W] REZH ] % 2
B 84T 2 IRy KB (R R L 2
A7 0 2 ¥ AR AT (I e ) - A
15 48 i A 8 B R AT IR 2
1% °
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BHE_T-_—_#=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued

®

()

(h)

(i)

()

There is no minimum period required for the holding

of a share option before it can be exercised.

A share option may be exercised at any time during a
period to be determined by the directors, the period
may commence on a day after the date upon which the
offer for the grant of share options is made but shall
not be later than ten years from the date of grant of the

share option.

The acceptance of a share option, if accepted, must be
made within 7 business days from the date of the offer

of grant of the share option.

The exercise price of a share option must be the higher

of:

(i)  the closing price of the share of the Company as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations on
the date of the offer of the grant;

(ii) the average closing price of the share of the
Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of the offer of the grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of the share of the Company.

The Option Scheme will expire on 15 March 2026.

There was no share option granted to eligible participants
during the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021. There

were no outstanding share options at 31 March 2022 and

33. BIRERTE-&

®

(8)

(b)

(i)

()

FI IS T 31 7 B AR AE AT 6 AT
TR I OE 2 B R

Jil e HE T S S i 2 IR A
BE RF AT 66 > 5% 09 (R 26 b 32 42 T
FERHE R N 2 B =
A5 9 PR Y AR A O i o

S B 0 3 A0k S P HEE o RS R
H AT S AR A H R R
S 1A Ak B RO o

e 2 AT B ZH 5 T3 =&
ZREE

(i) 4% BT A HE e H A
b A B 2 4 B AR E R TR 2
AR ) B W T A

(i) FBWBELRZTHBEERD
WA TR 22 5 B AR A T 2
5 H R AR s 2 AN
TP (8 5

(iii) 42> &l B A T {E -

B I R R TN =
+ I H B -

RBE-_F - _HFR-F—F=A
= Ik B A A S
BRI - 1 F R

2021. CF =A==+t H W R T
T FEEHE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-_ZT-_—_F#=-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

34. OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION 34. H R & REH
Details of the changes in the Group’s liabilities from RAEBFBEEHELSE QB2 EH
financing activities are as follows: =FE
Year ended 31 March 2022 BE-_E_—_=-—A=+—HILEE

Non-cash changes

*REED
At At
1 April Net cash Interest ~ Dividend ~ Additions 31 March
2021 flows expense declared of lease 2022
R
R “BIZF
g% B8R =7

MA-B RERFE REAX Re EmAK =1-H
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TER TER TER TER TER TER

Loan from immediate holding HEHEEERARZ

company B3 - 39) 39 = = =

Bank borrowings RITHE - (178) 178 - - -

Dividend payable TERT RS - (150,000) - 150,000 - -

Lease liabilities HEARK 2,758 (9,166) 427 - 20,896 14915
Net cash used in financing activities i % 1 &) it fil 2

Bl 2758 (159,383) 644 150,000 20,896 14915

Year ended 31 March 2021 BE_F - HF=H=+—HILEE

Non-cash changes
FHE 2T

At At

1 April Net cash Interest Dividend ~ Additions 31 March

2020 flows expense declared of lease 2021

B =t o

~%-%F B =5

MA—H Bekds  HERX RE  HmEE =t-H

HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000
T T T T T T

Loan from immediate holding KEERBERARZ

company B = (511) 511 = = =
Bank borrowings RITHEE = (3,098) 3,098 = = =
Dividend payable TER B - (125,000 = 125,000 - £
Lease liabilities EA LK - (948) 41 = 3,005 2,758

Net cash used in financing activities BT 2
BEBE - (129557) 3,650 125,000 3,665 2,758
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HE

T —E=-A=+—HILEE

Year ended 31 March 2022

35.

36.

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ##€mEBER AT o

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group has joined a pension scheme under the
rules and regulations of the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately in an independently managed fund. The
Group has followed the minimum statutory contribution
requirements of 5% of eligible employees’ relevant aggregate
income. The contributions, amounting approximately
HK$912,000 (2021: HK$780,000), are charged to the
profit or loss as incurred.

LEASES
Lease liabilities

At 31 March 2022, the weighted average discount rate
applied was 2.16% (2021: 2.28%) per annum.

Commitments and present value of lease liabilities:

35.

36.

Minimum lease payments

EARERNGTE

7 £E 1) 2 AR 95 5 ) 1 S B 4w A6 B
Z B B ) 5 B HS TR A E SR B
ZHRR &8 (TREEs# ) - m
BEstdlz EEm — B EHES
iAo A 42 M C AR 8 B MK 72 8 ik K
HE > IGEKERTAARBEALR
Z5% Mt K o £y B#1912,000% 0 (= F
T —4F 1 780,000%5 70) Z R E A E A
RF 7 18 25 ST PR o

HE

HE A
MRoEEZHA=+—H > FTEH
14 00 S 25 B B 2R 5 B 4 2.16% (&

T4 0 2.28%)
HEAE R E A AR B

Present value of minimum
lease payments

BREEENN BEEERRZEAE
2022 2021 2022 2021
—B--F —EX-—-f CZB-Z-E R
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET SR TET T
Amounts payable: JE£F 48
Within one year —EN 8,034 1,966 7,798 1,927
In the second to fifth years inclusive BERTERERN
(A E EmE) 7,200 835 7,117 831
15,234 2,801 14,915 2,758
Less: future finance charges W AR EE A (319) (43) - =
Total lease liabilities HEAEAE 14,915 2,758 14,915 2,758

The Group leases office premises, berth and staff quarters
for its daily operations. Lease terms are 3 years (2021: 2
years). Certain leases provide the Group with an option to
terminate the leases after expiration of the first year with 2
months’ notice. The interest expenses on lease liabilities are

set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

A G E AL BN G B B B T AE
FMR B EE B A3E (X
TR 20 o A THE AL M ]
LA 388 492 7 7 4F U39 A £ T A A ) 38
AAb AL o A B A AR B SR
B B R M k2
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36. LEASES — continued

Lease liabilities — continued

e A T R AR B R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-_ZT-_—_F#=-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

36. HE— &
HEE G4

The Group has recognised the following amounts for the A 4R B 4E N FERE LA T R
year:
2022 2021
—E-= R
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT T
Lease payments: FHE A
Short-term leases A E 883 899
Leases of low value assets RKEEEEHEG 233 280
Expenses recognised in profit or loss i 15 #i Bl R0 2 B 3C 1,116 1,179
Lease payments on lease liabilities HEEEZHEMR 9,166 948
Total cash outflow for leases & 2 B4 A 10,282 2,127
Commitments under leases il -

RFEZFEZH =+ —H > AEHE
e 1L 6 A0 AR £ £ 74,0005 I8 (—
T —4F 74,0004 70) o M HEACAE (H
A R RIS (T —4F 1 233,000
W In) o

At 31 March 2022, the Group was committed to
approximately HK$74,000 (2021: HK$74,000) for
short-term leases and no commitment (2021: HK$233,000)
for leases of low value assets was noted.
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T —E=-A=+—HILEE

Year ended 31 March 2022

37.

38.

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ##€mEBER AT o

BANKING FACILITIES

At 31 March 2022, the Group had banking facilities
totaling HK$530,000,000 (2021: HK$740,000,000)
granted by financial institutions in Hong Kong. These
banking facilities are secured by charges over clients’
pledged securities and by corporate guarantees issued by
the Company (2021: charges over clients’ pledged securities
and certain of the Group’s properties and by corporate
guarantees issued by the Company). Details of the Group’s
pledged assets are disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated

financial statements.

At 31 March 2022, the Group had undrawn amounts
under these banking facilities of HK$530,000,000 (2021:
HK$740,000,000).

During the reporting period, bank borrowings
amounted to approximately HK$549,608,000 (2021:
HK$8,086,789,000) were advanced from banks and repaid
in full during the year. The borrowings were secured by
charges over clients’ pledged securities, interest bearing with
a range from 0.55% to 1.80% (2021: 0.48% to 7.28%) per

annum and repayable within 14 days from drawdown date.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The Group’s banking facilities are secured by charges over
clients’ pledged securities of fair value of approximately
HK$246,726,000 (2021: Leaschold land and building
classified as assets held for sale of approximately
HK$100,738,000 and clients’ pledged securities of fair
value of approximately HK$276,093,000) at 31 March
2022 and corporate guarantees issued by the immediate

holding company.

37.

38.

RITRLE
MoFE__F=H=1T—H > NEH
T s 4 R R R LD I BR AT R A
% £5530,000,000%5 0 (=& — — 4 ¢
740,000,000% JC) ° 2SR ERITRIE DL K
J5 BT R S MR AR AR 0 3l R AR ] 8
A FERIEIER (2 —F K
5 IR R S R A 4 Y T SEAE
AT > 3 AR |8 A RS AR AR
PELR) o ASE 1B O HC I & 2 1O RE I R 45
A AT i 3R W sk 381k #E o

REZFEZZF=ZA=Z+—H k%
B 7E 5% S RATRVE TH N R B E
% £5530,000,000% o0 (. F . —4F ¢
740,000,000 #&JT) ©

AR W R AT B SRAT I &
%) 549,608,000 JC (& — —4F ¢
8,086,789,0003 7T ilff B4 it 4F A & B
B WEMBEUEFNEMESHK
> % AE R R £50.55 8 £1.80)8 (ZF
T4 048 £7.28)8) FHE I ZHAE
HHCH AR 14 K NERE -

EEKH

RoFE D EZA=Z+—H AEH
Z AT E BB B A R E £)246,726,000
B2 EFORMESR (R4
B AHELEEEZHE LK
1 F 47100,738,00095 76 LA K 2 e (H #)
276,093,00045 762 % 7 C K RE 7)) L
B H 4 ¥ B ) 3% Y N R ORAE K
o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions/information disclosed
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, during
the year, the Group had the following transactions with

related parties:

(a) Transactions

Name of related party
BEALHE B8

Directors of the Company and their close family members
ARFAERD R GEZ RERRILA

Messts. Hung Hon Man, Shum Kin Wai, Frankie, Hung Sui Kwan
and their close family members and controlling entities

WS AR - B U R G 2 R

BE—ZT_—_F-A=t+—HALEE
Year ended 31 March 2022
39. BEALR S
W 555 G B 5 i 3 A 35 03 P B R 2 22
5/ BRI - AR B E AT AT
[ F NS

(a) XZ

Nature of transaction 2022 2021

REHE

—E-CE
HK$°000
TER

S

HK$'000
T

Brokerage commission 2,347 2,284

income (note i)

EEW A NI

RIRIE REEH H

Key management personnel and directors of GN Holdings and

their close family members

vl FEEEABRES D RE% 2 BERiRRE
Messts. Cham Wai Ho, Anthony, Kam Eddie Shing Cheuk,

Cheng Wai Ho, Ng Hon Sau, Larry and their close

family members and controlling entities

BREEOEE - HRESEE - BEEEA  RBEELEUR

(¥4 SV EL N L

Directors of the Company and their close family members

AAFRERURGEZREREME
Messts. Hung Hon Man, Shum Kin Wai, Frankie,
Hung Sui Kwan and their close family members and

controlling entities

WS SRS - M DR B 2 B

RIRAB R

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 £k
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income (note i)

AR & A (HEEED

17,425

Interest income (note ii)

FIEBOA (Bf5Eid)

13,273
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-T-—"F=A=+—HItFE
Year ended 31 March 2022
39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

— continued

(a) Transactions — continued

Name of related party
BEATHE B8

Key management personnel and directors of GN Holdings and
their close family members
R ER S S IUNVE VT EFa 373 39
Messrs. Cham Wai Ho, Anthony, Kam Eddie Shing Cheuk,
Ng Hon Sau, Larry and their close family members and

controlling entities
S EE - HREEE  ABREAEDREFZ
BRI AR B il
GN Holdings
iR el
GN Holdings
R PER
GN Holdings
A I
Fellow subsidiary under GN Holdings

BT 2 [R) 2 B /A )
Bowell Limited

S

HEARAF

et

Tao Yun Company Limited
WEARR A

M. Hung Hon Man’s associate

HEEEZBHE AL

39. EALTRE &

@ XZ—&

Nature of transaction

REHE

Interest income (note ii)

FLEWBOA (W aEid)

Management fee income
(note iii)

AN (Bt

Loan interest expenses

(note iv)

FEFAE B 5 (W aiv)

Promissory note interest
income (note v)

R 8 2 M B A
(Fff5Ev)

License fee payment

(note vi)
R A AT R
(Fff ki)

Lease payment (note vii)

AR A (B svi)

License fee income

(note viii)

FEFEO A B A (B sEviii)

2022
—E-CE
HK$’000
TET

38

6,181

783

7,200

240

2021
B S
HK$°000
Tt

2,520

511

196

140

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED #ir £ mEBARA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE_T_—_#F#=A=+—HLEFE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

— continued

(a) Transactions — continued

Notes:

(@)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii)

Commission was charged at 0.1% to 0.25% (2021:

0.1% to 0.25%) on the total value of transactions.

Interest was charged at 7.236% to 9.500% per
annum (2021: 7.236% to 9.500% per annum) on the

outstanding balances of margin loans.

Management fee income was earned from GN Holdings

for office areas sharing.

Loan interest expense was charged by GN Holdings at
2% per annum outstanding pursuant to the revolving

loan facility agreement dated 19 May 2017.

Interest was charged at 3% per annum (2021: Nil) on

the principal amount of the promissory note.

Monthly license fee was paid at approximately
HK$65,000 during the year ended 31 March 2022
(2021: HK$65,000).

Monthly lease payment was charged at HK$600,000
during the year ended 31 March 2022 (2021: Nil).

(viii) Monthly license fee income was charged at HK$20,000

during the year ended 31 March 2022 (2021:
HK$20,000).
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39. EALTRE &

(a) X5

3t

@@

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

™)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii) kA

— &
WEBELTHBEZ01%E
0.25% (& = —4F 1 0.1% %
0.25%) Y B -

I S35 P R 58 K 2 R AR 4

%&ﬁiﬂ%ﬁ§9mw**2
A 7236/ £9.500)H) 2 A
FTHL

B AN T f A = R A 0 1)
G e 2 PSR

B FOR S B S 0 4 47 ) SR K
WEAMAE _F—EERH T
H 2 06 BR B8 3K fl E Th ol 2 R AE 22
B F & T R BB AL o

T2 S S 4 A 4 R A R R 3
BRI B (= —4F © 4E) o

BE_ZFZ - —"HF=H=F+—HI
RN EH%H T A
65,0005 7 (& ——4F : 65,000
#oT) o

HE-FZ - —"H=A=+—HIt
4 N145.600,000 7 ST U BUEE A FH
AR (B —4F ) o

2SS S = et el =l
iFf“ﬁﬂEtlﬁtHlﬁH ##EHE)EH%
W A20,000% 8 (= F = —4F ¢
20,000 7C) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE_T-_—_#=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

39. EALTRE &

— continued
(b) Remuneration to key management personnel (b) TEEEABZHM
The remuneration of members of key management, B &5 6 B 5 R M RE 14 8T BB 2
other than directors as disclosed in note 14 to the EHA FEEBANB Z MW
consolidated financial statements, was as follows: T
2022 2021
—E-= SR
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TH#s T
Salaries and other benefits 4 M HoAth 45 A 2,964 4,209
Retirement benefit scheme FERNN AR R E T
contributions 72 72
3,036 4,281

The remuneration of directors and other key
management personnel is determined by the

performance of individuals and market trends.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 18 March 2021, the Group entered into a sales and
purchase agreement with Get Nice Development Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of GN Holdings, to dispose
of 100% of its equity interests in NobleNet Limited
(“NobleNet”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, and
its wholly-owned subsidiary, Grace Field Limited (“Grace
Field”) (together the “Disposal Group”) at a consideration
of HK$454,575,000 (the “Disposal”). The consideration
of was partly settled by a 3% coupon promissory note
receivables at principal amount of HK$220,000,000 issued
by GN Holdings and the remaining was settled by cash.
The fair value of the promissory note was approximately
HK$218,373,000 at issue date. Details of the Disposal
have been disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
18 March 2021 and circular dated 29 April 2021. The
Disposal was completed on 24 May 2021.

HE-_ZT-_—_F#=-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

40. HEME L F

MREFZ—F=HF/NH  REHH
T B R A PR A (RS it 2 2
B AT §T L EH B ek 0 LL454,575,000
0 2 U8 B B NobleNet Limited
([ NobleNet | » 4% 4 B > & & [} J& A
Al K H A A mAE A RRA A
(THEM ) (FME T EEM ) Z100%M%
At (THEFRIE]) o MAAELLE
U4 e A 7 A 42 H220,000,000%5 76 2 3
JeL SR AT R S8 SR AR SO AT o BREE DA B &
SEAT o AR L EEPR N B AT H B2 A AR fE
%) £5218,373,000% JC - & FIH 2
HOEAANRBM A —F - —4=H
TNH Z A M BB =% = — 4y
HZTJUR 2@k N e - &S IH
B F - —FRHA - FNHER-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE_T-_—_#=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES — continued 40. HEMWB AT — &
Disposal Group

&
HK$’000
T# T
Consideration RE
3%-coupon promissory note at fair value 3JE SRS ER > A UERHE 218,373
Cash consideration received during BE_EX - "HF A =T—HILFERN
the year ended 31 March 2022 W 2 B A AR 199,202
Deposit received for disposal of subsidiaries AR T —FE=H = — H IR
during 31 March 2021 At B 2 RO 2 4 37,000
454,575
Net assets disposed of FHEZEERE
Property and equipment EYN &L ] 100,738
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FA AT BIE ~ 2 4 S HAth B i 3k A 432
Bank balances — general accounts and cash SRATAG AR — — IR F B 4 18,805
Tax payable JRE At A8 I )
Deferred tax liabilities (note 31) AR SE B I BAE (M aE31) (4,212)
115,758
Net assets upon disposal RHERZEEFRE
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 10) B B s W) 2 i ss (B eE10) 338,817
Consideration AR 454,575
Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries HENBARZRERAFH
Cash consideration received C i B e AE 199,202
Less: Bank balances and cash disposed of BB 2 BRAT &G R KB E (18,805)
180,397
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41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

OF THE COMPANY

e A T R AR B R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-_ZT-_—_F#=-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

41. XD 7] 2 BB AR R

2022 2021
—E-= BT
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
i FET AR

Non-current assets REBEE
Investments in subsidiaries A N | 2 & 196,042 196,042

Current assets RBEE
Deposits and prepayments 2 & B BN FROA 378 384
Cash and cash equivalents B4 kB 4%EER 4,292 2,910
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE A B B8 2 ] e 2,418,691 2,247,017
2,423,361 2,250,311
Current liabilities nEBEE

Accrued charges JE 51 22 722 922
Amounts due to subsidiaries JRE AT 66 Jog /2 ) 2k B 437,812 259,991
438,534 260,913
Net current assets mEBEEEE 1,984,827 1,989,398
NET ASSETS EEFE 2,180,869 2,185,440

Capital and reserves BEXR#E
Share capital %N 32 25,000 25,000
Reserves FA 41(a) 2,155,869 2,160,440
TOTAL EQUITY BER 2,180,869 2,185,440
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE_T-_—_#=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY - continued

41. KR 2B BRI K- &

available for distribution to shareholders were
approximately HK$2,155,869,000 (2021:
HK$2,160,440,000) which included share premium,

contributed surplus, other reserve and retained

profits.

(a) Movements of the reserves (a) HESF
Share  Contributed Other Retained
premium surplus reserve profits Total
B iEE EfRH Hit e RERH fax
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
i TERL THAT THET TEL TEL
At T April 2020 A BB A —F 5407 1,486,951 195,942 105192 2,163,492
Profit for the year REEEA = = = 121,948 121,948
Transactions with owners: HEEAZRS .
Contributions and distributions BRI
- Dividends paid to owners —#HH NRE 2 16
19z - - - (125,000) (125,000)
Total transactions with HEREEAL
equity holders RHEE - - - (125,000) (125,000)
At 31 March 2021 R-F 4
=A=+—H 375,407 1,486,951 195,942 102,140 2,160,440
Profit for the year REERA = = = 145,429 145,429
Transactions with owners: HEBAZRS .
Contributions and distributions BRI
- Dividends paid to owners — A NREZ 16
19z - - - (150,000) (150,000)
Total transactions with HEZEEAZ
equity holders REBE - - = (150,000) (150,000)
At 31 March 2022 R=%-Z%
=A=1-H 375,407 1,486,951 195,942 97,569 2,155,869
Note: At 31 March 2022, the reserves of the Company Mtz : A2 F - _—HF=H=+—H >

AN 7] 2 AT A IR T IR A
#5 %9 #52,155,869,000%5 JC (—
T —4F 1 2,160,440,000%
Jt) > BLIE I AE - B AE
Bk ~ HoAth Gl K AR B T A o
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SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are

as follows:

Name of subsidiary
MEAREE

King Joy Asia Limited

AREHARAR
GN Incorporated

Get Nice Securities Limited

(GNS)

Bilg A RA T
([&kFE %)

Get Nice Currency
Exchange Limited

Bl R A RA T

Get Nice Capital Limited

GErMEARAR

Get Nice Futures
Company Limited

S MEHR AR

Get Nice Silk Road

Investment Limited

BB A A R A

Get Nice Asser Management

Limited

GHEEERARAR

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

e A T R AR B R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-_ZT-_—_F#=-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

42. TEMBRAFE

AN ) 2 W 4 R R

Principal
activities

EX £

Investment
holding

REHR

Investment
holding

HEHER

Securities dealing
and broking
and securities
margin
financing

B HE R
EH k%
R & RE

Inactive

T £

Corporate finance
services

AR

Futures and
options broking

W R &
£/

Investment
holding

fRHER

Asset management

services

B R

Place of Issued and fully paid Proportion of nominal value of issued
incorporation Class of shares held share capital share capital held by the Company
AR A 0 B Fr IR £ 28 5 BEARAERE  ARARAZCRORAEEEDL
2022 2021
—E-CF R
Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly
ER B#& HiE fil
British Virgin Ordinary US$1 100 - 100 -
Islands (“BVI”)
RBELTHS il E
BVI Ordinary US$10,000 100 - 100 -
RRELAHE  WER 10,000% 7
Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,660,000,000 - 100 - 100
Non-voting deferred HK$40,000,000
shares (note a)
i il 1,660,000,0004 ¢
RHFHEER 40,000,000 ¢
(B i)
Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$1 - 100 - 100
&k Tk 17
Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000,000 - 100 - 100
ik i 10,000,000 ¢
Hong Kong Ordinary HK$60,000,000 - 100 - 100
(2021: HK$20,000,000)
Fik Wl 60,000,000 &
(ZF 4
20,000,000 7¢)
BVI Ordinary US$10,000 - 100 - 100
KEESHE  EER 10,000% 70
Hong Kong Ordinary HK$5,000,000 - 100 = 100
ik il 5,000,000 7
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BHE_T-_—_#=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES - continued

Name of subsidiary
WEARAR

Steppington

NobleNet (note b)

NobleNet ([ff #£b)

Grace Field (note b)

HEH (Hi3ED)

Pacific Challenge Futures
Hong Kong Limited

Ko B A R A

Get Nice Investment Limited

SHHEARAR

Bravo Nice Limited

Dixten Limited

T R A 7]
Red Eagle

Billion Wealth Investment

Management Limited

REBEE AR

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED 4 #f @@ HR/A" o ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4R

Place of
incorporation

AR A 40 B

BVI

B ey
BVI

EY aeds
Hong Kong
HiE

Hong Kong
it

Hong Kong
it

BVI

ERELH S
Hong Kong

Fik

Hong Kong

ik

Hong Kong

Fits

Class of shares held
Fits R &5l

Ordinary

L
Ordinary
L
Ordinary
i e
Ordinary
i e
Ordinary
il
Ordinary
il
Ordinary
i
Ordinary

4 e

Ordinary

i

Issued and fully paid
share capital

BRARARKRA

US$10,000

10,0005 76
US$1

170
HKS$2
2T
HK$10,000,000
10,000,000 7
HKS$1
170
Us$1

IEFH
HK$1

170

HK$60,000,000

60,000,000% G

HK$1

170

2. TEMBRAFRE &

Proportion of nominal value of issued

share capital held by the Company

ARARAREZERTRAEER I
2022 2021
SRy g
Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly
=83 i HE fil
100 - 100 -
- - - 100
- - - 100
- 100 - 100
- 100 - 100
- 100 - 100
- 100 = 100
- 100 = N/A
AR
- 100 - 100
AR

Principal
activities

EX £

Investment
holding
REHR
Investment
holding
fEFE
Property holding
IESEL
Investment
holding
HE R
Holding of yacht
i A 1 i
Investment
holding
REHR
Administrative
services
T B
Securities dealing
and broking
and securities
margin
financing
HarHH IR
ES Ve e
R & RE
Investment

management

HEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES - continued

Notes:

a)

b)

The non-voting deferred shares, which are held by two
directors of the Company, carry practically no rights to
dividends nor to receive notice of nor to attend or vote at
any general meeting of GNS and on liquidation, the assets of
GNS available for distribution among the holders of ordinary
shares and the holders of non-voting deferred shares shall
be applied first in paying to the holders of ordinary shares
the sum of HK$1,000,000,000,000 per ordinary share and
secondly in repaying to the holders of non-voting deferred
shares the nominal amount paid up or credited as paid up on
such shares, and the balances of the GNS’s assets shall belong
to and be distributed among the holders of ordinary shares in
proportion to the amount paid up or credited as paid up on

such ordinary shares respectively.

Details of disposal of subsidiaries are set out in note 40 to the

consolidated financial statements.

All subsidiaries are operating in Hong Kong.

HE-_ZT-_—_F#=-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

2. TEMBRAFRE &

Wi 5

a)

b)

o)

A T W 4 R 2 B AR
S RN B R b A R N B L IR S
AT B A5 T 5 o AT ] e ROK & 48 45 B
JE KB s B B o N TE RN &
i R B ) s R NP

2RI B e A N 2 E i P LA
A A i % 78 5 1,000,000,000,0007#5
JG 2 BB T R N > 41T F DA
& B A 2 B 80U SRS 5
JE T (B T AR TR A A N o T
KRB SR 2 G R T B B A R
BN 5 43 B A A B
B B BRS B B ek 2 LE AR o

H B B T R O B A P S
=t sE40 o

JIT A7 WY T 2 R A A R
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B =
FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Year ended 31 March
BE=HA=+—HLEE

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
—F—)E CEFE-NE FECFE CF | DB
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T 0 T 0 T#50 T 0 FHET
RESULTS E45
Revenue g 440,128 401,589 369,362 381,320 354,827
Profit before taxation P Bij i Al 340,192 189,274 171,265 257,884 499,720
Taxation el (63,260) (56,219) (31,483) (44,675) (32,853)
Profit for the year A4 J& i F 276,932 133,055 139,782 213,209 466,867
As at 31 March
R=BA=+—H
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
—E-NE B -NE B FE EF | ZB=-Z
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T 0 THs T T 0 T T FET
ASSETS AND EEREE
LIABILITIES
Total assets MK 4,909,349 5,407,971 4,419,280 4,777,344 4,876,902
Total liabilities A E (910,131) (1,442,040) (487,807) (756,298) (538,940)
Total equity A RE £ 3,999,218 3,965,931 3,931,473 4,021,046 4,337,962
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